
 

Democratic Services democratic.services@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

 
 
 

Title: Audit Committee 

Date: 26 June 2008 

Time: 4.00pm 

Venue Committee Room 3, Hove Town Hall 

Members: Councillors: 
Hamilton (Chairman), Alford, Kitcat, Lainchbury, 
Oxley, Randall, Simpson, Smith, G Theobald 
and Watkins (Deputy Chairman) 

Contact: Penny Jennings 
Senior Democratic  Services  Officer 
01273 291065 
penny.jennings@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

 
The Town Hall has facilities for wheelchair users, 
including lifts and toilets 

 

T  

An Induction loop operates to enhance sound for 
anyone wearing a hearing aid or using a transmitter 
and infra red hearing aids are available for use 
during the meeting.  If you require any further 
information or assistance, please contact the 
receptionist on arrival. 

  

 FIRE / EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 
 

If the fire alarm sounds continuously, or if you are 
instructed to do so, you must leave the building by 
the nearest available exit.  You will be directed to 
the nearest exit by council staff.  It is vital that you 
follow their instructions: 
 

• You should proceed calmly; do not run and do 
not use the lifts; 

• Do not stop to collect personal belongings; 

• Once you are outside, please do not wait 
immediately next to the building, but move 
some distance away and await further 
instructions; and 

• Do not re-enter the building until told that it is 
safe to do so. 

 Public Document Pack



 

 
 

Press 

Public Seating 

Officers in Attendance 

Members in Attendance 

Cllr David 
Watkins 

Cllr Bill 
Randall 

Cllr Jason 
Kitcat 

Cllr 
Christine 
Simpson 

Cllr David 
Smith 

Cllr Brian 
Oxley 

Cllr Paul 
Lainchbury 

Cllr Trevor 
Alford 

Cllr Geoffrey 
Theobald 

Director Cllr Les 
Hamilton 

Lawyer Democratic 
Services 
Officer 

Democratic Services: Meeting Layout 
 



AUDIT COMMITTEE 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

Part One Page 
 

1. PROCEDURAL BUSINESS  

 (a) Declaration of Substitutes - Where Councillors are unable to attend a 
meeting, a substitute Member from the same Political Group may 
attend, speak and vote in their place for that meeting. 

 
(b) Declarations of Interest by all Members present of any personal 
interests in matters on the agenda, the nature of any interest and 
whether the Members regard the interest as prejudicial under the 
terms of the Code of Conduct.  

 
(c) Exclusion of Press and Public - To consider whether, in view of the 
nature of the business to be transacted, or the nature of the 
proceedings, the press and public should be excluded from the 
meeting when any of the following items are under consideration. 

 
NOTE:  Any item appearing in Part 2 of the Agenda states in its 
heading the category under which the information disclosed in the 
report is exempt from disclosure and therefore not available to the 
public. 

 
A list and description of the exempt categories is available for public 
inspection at Brighton and Hove Town Halls. 

 

 

2. CHAIRMAN' S COMMUNICATIONS  

3. CALLOVER  

4. PUBLIC QUESTIONS  

 (The closing date for receipt of public questions is 12 noon on 19 June 
2008) 
 
No public questions received by date of publication. 

 

 

5. WRITTEN QUESTIONS FROM COUNCILLORS  

 No written questions have been received.  
 

6. PETITIONS  

 No petitions received by date of publication.  
 

7. DEPUTATIONS  

 (The closing date for receipt of deputations is 12 noon on 19 June 2008). 
 
No deputations received by date of publication. 

 

 



AUDIT COMMITTEE 

 
 

8. LETTERS FROM COUNCILLORS  

 No letters have been received.  
 

9. NOTICES OF MOTIONS REFERRED FROM COUNCIL  

 No Notices of Motion have been received.  
 

10. AUDIT COMMITTEE: TERMS OF REFERENCE AND WAYS OF 
WORKING 

1 - 2 

 Report of the Director of Strategy & Governance (copy attached).  

 Contact Officer: Penny Jennings Tel: 01273 291065  
 Ward Affected: All Wards   
 

11. AUDIT COMMISSION: AUDIT AND INSPECTION PLAN 2008/09  

 Report of the Director of Finance & Resources and Director of Strategy & 
Governance (copy to follow). 

 

 Contact Officer: Janice Millman Tel: 01273 291080  
 Ward Affected: All Wards   
 

12. STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2007/08  

 Report of the Director of Finance & Resources (copy to follow).  

 Contact Officer: Jane  Strudwick Tel: 01273 291255  
 Ward Affected: All Wards   
 

13. SHOREHAM AIRPORT STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS APRIL - JUNE 
2006 

 

 Report of the Director of Finance & Resources (copy attached).  

 Contact Officer: Nigel Manvell Tel: 293104  
 Ward Affected: All Wards   
 

14. SHOREHAM AIRPORT ANNUAL GOVERNANCE REPORT  

 Report of the Director of Finance & Resources (copy of report to follow).  

 Contact Officer: Nigel Manvell Tel: 293104  
 Ward Affected: All Wards   
 

15. AUDIT & ASSURANCE ANNUAL REPORT AND OPINION 2007/08 3 - 26 

 Report of the Director of Finance & Resources (copy attached).  

 Contact Officer: Ian Withers Tel: 29-1323  
 Ward Affected: All Wards   
 



AUDIT COMMITTEE 

 
 

 

16. ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 27 - 58 

 Report of the Director of Finance & Resources (copy attached).  

 Contact Officer: Ian Withers Tel: 29-1323  
 Ward Affected: All Wards   
 

17. TARGETED BUDGET MANAGEMENT (TBM) REVENUE OUTTURN 
2007/08 

59 - 80 

 Report of the Director of Finance & Resources (copy attached).  

 Contact Officer: Nigel Manvell Tel: 293104  
 Ward Affected: All Wards   
 

18. TARGETED BUDGET MANAGEMENT (TBM) CAPITAL OUTTURN 
2007/08 

81 - 96 

 Report of the Director of Finance & Resources (copy attached).  

 Contact Officer: Stuart Taylor Tel: 29-1074  
 Ward Affected: All Wards   
 

 

The City Council actively welcomes members of the public and the press to attend its 
meetings and holds as many of its meetings as possible in public.  Provision is also made 
on the agendas for public questions to committees and details of how questions can be 
raised can be found on the website and/or on agendas for the meetings. 
 
The closing date for receipt of public questions and deputations for the next meeting is 12 
noon on the fifth working day before the meeting. 
 
Agendas and minutes are published on the council’s website www.brighton-hove.gov.uk.  
Agendas are available to view five working days prior to the meeting date. 
 
Meeting papers can be provided, on request, in large print, in Braille, on audio tape or on 
disc, or translated into any other language as requested. 
 
For further details and general enquiries about this meeting contact Penny Jennings, 
(01273 291065, email penny.jennings@brighton-hove.gov.uk) or email 
democratic.services@brighton-hove.gov.uk  
 

 

Date of Publication - Wednesday, 18 June 2008 

 

 

 





AUDIT COMMITTEE Agenda Item 10 
Brighton & Hove City Council 

 

 

 

Subject: Terms of Reference  

Date of Meeting: 26 June 2008 

Report of: Director of Strategy & Governance 

Contact Officer: Name:  Penny Jennings Tel: 29-1065      

 E-mail: Penny.jennings@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

Key Decision: No  

Wards Affected: All  

 

FOR GENERAL RELEASE   
 

1. SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT: 
  

1.1 This report is to inform the Audit  Committee  regarding  its  Terms  of  
Reference  as  appearing  in  the  Council’s  Constitution.  This item  is  for  
noting  and  the  Terms  of  Reference  are  set  out  below .  

 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS:  
  

(1) To note the Terms of Reference for the Audit Committee 
 

 

Audit Committee  
 

Explanatory Note  
 
The  Audit  Committee  oversees the  Council’s  arrangements for  the  
discharge of  its  functions  in  connection with finance,  risk  management  
and  audit  arrangements . it  makes recommendations  to  the  Council,  the  
Cabinet,  officers  or  other  relevant  body  within  the  Council.  
 
Functions  
 
To carry out independent scrutiny and examination of the Council’s financial 
and non-financial processes, procedures and practices to the extent that they  
affect  the  Council’s exposure to  risk and  weakness  in  the  control 
environment  with  a  view to  :  

 
Providing independent assurance of the adequacy of the risk management 
and associated control environment;  

 
Providing assurance on the adequacy of the Council’s audit arrangements;     

 
Securing robust performance and risk management arrangements; and  

1



 

 

 
Making recommendations to the Cabinet, Council or Directors as appropriate  

 
To consider the Council’s risk management arrangements and make 
recommendations to the Cabinet, Council or its Committees.  

 

2



AUDIT COMMITTEE 

 

Agenda Item 15 
Brighton & Hove City Council 

 

 

  

 

Subject: Audit & Assurance Annual Report and Opinion 
2007/08 

Date of Meeting: 26th June 2008 

Report of: Director of Finance & Resources 

Contact Officer: Name:  Ian Withers Tel: 29-1323 

 E-mail: Ian.withers@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

Wards Affected: All  

 

FOR GENERAL RELEASE 
 

1. SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT: 
 

1.1 This purpose of the this report  is to present to Members of the Audit Committee,  
summarises the internal audit activity for 2007/08 and based on this, an assurance 
opinion on the internal control environment  The full Annual Report and Opinion is 
provided at Appendix 1and includes: 

 

§ Opinion on the City Council’s internal control environment 

§ Internal audit coverage and output 

§ Annual internal audit performance 2007/08 

 

1.2 The opinion contributed to the annual review of governance arrangements 
required by the Accounts & Audit Regulations 2006. 

 
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 

(1) To note the internal audit  activity and opinion on the control environment for 
2007/08.  

  

 

3.  BACKGROUND INFORMATION/CHRONOLOGY OF KEY EVENTS: 
 

  

3.1 The CIPFA Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local Government 2006 
(CIPFA) requires the Head of Audit & Assurance to deliver an Annual Report and 
Opinion to the City Council.   

 

3.2 The background is contained within the Annual Report at Appendix 1. 

3



 

 

4. CONSULTATION 

 

4.1 A draft copy of the Annual Report and Opinion has been provided to the Chief 
Executive and Directors. 

 

5. FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS: 
 

5.1 Financial Implications: 

 

There is no direct financial implications arising from this report 

 

5.2 Legal Implications: 

 

Internal audit as provided by Audit & Assurance Services is a statutory requirement of 
the Accounts & Audit Regulations 2003.   Assurance is also provided to the Director of 
Finance & Property as Section 151 Officer of the Local Government Act 1972. 
 

5.3 Equalities Implications: 

There are no direct equalities implications arising directly from this report 
 

5.4 Sustainability Implications: 

There are no direct sustainability implications arising from this report. 
 

5.5 Crime & Disorder Implications:  

There no direct implications for the prevention of crime and disorder arising from this 
report. 
 

 

5.6 Risk and Opportunity Management Implications:  

 

The internal audit work is based on a full risk assessment.  At the start of each audit, 
relevant areas of risk are discussed with the responsible manager to assist in the focus 
of the audit work.   

 

 

5.7 Corporate / Citywide Implications: 

 

Robust corporate governance arrangements are essential to the sound management of 
the City Council and the achievement of its objectives as set out ion the Corporate Plan. 

 

 

 
 

 

 

4



 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

 

Appendices: 
 

1. Annual Report and Opinion 2007/08 
 

 

Background Documents 
 

1. Accounts & Audit Regulations 2003 (Amended 2006) 

 

2. Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local Government 2006 (CIPFA) 

 

3. Internal Audit Plan 2007/08 
    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5



6



APPENDIX 1 

 
 
 

Annual Report and Opinion 
2007/08

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 

Ian Withers 

Head of Audit & Assurance

 June 2008

                

7



                                                                                                                

                                                                                                                        Annual Report and Opinion 2007 - 2008 

June 08                                                                        Page  1                                           Audit & Assurance Services 

                               
 

Contents 
 

 

Section Page 

 

I         Introduction 
 
Purpose of this report 
Role of  Internal Audit 
 

2

II        Opinion on the City Council’s Internal 
Control Environment 

3

III        Internal Audit Coverage and Output 
 
Delivery of the Internal Audit Plan 2007/08 
Analysis of Internal Reports Issued for 2007/08 
Assurance Levels 
Agreed Management Actions/Audit Recommendations  
Anti-Fraud and Corruption Work 
Corporate Governance 
Financial Management Standard in Schools (FMSiS) 
Working with External Audit 
 
 

3

IV        Internal Audit Performance 2007/08 

Appendices

A            Definitions of Audit Opinions 
B            Definitions of Audit Recommendations 
C            Internal Audit Charter 

14 
15 
16

 
 
 
 

8



                                                                                                                

                                                                                                                        Annual Report and Opinion 2007 - 2008 

June 08                                                                        Page  2                                           Audit & Assurance Services 

 

I INTRODUCTION 
 
      Purpose of the report 
 
1. The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2003 (Amended 2006) requires the City Council to 

maintain an adequate and effective system of internal audit.  Proper practice under the 
regulations is defined in the Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local Government 
(CIPFA) part of which is a requirement to provide an annual report to those charged with 
governance.   The purpose of the report is to provide a summary of internal audit activity 
carried out during 2007/08, our performance and present as assurance opinion on the 
effectiveness of the City Council’s internal control environment. 

 
2. This is timed to also inform the City Council’s Annual Governance Statement.   
 
3. Our aim is to assist the City Council strive to achieve high standards of service delivery, 

governance and value for money by examining, evaluating and reporting on the internal 
control environment.  This allows us to provide assurance and support to: 

 

 The Audit Committee in discharging its responsibilities in particular for overseeing an  
effective internal control environment 

 Annual review of the effectiveness of governance arrangements and production of the 
Annual Governance Statement 

 Director of Finance & Resources in discharging her responsibilities as designated Section 
151 officer for financial stewardship 

 The Audit Commission as appointed external auditors, in particular for key financial 
systems and processes 

 Officers’ Governance  Board 
 

Role of Internal Audit 
 
4. Internal audit is a statutory requirement for local authorities under the Accounts & Audit 

Regulations 2006 (Amendment), which states that ‘a relevant body shall maintain an adequate 
and effective system of internal audit of its system of internal control in accordance with proper 
internal audit practices.’ 

 
5. It gives assurance to the City Council by providing an independent and objective opinion on 

the adequacy and effectiveness of its internal control environment, comprising risk 
management, internal control and governance by evaluating its effectiveness as a 
contribution to the proper economic, efficient and effective use of resources. 

 
6. The City Council’s internal audit function is provided by Audit & Assurance Services, part of 

the Finance & Resources Directorate, together with its partner Deloitte Public Sector 
Internal Audit Ltd. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

9



                                                                                                                

                                                                                                                        Annual Report and Opinion 2007 - 2008 

June 08                                                                        Page  3                                           Audit & Assurance Services 

 

II OPINION ON THE  CITY COUNCIL’S INTERNAL CONTROL

          ENVIRONMENT 
 
7. The level of assurance that we are able to provide is based on the internal audit work 

carried out during the year and it should be read in conjunction with the Annual 
Governance Statement for 2007/08.  In assessing the level of assurance given, the following 
have been taken into account: 

 
 The quality and performance of internal audit work; 
 Internal audit work completed during 2007/08; 
 Follow-up action taken following agreement and issue of final audit reports in 2007/08 and 

previous years; 
 Individual audit opinions given in internal audit reports;  
 Any significant recommendations not accepted by management and the consequence of 

those risks; 
 The extent to which resource constraints may limit the ability to meet the full internal 

audit needs of the council; and  
 Impact of significant changes to the internal control environment. 
 
 

 
8. No assurance can ever be absolute; however based upon the internal audit work 

undertaken; our overall opinion is that reasonable assurance can be provided that 
the system of internal control in place at the City Council for the year ended 31 
March 2008 is operating effectively.  Overall it is our view that the City Council’s 
internal control environment continues to improve.   

 

 
9. Our work during the year has identified specific actions for improvement and we will 

continue to review the effective implementation of these actions.  We will report on a 
regular basis to the Audit Committee, on progress made and raise any inadequacy of 
implementation that results in residual risk to the council. 

 
 

III INTERNAL AUDIT COVERAGE AND OUTPUT 
 
      Delivery of Internal Audit Plan 2007/08 
 
10. The Internal Audit Plan for 2007/08 was agreed with the Chief Officers Management Team 

(TMT) and endorsed by the Audit Panel in March 2007.  This was derived from the 
following sources: 

 
 The Council’s Risk Registers 
 Priorities identified through extensive consultations with senior management 
 Those audits carried out under ‘Managed Audit’ arrangements with external audit 
 An audit risk assessment of activity within each service area 

 
11. The plan was continually reviewed and revised throughout the year to reflect emerging 

issues, risks etc and to be responsive to the changing needs of the City Council.   

10



                                                                                                                

                                                                                                                        Annual Report and Opinion 2007 - 2008 

June 08                                                                        Page  4                                           Audit & Assurance Services 

 
12.  In total we delivered 1,828 direct days against a planned target of 2,100.  The shortfall was 

due to a vacancy throughout the year of Principal Auditor and two further vacancies for 
Auditors that arose in quarter 4.   Due to market conditions and the demand for internal 
auditors, we were unable to cover the shortfall in lost time with suitable agency staff.  We 
are however currently recruiting for the vacant positions.   

 
13. The Audit Manager was seconded throughout the year to the Integrated Waste 

Management Contract (IWMC) as Contract Manager.  An interim manager was 
commissioned to undertake the role of Audit Manager but only part time (80%).      

 
14. Direct time spent by activity is shown in the following chart: 
 
 

Direct Time By Activity 2007/08

Grant Claims

2%

Governance & 

Support

4%

Audit Reviews

77%

Implementation 

Reviews

2%

Other

1%

Advice & 

Information

5% Anti Fraud & 

Corruption

9%

 
 
 
 

Analysis of Internal Audit Reports Issued for 2007/08    
 
15. Internal audit reports have been issued throughout the year, first as draft versions for 

discussion and agreement with relevant managers, then as final versions to Directors.  
Regular progress reports were issued to the Audit Panel throughout the year summarising 
the outcomes of the audit reviews reported. 

 
16.  A total of 87 internal audit reports were issued during 2007/08 against a target of 94. The 

difference is explained by reviews being either abandoned or deferred to 2008/09, 
principally due to changes within services and are agreed with management. 

 
17. We have liaised closely with senior management throughout the year, to ensure that 

reviews undertaken continue to represent the best use of our resources in the light of new 
issues and risks emerging through change taking place.  The outturn therefore includes a 
number of unplanned audit reviews.   

 
 

11



                                                                                                                

                                                                                                                        Annual Report and Opinion 2007 - 2008 

June 08                                                                        Page  5                                           Audit & Assurance Services 

 
18. Of the 87 internal audit reports issued, 12 (14%) still remain in draft although an 

improvement over the previous year of 21%.  We will be giving priority to progressing 
these to final in the first quarter of 2008/09.  Although the number in draft is considered to 
be reasonable, we will be reviewing our processes, liaising with management and the Audit 
Committee. 

 
19. At the time of preparing this report, the overall position relating to planned and unplanned 

reviews is shown in the following tables 1A to IG, including individual assurance levels given 
and actions to issues raised: 

 
Table 1A - Corporate Governance Arrangements 
 
Audit Report 

Status 
Assurance 
Level 

Agreed Actions and Priority 

 High Medium Low 
CYPT Trust Governance Arrangements Draft Substantial 0 6 1 
CYPT Quality Assurance Programme Final Reasonable 0 5 2 
Fire Safety Regulatory Reform Orders Final Reasonable 0 10 0 
Fire Safety Regulatory Reform Orders 
(Housing Specific) 

Final Limited 1 4 1 

Asbestos Safety Requirements Final Reasonable 0 3 2 
Business Continuity Final Reasonable 0 1 3 
Risk Management Final Substantial 0 8 0 
Business Planning Process Final Reasonable 0 7 1 
Code of Conduct  Final Reasonable 0 2 1 
Equalities Final Substantial 0 4 1 
Sussex Partnership Trust Final Reasonable 0 7 0 

 
 
Table 1B - Cross Cutting and Corporate Projects 
 
Audit Report 

Status 
Assurance 
Level 

Agreed Actions and Priority 

 High Medium Low 
Data Quality  Draft Reasonable 0 2 1 
Cessation of External Funding Streams Final Reasonable 1 6 0 
Delivery of Budget/Efficiency Savings Final Reasonable 0 3 0 
Jointly Funded Posts Draft Reasonable 0 6 0 
Personal Development Planning Scheme Final Limited 0 8 0 
Flexible Working Scheme Draft Limited 0 7 0 
Single Status Modelling Final Limited 0 4 0 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

12



                                                                                                                

                                                                                                                        Annual Report and Opinion 2007 - 2008 

June 08                                                                        Page  6                                           Audit & Assurance Services 

Table 1C - Key Financial Systems 
 
Audit  Report 

Status 
Assurance 
Level 

Agreed Actions and Priority 

 High Medium Low 
Main Accounting System Final Substantial 0 3 0 
Creditors Final Reasonable 0 7 1 
Debtors Final Reasonable 0 5 1 
Capital Accounting & Expenditure Final Substantial 0 2 1 
Treasury Management Final Full 0 0 0 
Payroll Draft Limited 2 15 0 
Council Tax Final Substantial 0 2 0 
NNDR (Business Rates) Final Substantial 0 1 0 
Housing Rents Final Substantial 0 5 2 
Housing Benefits Final Substantial 0 3 0 

 
Table 1D - Procurement and Contract Management 
 
Audit Report 

Status 
Assurance 
Level 

Agreed Actions and Priority 

 High Medium Low 
Contract Management Arrangements Final Reasonable 0 9 0 
CYPT Contract Letting Draft Reasonable 0 8 1 
Contract Management - Education PFI Final Reasonable 0 7 3 
Home to School Transport Final Substantial 0 7 0 
Waste PFI – Renegotiation of Contract Final Substantial 0 5 1 
Contract Management - Leisure 
Management 

Final Reasonable 0 11 0 

Contract Management – School Meals Final Substantial 0 0 2 
E-Procurement Final Reasonable 0 9 0 
Gas Servicing Contract Final Limited 1 2 0 
Leisure Management Contract Final Substantial 0 9 2 
Dunlop Haywards (Consultant Surveyors) Final Limited 2 8 0 
Madeira Drive Capital Scheme Final Limited 6 3 0 

 
Table 1E - ICT & E-Government 
 
Audit Report 

Status 
Assurance 
Level 

Agreed Actions and Priority 

 High Medium Low 
CareFirst Application Final Reasonable 0 5 1 
OHMS Application Final Reasonable 0 1 4 
CIVICA Financials Application Final Reasonable 0 6 3 
End User Computing Final Substantial 0 4 3 
iWorld Application Final Substantial 0 1 3 
CIVICA Financial Post Implementation 
Review 

Final Limited 10 20 0 

ICT Strategy and Planning Final Reasonable 0 4 4 
Mobile Computing Draft Limited 2 5 0 
Disaster Recovery Draft Limited 2 0 0 
ICT Security Policy Draft Reasonable 0 5 0 
Spydus Library  Application Final Substantial 0 5 0 
Data Protection Final Reasonable 2 4 7 
SIMS FMS Microsoft SQL Upgrade Final Substantial 0 5 0 
 

 
 

13



                                                                                                                

                                                                                                                        Annual Report and Opinion 2007 - 2008 

June 08                                                                        Page  7                                           Audit & Assurance Services 

 
 
Table 1F - Value for Money 
 
Audit Date 

Completed 
Assurance 
Level 

Agreed Actions and Priority 

 High Medium Low 
Review of Performance Evaluation Report  
Actions on Adult  Services 

Final Limited 0 2 0 

Review of Performance Evaluation Report  
Actions on Childrens Services 

Final Limited 0 2 0 

Housing Benefit Administration Costs Final Reasonable 0 3 0 
Special Educational Needs Final Substantial 0 6 3 
Leaving Care 16 Plus Support Final Limited 1 10 2 
Libraries Service Final Substantial 0 5 2 
Electronic Documents Records 
Management (EDRM) 

Final Reasonable 0 8 0 

Accommodation Strategy Final Reasonable 0 3 0 
Learning Disabilities Final Reasonable 0 5 0 
Agency Staff (Neutral Vendor) Final Reasonable 0 4 0 

 
Table 1G - Service Specific 
 
Audit Date 

Comple
ted 

Assurance 
Level 

Agreed Actions and Priority 

 High Medium Low 
Professional Registration Final Limited 0 6 0 
CRB Disclosure Process for Schools Final Reasonable 0 7 0 
Youth & Connexions Service Final Substantial 0 4 1 
Print & Sign Shop Final Substantial 0 6 0 
On Street Car Parking Final Limited 0 3 0 
Supporting People Final Reasonable 1 5 0 
Bereavement Services Final Reasonable 1 3 0 
Housing Cash Collections Final Substantial 0 4 2 
Leasehold Service Charges Final Reasonable 0 3 0 
Homelessness Draft Limited 2 15 0 
Housing Voids – Reinstatement Repairs Final Reasonable 2 13 1 
Election Expenses Final Substantial 0 1 0 
Seafront Services Draft Substantial 0 3 1 
Registrars Security Final Limited 6 4 0 
Direct Payments Final Limited 0 8 3 
School Admissions Final Substantial 0 2 0 
RIPA Compliance Draft Reasonable 0 5 0 
St Bartholomew C.E. Primary Final Substantial 2 10 9 
St Mary’s RC Primary Final Substantial 2 10 4 
St Nicolas C.E. Primary Final Substantial 0 6 8 
St Peter’s Primary Final Substantial 2 15 3 
Portslade Primary Final Limited 8 23 4 
Dorothy Stringer Secondary Final Substantial 0 8 3 
Longhill Secondary Final Substantial 0 7 7 

 
 
 
 
 

14



                                                                                                                

                                                                                                                        Annual Report and Opinion 2007 - 2008 

June 08                                                                        Page  8                                           Audit & Assurance Services 

 
Assurance Levels 

 
20. Throughout the year we have provided audit opinions or degree of assurance on adequacy 

and effectiveness of controls, and management of risks in systems and processes audited.   
These are given in individual audit reports and shown in tables 1A to 1G above.  Opinions 
are given according to a five-point scale (full, substantial, reasonable, limited and none).  

 
21.  A summary of audit opinions is shown in the Table 2 below for non schools and a 

comparison made against 2006/08.  This shows a general improvement on the previous 
financial year, in particular the increased percentage of substantial assurance from 24% to 
31%, reduction of limited  and none from 32% to 24% and 2% to 0% 
 
Table 2 - Audit Opinions 
 

Audit Opinions  2007/08 2006/07 
Full 1      (1%)  1       (1%)  
Substantial 25     (31%) 23     (24%) 
Reasonable 35     (44%) 38     (41%) 
Limited 19     (24%) 30     (32%) 
None 0       (0%) 2       (2%) 

 
Agreed Management Actions/Audit Recommendations 

 
22. Each internal audit review culminates in a report containing actions or recommendations to 

improve controls and the use of resources.  These are discussed and agree with 
management and included in management action plans together with responsibility and 
timescale for implementation.     

 
23. Audit actions or recommendations are prioritised as high, medium and low depending on 

the level of assessed residual risk.  A full explanation of the priority levels is given at 
Appendix B.   

 
24. The number of agreed management actions resulting from internal audit reviews is 

summarised in Table 2 below. 
 

Table 3 - Agreed Management Actions 
 

Priority Levels of Agreed Management Actions No 
High  28 
Medium  173 
Low  45 
Total 246 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

15



                                                                                                                

                                                                                                                        Annual Report and Opinion 2007 - 2008 

June 08                                                                        Page  9                                           Audit & Assurance Services 

 
25. We undertake implementation reviews usually within six months from agreement and issue 

of the final audit report.  From implementation reviews audits carried out during 2007/08, 
the level of full implementation of agreed actions is 85% of which 96% relates to high 
priority ones.   Overall we consider this to be a reasonable level and that many managers 
are responding positively to implement agreed actions.   

 
Anti-Fraud and Corruption Work 
 
26. Our work covers all corporate internal fraud and corruption work.  This includes 

increasingly proactive prevention work in managing the risk of fraud, detection and 
investigations. 

 
27. During the year we received and investigated 75 referrals of suspected fraud and 

irregularities..  This represents a 79% increase in referrals from 2006/07 demonstrating a 
growing awareness of fraud both  from staff and the public.  

 
28. Of the 75 cases investigated, 47 have been closed or transferred and 28 work in progress 

cases carried forward to 2008/09.    The cases investigated represent a variety of types of 
fraud and have resulted in a range of sanctions being applied.  

 
29. The City Council participates in the Audit Commission’s National Fraud Initiative  (NFI) 

being a biannual data matching exercise to identify fraud and error.  We have a lead role in 
co-ordinating the exercise at the City Council and undertaking any resulting investigations.    
Work on the NFI 2006-7 has been substantially completed resulting in a number of 
successful sanctions being applied and losses recovered.  This was reported to the Audit 
Panel in March 2008. 

 
30. During 2007/8 the City Wide Anti Fraud Campaign was completed for which we had a lead 

role.    This resulted in significant reduction of fraud in areas such as council tax single 
persons discounts, benefits and insurance.  This was again reported to the Audit Panel in 
March 2008. 

 
31. In terms of other areas of proactive anti fraud and corruption work during 2007/08, we 

have: 
 

 Updated our  Fraud Risk Assessment both methodology and content;   
 Delivered fraud awareness training and workshops in key service areas; 
 Assessed the City Council’s anti fraud framework against CIPFA Standard, “Managing 

the Risk of Fraud” and actions resulting; 
 Undertaken key probity checks for financial systems using audit software; 
 Establishing greater links with other anti fraud agencies; 
 Established a corporate anti fraud group 
 Use of City Council’s Website 
 

32. For 2008/09, proactive anti fraud work will be an important and increasing part of our work 
to detect and deter fraud.   

 
 
 
 

16



                                                                                                                

                                                                                                                        Annual Report and Opinion 2007 - 2008 

June 08                                                                        Page  10                                           Audit & Assurance Services 

Corporate Governance 
 
33. During 2007/08 we continued to undertake a major role in reviewing and improving the 

effectiveness of the City Council’s corporate governance arrangements.  Together with the 
Strategy & Governance Directorate, we prepared and implemented a new Code of 
Corporate Governance.  

 
34. In June 2007, CIPFA/SOLACE published a framework document, “Delivering Good 

Governance in Local Government”.  This was long awaited and provides an effective 
framework by which the City Council can measure its corporate governance arrangements.  
Working closely with the Audit Panel and Officers Governance Board, we completed a 
review of the corporate governance arrangements to prepare the City Council’s Annual 
Governance Statement.   The outcomes of our work is a key part, in providing the 
assurance required for review particularly in areas such as key financial systems, ICT, risk 
management and codes of conduct. 

 
35. The effectiveness of the City Council’s corporate governance arrangements and Annual 

Governance Statement will form a key part of the forthcoming CAA process for the Use of 
Resources. 

 
 Financial Management Standard in Schools (FMSiS) 
 
36. Although the FMSiS has existed for a number of years, the DfES imposed the requirement in 

2006/07 for all schools to be assessed for compliance once every three years.  This 
commenced with all Secondary Schools for 2006/07 and continued in 2007/08 with 26 
Primary and Special Schools, being a third of the total. 

 
37. A key part of the process is the external assessment and we have been accredited by the 

DfES to undertake this work.  In addition to the actual external assessments, a substantial 
amount of support has been provided to schools and this has been extremely well received. 

 
38. 17 of the 26 schools were assessed as complying with the standard, awarded passes and the 

remaining 9 were given conditional passes under the assessment scheme by which they have 
two months to implement agreed actions.  We are currently in the process of re-assessing 
the 9 schools. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

17



                                                                                                                

                                                                                                                        Annual Report and Opinion 2007 - 2008 

June 08                                                                        Page  11                                           Audit & Assurance Services 

 
Table 4 – FMSiS External Assessments Undertaken 
 
School Result 
Balfour Junior Pass 
Bevendean Primary Pass 
Carden Primary Pass 
Cottesmore St Marys RC Pass 
Downs Junior Conditional Pass 
Elm Grove Primary Conditional Pass 
Goldstone Primary Conditional Pass 
Hangleton Junior Pass 
Mile Oak Primary Pass 
Moulsecoomb Primary Conditional Pass 
Rudyard Kipling Primary Conditional Pass 
Saltdean Primary Conditional Pass 
Somerhill Junior Conditional Pass 
St Andrews CE Pass 
St Lukes Junior Pass 
West Hove Infant Pass 
West Hove Junior Pass 
Westdene Primary Pass 
Woodingdean Primary Pass 
Whitehawk Primary Conditional Pass 
ACE Pass 
Cedar Centre Pass 
Downs Park Pass 
Downsview Pass 
Hillside Pass 
Patcham House Conditional Pass 

 
 
Working with External Audit  

 
39. When forming an opinion on the City Council’s financial statements, the External Auditor, 

the Audit Commission, relies upon our work.  Our close working relationship with external 
audit continues to operate effectively to ensure audit coverage is co-ordinated and 
maximised for  the benefit to the City Council.   

 
40. We have continued to complete a significant and increasing amount of work on the external 

auditor’s behalf including the review of key financial systems, performance indicators, data 
quality and grant claim verification.    This has resulted in a significant decrease in external 
audit fees to the City Council. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

18



                                                                                                                

                                                                                                                        Annual Report and Opinion 2007 - 2008 

June 08                                                                        Page  12                                           Audit & Assurance Services 

IV INTERNAL AUDIT PERFORMANCE 2007/08 
 
 
41. Agreed local performance indicators for internal audit  were established and targets set as 

part of the Annual Internal Audit Plan for 2007/08.  These were monitored throughout the 
year and reported to the Director of Finance & Resources. 

 
Summary of 2007/08 performance data 

42. These local performance indicators are generally quantitative and are shown in Table 4 
below, actual performance against targets set.  The actuals for 2006/07 are shown in 
brackets for trend analysis.  

 
Table 4 - Performance Indicators Targets V Actuals 

 
Completion of audits against the number identified in the Agreed Annual 
Internal Audit for 2007/08 

 
Purpose of the performance indicator: to ensure that Audit & Assurance Services 
provides sufficient coverage to provide an adequate and effective internal service, to 
provide sufficient assurance to management on the City Council’s system of internal 
control and meet the requirements of the Section 151 Officer and  External Audit 
Target:  95 Achieved:   92.5%  (2006/07 93%) 

 
 

Turnaround times of audit reports 
 
Purpose of the performance indicator: to ensure effectiveness of audit work in 
terms of timeliness and service delivery to clients.  
Target:  Issue 100% of draft reports within 
10 working days of completion of audit 
fieldwork   
Target:  Receive 100% of client responses 
within Client responses within 15 days of 
issue of draft reports. 
Target: Issue of 100% of final audit reports 
within 10 days of agreement with clients 
 

Achieved:  96% (2006/07 90%)  
 
 
Achieved:  88% (2006/07 90%) 
 
 
Achieved:   98% (2006/07 97%) 

 
 

Client satisfaction levels of at least good or very good 
 
Purpose of the performance indicator: to ensure Audit & Assurance Services 
provides a sufficient level of service in terms of quality and impact through adding value as 
required by its clients. 
Target:  92% of client satisfaction 
responses at least good or very good. 

Achieved:  96% (2006/07 94%) 

 
 
 
 

19



                                                                                                                

                                                                                                                        Annual Report and Opinion 2007 - 2008 

June 08                                                                        Page  13                                           Audit & Assurance Services 

 
Reliance by External Audit on the work of Audit & Assurance Services 
 
Purpose of the performance indicator: to ensure the audit coverage and quality is 
sufficient to meet the statutory requirements of external audit, including the International 
Standards of Auditing and beneficial in terms of reducing external audit fees to the City 
Council.  
Target:   Reliance Achieved:   Reliance (2006/07 Reliance) 

 
 
43. In addition to the monitoring and reporting of the above local performance indicators, we 

continuously review and improve our working practices aimed at ensuring we provide an 
excellent internal audit service to the council.    The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2006 
introduced a new requirement to conduct at least once a year a year a review of the 
effectiveness of internal audit.  A review was undertaken during 2007/08 that included 
external peer challenge/examination and raised no significant concerns.  This  was reported 
to the Audit Panel in September 2007. 

 
44. We participate in a national benchmarking exercise operated by the Chartered Institute of 

Public Finance.     From previous benchmarking exercise we are generally in the upper 
quartile for the majority of areas. We are currently submitting the data for the 2007/08 
exercise and the results will be reported to the Audit Committee as part of this year’s 
Effectiveness Review.  

 
45. The Comprehensive Performance Assessment (CPA) for Internal Control is considered to 

be in part, a reflection of the ongoing effectiveness of internal audit activity as it contributes 
to and influences the quality of the internal control environment.  The 2007 CPA score for 
Internal Control was 3 out of 4 and although the same as 2006, individual components had 
improved.  Our target is to achieve a score of 4 for which currently only 11 other local 
authorities achieve. 

   

20



                                                                                                                

                                                                                                                        Annual Report and Opinion 2007 - 2008 

June 08                                                                        Page  14                                           Audit & Assurance Services 

 

Appendix A 
 

Definitions of Audit Opinions 
 
 

Categories of 
Assurance 

 

Assessment 

Full There is a sound system of control designed to achieve the 
system and service objectives.  Compliance with the controls is 
considered to be good.  All major risks have been identified and 
are managed effectively. 
 

Substantial Whilst there is a basically sound system of control (i.e. key 
controls), there are weaknesses, which put some of the 
system/service objectives at risk, and/or there is evidence that the 
level on non-compliance with some of the controls may put some 
of the system objectives at risk and result in possible loss or 
material error.   Opportunities to strengthen control still exist. 
 

Reasonable Controls are in place and to varying degrees are complied with 
but there are gaps in the control process, which weaken the 
system and result in residual risk.  There is therefore a need to 
introduce additional controls and/or improve compliance with 
existing controls to reduce the risk to the City Council. 
 

Limited Weaknesses in the system of control and/or the level of 
compliance are such as to put the system objectives at risk.   
Controls are considered to be insufficient with the absence of at 
least one critical or key control.  Failure to improve control or 
compliance lead to an increased risk of loss to the Authority. 
Not all major risks are identified and/or being managed effectively. 
 

No  Control is generally very weak or non-existent, leaving the 
system open to significant error or abuse and high level of 
residual risk to the City Council. 
 
A high number of key risks remain unidentified and/or 
unmanaged. 
 

 
 

 
  
 
 

21



                                                                                                                

                                                                                                                        Annual Report and Opinion 2007 - 2008 

June 08                                                                        Page  15                                           Audit & Assurance Services 

 

Appendix B 
 

Definitions of Audit Recommendations 
 

Priority 
 

Assessment Timescale for 
Implementation 

High Fundamental 
There is a weakness in control that represents 
immediate material risk to the City Council or 
a service and requires urgent attention by 
management. 
 
These issues generally merit the attention of 
senior management. 
 

 
Actions to address 
recommendations 
should in a number 
of cases be 
immediate and at 
least within three 
months. 

Medium Significant 
There is weakness in control and a risk of 
material inaccuracy/loss to the City Council or a 
service area and requires corrective 
action/attention by local management within a 
reasonable period. 
 

 
Should be 
implemented within 
6 months 

Low Merits Attention 
Minor matters where there is a weakness or 
opportunity for improvement, which does not 
expose the service/system under review to any 
significant risk, but management should consider 
taking action.   
 

 
No set time period. 

 
 

22



                                                                                                                

                                                                                                                        Annual Report and Opinion 2007 - 2008 

June 08                                                                        Page  16                                           Audit & Assurance Services 

 

Appendix C 
 
 

Internal Audit Charter 
 
1. Purpose 

 
1.1 This purpose of this charter is to set out the purpose, role, responsibility, status 

and authority of internal auditing within Brighton & Hove City Council 
 
2. Responsibilities & Objectives 

2.1 Internal audit is an assurance function that primarily provides an independent and 
objective opinion to the City Council on the control environment by evaluating its 
effectiveness in achieving the organisation’s objectives.  It objectively examines, 
evaluates and reports on the adequacy of the control environment as a 
contribution to the proper, economic, efficient and effective use of resources.   

 
2.2 The control environment comprises the systems of governance, risk management 

and internal control. 
 
3. Reporting Lines & Relationships 

 
3.1 Audit & Assurance Services provide the City Council’s internal audit function and 

are part of the Finance & Resources Directorate.  The Head of Audit & Assurance 
reports functionally to the Chief Executive, Director of Finance & Resources 
(Section 151 Officer), other Directors and members of the Audit Committee.  
Administratively the Head of Audit & Assurance also reports to the Director of 
Finance & Resources.    

 
3.1 The Audit Committee is responsible for endorsing the Internal Audit Strategy and 

Annual Audit Plan.    The Head of Audit & Assurance reports regularly to the 
Audit Committee on progress against the Annual Audit Plan and key issues arising. 

 
 
4. Independence and Accountability 

 
4.1 Audit & Assurance Services are required to provide an objective and professional 

internal audit service.  To this end it will be independent of the activities which it 
audits to ensure impartial and effective professional judgement and 
recommendations.  To ensure this, Audit & Assurance Services operates within a 
framework that allows unrestricted access to senior management, reporting in its 
own name and segregation from line operations. 

 
4.2 The existence of an internal audit function within the City Council does not 

diminish the responsibility of management to establish systems of internal control 
to ensure that activities are conducted in a secure, efficient and well ordered 
manner. 

 

23



                                                                                                                

                                                                                                                        Annual Report and Opinion 2007 - 2008 

June 08                                                                        Page  17                                           Audit & Assurance Services 

 
   

5. Statutory Role 

 
5.1 Internal auditing is provided as q statutory service in the context of the Accounts 

& Audit Regulations 2006, which states that a relevant body shall maintain an 
adequate and effective system of internal audit of its accounting systems and its 
system of internal control in accordance with the proper Internal audit practices. 

 
5.2 The statutory role is recognised and endorsed within the City Council’s Financial 

Regulations, which provides the authority for unlimited access to officers, 
Members, documents and records and to require information and explanation 
necessary. 

 
6. Consultancy and Advisory Role 

 
6.1 Audit & Assurance Services also perform a consultancy or advisory role on an ad 

hoc basis or as part of the Annual Internal audit Plan, as requested by 
management.   Reports from this type of work contain findings and 
recommendations particularly to add value to the City Council’s services in 
achieving value for money in its use of resources. 

 
7. Internal audit Standards 

 
7.1 There is a statutory requirement for Audit & Assurance Services to work in 

accordance with the ‘proper audit practices’.  These are effectively the CIPFA 
Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local Government that accompanies the 
Accounts & Audit Regulations 2006 

  
8. Internal audit Scope 

 
8.1 The scope for Audit & Assurance Services is ‘the control environment comprising 

risk management, control and governance’. This means that the scope of Audit & 
Assurance Services includes all of the City Council’s operations, resources, 
services and responsibilities in relation to associated partner organisations.   The 
priorities for Audit & Assurance Services will be determined by a process of risk 
assessment. 

 
9 Internal audit Resources 

 
9.1 Audit & Assurance Services will ensure as far as possible that it appropriately 

staffed in terms of numbers, skills and experience.  The Head of Audit & 
Assurance is responsible for appointing of staff and will ensure these are made in 
order to achieve the appropriate mix of qualifications, experience and skills. 

 
9.2 The Head of Audit & Assurance is responsible for ensuring that the resources of 

Audit & Assurance Services are sufficient to meet its responsibilities and achieve 
its objectives.  If a situation arose whereby he concluded that resources were 
insufficient, he must formally report this to the Director of Finance & Resources 
(Section 151 Officer) and the Audit Committee. 

 

24



                                                                                                                

                                                                                                                        Annual Report and Opinion 2007 - 2008 

June 08                                                                        Page  18                                           Audit & Assurance Services 

 
 

9.3 Where necessary to provide an adequate, effective and professional service the 
Head of Audit & Assurance will outsource internal audit work to supplement 
internal resources. 

 
9.4 If Internal auditors are appointed from operational roles elsewhere within the City 

Council, they do not undertake an audit in that area directly within one year 
unless by prior agreement. 

 
10. Fraud and Corruption 

 
10.1 Managing the risk of fraud and corruption is the responsibility of management. 

Internal audit reviews alone, even when performed with due professional care, 
cannot guarantee that fraud or corruption will be detected.    Audit & Assurance 
Services will, however be alert in all their work to risks and exposures that could 
allow fraud or corruption.  

 
10.2 The Head of Audit & Assurance has lead responsibility for corporate counter 

fraud activities including proactive initiatives, maintaining and developing an 
effective framework, and advising management. 

 
11. Reporting Accountabilities 

 
11.1 A written internal audit report will be prepared for every audit carried out and 

issued to the appropriate manager responsible for the area under review.  Internal 
audit reports will include an ‘opinion’ on the risk and adequacy of controls, which 
together will contribute to the annual audit opinion on the City Council’s control 
environment. 

 
11.2 Audit & Assurance Services will make practical recommendations based on the 

findings of the audit work and discuss these with management to establish 
appropriate action plans. 

 
11.3 Management are expected to implement all agreed recommendations within a 

reasonable timeframe.  Each internal audit will be followed up normally within six 
months of issue, in order to ascertain whether agreed actions have been 
implemented effectively. 

 
11.4 The Head of Audit & Assurance reports regularly to the Audit Committee on 

progress made against the Annual Audit Plan and the summarised outcomes of 
individual audits. 

 
11.5 The Head of Audit & Assurance Services provides an Annual Internal Audit Report 

to the Audit Committee that includes an opinion on the adequacy and 
effectiveness of the control environment. 

 
 
 
 
 

25



                                                                                                                

                                                                                                                        Annual Report and Opinion 2007 - 2008 

June 08                                                                        Page  19                                           Audit & Assurance Services 

 
 

12.  Responsibilities 

 
12.1 In meeting its responsibilities, the activities of Audit & Assurance Services will be 

conducted in accordance with the City Council’s objectives, established policies 
and procedures.  In addition, internal auditors comply with the Code of Practice 
for Internal Audit in Local Government (CIPFA). 

 
12.2 Audit & Assurance Services will co-ordinate effectively with the Audit Commission 

(as the City Council’s appointed external auditors) for optimal audit coverage   
and to ensure that appropriate reliance can be placed on internal audit work. 

 
12.3 Audit & Assurance Services will work the internal audit functions of the City 

Council’s partner organisations to ensure the robustness of controls and risk 
management arrangements, to protect the City Council’s interests. 

 
  
 
 
 

 

26



AUDIT COMMITTEE 

 

Agenda Item 16 

Brighton & Hove City Council 

 

 

  

 

Subject: Annual Governance Statement 

Date of Meeting: 26th June 2008 

Report of: Director of Finance & Resources 

Contact Officer: Name:  Ian Withers Tel: 29-1323 

 E-mail: Ian.withers@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

Wards Affected: All  

 

FOR GENERAL RELEASE 

 

 

1. SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT: 
 

1.1 The City Council has a statutory duty under the Accounts and Audit Regulations  

 2003 (amended 2006), to publish an Annual Governance Statement.   

 

1.2 The purpose of this report is to present to Members of the Audit Committee for 
comment, challenge and approval the assessment of the City Council’s corporate 
governance arrangements and Annual Governance Statement. 

 
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 

(1) Consider and approve the annual assessment of the City Council’s corporate 
governance arrangements. 

(2) Consider and approve the Annual Governance Statement for inclusion with the 
Statement of Accounts. 

(3) Note the City Council’s continuing improvements on governance arrangements. 
  

 

3.  BACKGROUND INFORMATION/CHRONOLOGY OF KEY EVENTS: 
  

3.1 The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2003 (amended in 2006) introduced a 
requirement for local authorities to publish a statement on internal control as part 
of their annual statement of accounts.  From 2007/08 this statutory duty has been 
superceded by the requirement to produce an Annual Governance Statement.   

 

3.2 The City Council’s Code of Corporate Governance (approved by Council in 
March 2008) provided the principles against which the effectiveness of the City 
Council’s corporate governance arrangement is measured. 

 

27



3.3 2007/08 is the first year that the Annual Governance Statement has been 
required.  Members should note that the Chief Executive and Leader must sign 
the Statement which will be published with the Statement of Accounts. 

 

3.4 Robust corporate governance arrangements are essential for the sound 
management of Brighton & Hove City Council and public confidence.  It will also 
be an important factor in achieving a high score in the Comprehensive 
Performance Assessment (CPA) for the Use of Resources. 

 

3.5 The review of corporate governance arrangements was carried out using 
guidance provided by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance & Accountancy 
(CIPFA) and Society of Local Authority Chief Executives (SOLACE), to ensure it 
complies with best practice.  Where applicable comparison was also made with 
corporate governance arrangements of other local authorities. 

 

3.6 The Annual Governance Statement contains an action plan for where further 
improvements can be made to the City Council’s governance arrangements.  
This together with previous actions reported and in progress, will be monitoring 
and progress reported to the Members of the Audit Committee. 

 

4. CONSULTATION 

 

4.1 Internal consultation has been carried out with relevant officers and in particular 

  the Officers Governance Board. 
 

5. FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS: 
 

5.1  Financial Implications: 

Sound corporate governance and proper systems of internal control are essential to the 
financial health and reputation of the council. 

 

5.2 Legal Implications: 

The production of the statement meets the requirements of the Accounts and Audit 
Regulations 2003 (Amended 2006) and Comprehensive Performance Assessment. 
 

5.3 Equalities Implications: 

There are no direct equalities implications arising directly from this report 
 

5.4 Sustainability Implications: 

There are no direct sustainability implications arising from this report. 
 

5.5 Crime & Disorder Implications:  

There no direct implications for the prevention of crime and disorder arising from this 
report. 
 

 

28



5.6 Risk and Opportunity Management Implications:  

The preparation of the Annual Governance Statement has been explicitly linked to the 
risk management framework of the City Council.   One of three principles of good 
governance is “taking informed, transparent decisions and managing risk”. 

 

 

5.7 Corporate / Citywide Implications: 

Robust corporate governance arrangements are essential to the sound management of 
the City Council and the achievement of its objectives as set out  in the Corporate Plan. 

 

 

 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

 

Appendices: 
 

1. Assessment of Corporate Governance Arrangements 2007/08 
 

2. Annual Governance Statement 2007/08 
 

 

Background Documents 
 

1. Brighton & Hove City Council’s Code of Corporate Governance 
 

2. CIPFA/SOLACE  Delivering Good Governance in Local Government Framework 
2006 

 

3. Accounts & Audit Regulations 2003 (Amended 2006) 
    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

29



30



 
 

 
 

  
 

 
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

  
1

 

(A
0
0
2
/2

0
0
9
) 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

  
  
  
  
  
 P

re
p
ar

ed
 b

y
: 

Ia
n
 W

it
h
er

s 

 
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
  
H

ea
d
 o

f 
A

u
d
it

 &
 A

ss
u
ra

n
ce

 

 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
D

at
e:

  
Ju

n
e 

2
0
0
8
 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 G

o
v
e
rn

a
n

c
e
 

A
rr

a
n

g
e
m

e
n

ts
 2

0
0
7
/0

8
 

(C
o

m
p

li
a
n

c
e
 w

it
h

 C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
c
il
’s

 C
o

d
e
 o

f 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 G

o
v
e
rn

a
n

c
e
) 

31



(A
0

0
2

/2
0

0
9

) 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

P
ag

e 
N

o
. 
1

 

Ju
n
e 

0
8

 

C
O

R
E

 P
R

IN
C

IP
L

E
 1

: 
C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
 F

O
C

U
S

 
F

o
c
u

s
in

g
 o

n
 t

h
e
 p

u
rp

o
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 C

it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 a

n
d

 o
n

 o
u

tc
o

m
e
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
, 

a
n

d
 c

re
a
ti

n
g

 a
n

d
 i

m
p

le
m

e
n

ti
n

g
 a

 v
is

io
n

 
fo

r 
th

e
 l

o
c

a
l 

a
re

a

T
h
e
 f
u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
g
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
lo

c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
, 

o
th

e
r 

lo
c
a
l 
g
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 o

r 
c
o
n
n
e
c
te

d
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 f
u

lf
il 

th
e

ir
 p

u
rp

o
s
e

 a
n

d
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

 
th

e
ir
 i
n
te

n
d
e
d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
o
r 

c
it
iz

e
n
s
 a

n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 a
n
d
 o

p
e
ra

te
 i
n

 a
n
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
, 
e
ff
ic

ie
n
t,
 e

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 a

n
d
 e

th
ic

a
l 
m

a
n
n

e
r.

  
T

h
is

 c
o

n
c
e
p

t 
s
h

o
u

ld
 g

u
id

e
 a

ll 
g
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
. 

  
L
o
c
a
l 
g
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
b
o
d
ie

s
 n

e
e
d
 t
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
d

 a
rt

ic
u

la
te

 a
 c

le
a
r 

v
is

io
n

 o
f 
th

e
ir
 p

u
rp

o
s
e
 a

n
d

 i
n

te
n

d
e

d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
o
r 

c
it
iz

e
n
s
 a

n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

u
s
e
rs

 t
h
a
t 
is

 c
le

a
rl
y
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
te

d
, 
b
o
th

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n

 a
n
d
 t
o
 e

x
te

rn
a
l 
s
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

. 

D
e
ta

il
e
d

 S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
R

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
C

it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 

C
o

m
p

li
a
n

c
e
 E

v
id

e
n

c
e
 b

y
: 
S

o
u

rc
e
 

D
o

c
u

m
e
n

ts
/P

ro
c
e
ss

e
s 

E
v
a
lu

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 a

c
ti

o
n

s 
re

q
u

ir
e
d

 t
o

 
a
c
h

ie
v
e
 f

u
ll
 c

o
m

p
li
a
n

c
e
  

1.
 E

xe
rc

is
in

g 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

le
ad

er
sh

ip
 

by
 d

ev
el

o
pi

ng
 a

nd
 c

le
ar

ly
 

co
m

m
un

ic
at

in
g 

th
e 

C
it
y 

C
o
un

ci
l’s

 
pu

rp
o
se

 a
nd

 v
is

io
n 

an
d 

it
s 

in
te

nd
ed

 o
ut

co
m

e 
fo

r 
ci

ti
ze

ns
 a

nd
 

se
rv

ic
e 

us
er

s 

1.
1 

D
ev

el
o
p 

an
d 

pr
o
m

o
te

 t
he

 C
it
y 

C
o
un

ci
l’s

 p
ur

po
se

 a
nd

 v
is

io
n 

 
V

is
io

n,
 p

ur
po

se
 a

nd
 v

al
ue

s 
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 |

Pl
an

 
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
o
m

m
un

it
y 

St
ra

te
gy

 
 

Lo
ca

l A
re

a 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t 
 

Lo
ca

l S
tr

at
eg

ic
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

ta
l D

ev
el

o
pm

en
t 

Pl
an

s 
 

T
ea

m
 P

la
ns

 
 

T
ea

m
 P

la
ns

 

T
he

 C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

la
n 

(t
hr

ee
 y

ea
r)

 c
o
nt

ai
ni

ng
 

th
e 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

ri
o
ri

ti
es

 w
as

 n
o
t 

up
da

te
d 

in
 

20
07

/0
8 

du
e 

to
 c

ha
ng

e 
in

 t
he

 c
o
un

ci
l’s

 
ad

m
in

is
tr

at
io

n.
 

 C
ur

re
nt

ly
 b

ei
ng

 u
pd

at
ed

 a
nd

 d
ue

 t
o
 g

o
 t

o
 

C
ab

in
et

 f
o
r 

ap
pr

o
va

l a
nd

 p
ub

lic
at

io
n 

in
 Ju

ne
 

20
08

. 
 A

 n
ew

 b
us

in
es

s 
pl

an
ni

ng
 p

ro
ce

ss
 w

as
 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
in

 2
00

7/
08

, o
ne

 o
bj

ec
ti
ve

 o
f 
w

hi
ch

 
is

 t
o
 im

pr
o
ve

 a
lig

nm
en

t 
o
f 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

to
 

o
bj

ec
ti
ve

s.
  
T

hi
s 

is
 g

o
in

g 
liv

e 
in

 2
00

8/
09

. 
 

 
1.

2 
R

ev
ie

w
 o

n 
a 

re
gu

la
r 

ba
si

s 
th

e 
C

it
y 

C
o
un

ci
l’s

 v
is

io
n 

fo
r 

th
e 

lo
ca

l a
re

a 
an

d 
it
s 

im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 f
o
r 

th
e 

it
s 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 
 

 
Su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
C

o
m

m
un

it
y 

St
ra

te
gy

 
 

Lo
ca

l S
tr

at
eg

ic
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 

 
A

nn
ua

l r
ev

ie
w

 o
f 
co

ns
ti
tu

ti
o
n 

 
Lo

ca
l A

re
a 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
m

o
ni

to
ri

ng
 o

f d
el

iv
er

y 
 

C
o
m

pl
ia

nt
 

 
1.

3 
En

su
re

 t
ha

t 
pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

ps
 a

re
 

un
de

rp
in

ne
d 

by
 a

 c
o
m

m
o
n 

vi
si

o
n 

o
f 
th

ei
r 

w
o
rk

 t
ha

t 
is

 u
nd

er
st

o
o
d 

an
d 

ag
re

ed
 b

y 
al

l 
pa

rt
ne

rs
. 

 
Pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

p 
pr

o
to

co
ls

 
 

C
o
de

 o
f 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 G

o
ve

rn
an

ce
 

 
Lo

ca
l A

re
a 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t 

 
Lo

ca
l S

tr
at

eg
ic

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
o
m

m
un

it
y 

St
ra

te
gy

 
    

C
o
m

pl
et

io
n 

o
f S

ec
ti
o
n 

75
 A

gr
ee

m
en

t 

32



(A
0

0
2

/2
0

0
9

) 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

P
ag

e 
N

o
. 
2

 

Ju
n
e 

0
8

 

D
e
ta

il
e
d

 S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
R

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
C

it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 

C
o

m
p

li
a
n

c
e
 E

v
id

e
n

c
e
 b

y
: 
S

o
u

rc
e
 

D
o

c
u

m
e
n

ts
/P

ro
c
e
ss

e
s 

E
v
a
lu

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 a

c
ti

o
n

s 
re

q
u

ir
e
d

 t
o

 
a
c
h

ie
v
e
 f

u
ll
 c

o
m

p
li
a
n

c
e
  

 
1.

4 
Pu

bl
is

h 
an

 a
nn

ua
l r

ep
o
rt

 o
n 

a 
ti
m

el
y 

ba
si

s 
to

 c
o
m

m
un

ic
at

e 
th

e 
C

it
y 

C
o
un

ci
l’s

 
ac

ti
vi

ti
es

 a
nd

 a
ch

ie
ve

m
en

ts
, i

ts
 f
in

an
ci

al
 

po
si

ti
o
n 

an
d 

pe
rf

o
rm

an
ce

 

 
A

nn
ua

l R
ep

o
rt

 
 

St
at

em
en

t 
o
f 
A

cc
o
un

ts
 

 
A

nn
ua

l A
ud

it
 &

 I
ns

pe
ct

io
n 

Le
tt

er
 

 
C

o
m

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

(C
PA

) 
 

A
nn

ua
l I

nt
er

na
l A

ud
it
 R

ep
o
rt

 
 

Ex
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it
o
r’

s 
 A

ud
it

 a
nd

 
In

sp
ec

ti
o
n 

Le
tt

er
 

 

A
nn

ua
l R

ep
o
rt

 a
nd

 S
ta

te
m

en
t 

o
f 
A

cc
o
un

ts
 

pr
o
du

ce
d 

fo
r 

20
07

/0
8 

bu
t 

co
nt

ai
ne

d 
pr

in
ci

pa
lly

 f
in

an
ci

al
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n.
  
 

 C
o
ns

id
er

at
io

n 
be

in
g 

gi
ve

n 
to

 e
xp

an
di

ng
 t

he
 

sc
o
pe

 t
o
 in

cl
ud

e 
gr

ea
te

r 
pe

rf
o
rm

an
ce

 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n.
 

 Im
pr

o
ve

d 
ac

ce
ss

 t
o
 t

o
o
ls

 a
nd

 t
ra

in
in

g 
fo

r 
Fi

na
nc

ia
l M

an
ag

em
en

t.
 

 
2.

 E
ns

ur
in

g 
th

at
 u

se
rs

 r
ec

ei
ve

 a
 

hi
gh

 q
ua

lit
y 

o
f s

er
vi

ce
 w

he
th

er
 

di
re

ct
ly

, o
r 

in
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
, o

r 
by

 
co

m
m

is
si

o
ni

ng
 

2.
1 

D
ec

id
e 

ho
w

 t
he

 q
ua

lit
y 

o
f 
se

rv
ic

e 
fo

r 
us

er
s 

is
 t

o
 b

e 
m

ea
su

re
d 

an
d 

m
ak

e 
su

re
 

th
at

 t
he

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ne
ed

ed
 t

o
 r

ev
ie

w
 

se
rv

ic
e 

qu
al

it
y 

ef
fe

ct
iv

el
y 

an
d 

re
gu

la
rl

y 
is

 
av

ai
la

bl
e.

 

 
C

it
y 

V
ie

w
s 

20
07

 
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

la
n 

M
o
ni

to
ri

ng
 

 
Pe

rf
o
rm

an
ce

 M
o
ni

to
ri

ng
/I
nd

ic
at

o
rs

 
 

T
ea

m
 P

la
nn

in
g 

Pr
o
ce

ss
 

 
LA

A
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
Fr

am
ew

o
rk

 
 

T
he

 C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

la
n 

(t
hr

ee
 y

ea
r)

 c
o
nt

ai
ni

ng
 

th
e 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

ri
o
ri

ti
es

 w
as

 n
o
t 

up
da

te
d 

in
 

20
07

/0
8 

du
e 

to
 c

ha
ng

e 
in

 t
he

 c
o
un

ci
l’s

 
ad

m
in

is
tr

at
io

n.
 

 

 
2.

2 
Pu

t 
in

 p
la

ce
 e

ffe
ct

iv
e 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 t
o
 

id
en

ti
fy

 a
nd

 d
ea

l w
it
h 

fa
ilu

re
 in

 s
er

vi
ce

 
de

liv
er

y 
 

 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 C

o
m

pl
ai

nt
s 

Pr
o
ce

du
re

 
 

Pe
rf

o
rm

an
ce

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

Sy
st

em
 

C
o
m

pl
ia

nt
 

3.
 E

ns
ur

in
g 

th
at

 t
he

 C
it
y 

C
o
un

ci
l 

m
ak

es
 b

es
t 

us
e 

o
f 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

an
d 

th
at

 t
he

 t
ax

 p
ay

er
s 

an
d 

se
rv

ic
e 

us
er

s 
re

ce
iv

e 
ex

ce
lle

nt
 v

al
ue

 f
o
r 

m
o
ne

y 
(V

FM
) 

3.
1 

D
ec

id
e 

ho
w

 V
FM

 is
 t

o
 b

e 
m

ea
su

re
d 

an
d 

m
ak

e 
su

re
 t

ha
t 

th
e 

C
it
y 

C
o
un

ci
l o

r 
pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

p 
ha

s 
th

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
ne

ed
ed

 
to

 r
ev

ie
w

 V
FM

 a
nd

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
ef

fe
ct

iv
el

y.
  
 

 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

ro
cu

re
m

en
t 

St
ra

te
gy

 
 

C
PA

 U
se

 o
f 
R

es
o
ur

ce
s 

K
LO

E 
5 

 
A

nn
ua

l E
ffi

ci
en

cy
 S

ta
te

m
en

t 
 

Ex
te

rn
al

 
A

ud
it
o
r’

s 
A

ud
it
 

an
d 

In
sp

ec
ti
o
n 

Le
tt

er
 

 
Pe

rf
o
rm

an
ce

 I
nd

ic
at

o
rs

 
 

V
FM

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

ta
l 

Pr
o
gr

es
s 

R
ep

o
rt

s 
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
ta

l D
ev

el
o
pm

en
t 

Pl
an

s 
 

T
ea

m
 P

la
ns

 
 

H
R

 
M

IS
 

Sy
st

em
 

to
 

ef
fe

ct
iv

el
y 

m
an

ag
e 

w
o
rk

fo
rc

e 
 

Ex
te

rn
al

ly
 

m
ea

su
re

d 
(A

ud
it
 

C
o
m

m
is

si
o
n)

 V
FM

 ‘h
o
ts

po
ts

’. 
 

M
ed

iu
m

 T
er

m
 F

in
an

ci
al

 S
tr

at
eg

y 
 

Pe
rf

o
rm

an
ce

 P
la

n 
 

PW
C

 e
ng

ag
ed

 t
o
 h

el
p 

bu
ild

 u
p 

kn
o
w

le
dg

e,
 

ca
pt

iv
it
y 

an
d 

sk
ill

s 
in

te
rn

al
ly

 
to

 
pr

o
vi

de
 

o
ng

o
in

g 
su

pp
o
rt

 t
o
 V

FM
 r

ev
ie

w
s.

  
 

 W
o
rk

 
pr

o
gr

am
m

e 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

fo
r 

ea
ch

 
di

re
ct

o
ra

te
 

an
d 

V
FM

 
re

vi
ew

s 
be

in
g 

un
de

rt
ak

en
 e

.g
. A

du
lt
 S

o
ci

al
 C

ar
e.

 
 D

ev
el

o
pm

en
t 

an
d 

in
tr

o
du

ct
io

n 
o
f 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 
m

o
du

le
 

fo
r 

V
al

ue
 

fo
r 

M
o
ne

y 
in

 
C

o
nt

ra
ct

 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
re

qu
ir

ed
. 

 A
cq

ui
si

ti
o
n 

an
d 

im
pl

em
en

ta
ti
o
n 

o
f 

H
R

 M
IS

 
to

 
en

ha
nc

e 
co

nt
ro

l 
an

d 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
o
f 

w
o
rk

fo
rc

e.
 

  

33



(A
0

0
2

/2
0

0
9

) 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

P
ag

e 
N

o
. 
3

 

Ju
n
e 

0
8

 

D
e
ta

il
e
d

 S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
R

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
C

it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 

C
o

m
p

li
a
n

c
e
 E

v
id

e
n

c
e
 b

y
: 
S

o
u

rc
e
 

D
o

c
u

m
e
n

ts
/P

ro
c
e
ss

e
s 

E
v
a
lu

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 a

c
ti

o
n

s 
re

q
u

ir
e
d

 t
o

 
a
c
h

ie
v
e
 f

u
ll
 c

o
m

p
li
a
n

c
e
  

 
3.

2 
M

ea
su

re
 t

he
 e

nv
ir

o
nm

en
ta

l i
m

pa
ct

 o
f 

po
lic

ie
s,

 p
la

ns
 a

nd
 d

ec
is

io
ns

 
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e 
re

po
rt

s 
(s

us
ta

in
ab

ili
ty

 
im

pl
ic

at
io

ns
) 

 
T

ea
m

 
Pl

an
ni

ng
/B

us
in

es
s 

Pl
an

ni
ng

 
Pr

o
ce

ss
 

 

C
o
m

pl
ia

nt
 

 R
e
fe

re
n

c
e
 D

o
c
u

m
e
n

ts
 

St
ro

ng
 a

nd
 P

ro
sp

er
o
us

 C
o
m

m
un

it
ie

s 
D

C
LG

 (
O

ct
o
be

r 
20

06
) 

34



(A
0

0
2

/2
0

0
9

) 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

P
ag

e 
N

o
. 
4

 

Ju
n
e 

0
8

 

C
O

R
E

 P
R

IN
C

IP
L

E
 2

: 
C

O
M

M
O

N
 P

U
R

P
O

S
E

 
M

e
m

b
e
rs

 a
n

d
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 w
o

rk
in

g
 t

o
g

e
th

e
r 

to
 a

c
h

ie
v
e
 a

 c
o

m
m

o
n

 p
u

rp
o

s
e
 w

it
h

 c
le

a
rl

y
 d

e
fi

n
e
d

 f
u

n
c
ti

o
n

s
 a

n
d

 r
o

le
s
 

 
T

he
 g

o
ve

rn
in

g 
bo

dy
 o

f 
an

 o
rg

an
is

at
io

n 
ha

s 
o
ve

ra
ll 

re
sp

o
ns

ib
ili

ty
 f
o
r 

di
re

ct
in

g 
an

d 
co

nt
ro

lli
ng

 t
ha

t 
o
rg

an
is

at
io

n.
  

In
 lo

ca
l g

o
ve

rn
m

en
t 

th
e 

go
ve

rn
in

g 
bo

dy
 is

 t
he

 f
ul

l c
o
un

ci
l o

r 
au

th
o
ri

ty
.  

Fu
rt

he
r 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

o
n 

th
e 

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
an

d 
ro

le
s 

o
f 
th

e 
lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

ri
ty

 g
o
ve

rn
in

g 
bo

di
es

 is
 in

cl
ud

ed
 

in
 t

he
 g

ui
da

nc
e 

no
te

s 
to

 t
he

 f
ra

m
ew

o
rk

. 
 

D
e
ta

il
e
d

 S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
R

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
C

it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 

C
o

m
p

li
a
n

c
e
 E

v
id

e
n

c
e
 b

y
: 
S

o
u

rc
e
 

D
o

c
u

m
e
n

ts
/P

ro
c
e
ss

e
s 

E
v
a
lu

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 a

c
ti

o
n

s 
re

q
u

ir
e
d

 t
o

 
a
c
h

ie
v
e
 f

u
ll
 c

o
m

p
li
a
n

c
e
 

1.
  
En

su
ri

ng
 e

ffe
ct

iv
e 

le
ad

er
sh

ip
 

th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 t

he
 C

it
y 

C
o
un

ci
l a

nd
 

be
in

g 
cl

ea
r 

ab
o
ut

 e
xe

cu
ti
ve

 a
nd

 
no

n-
ex

ec
ut

iv
e 

fu
nc

ti
o
ns

 a
nd

 t
he

 
ro

le
s 

an
d 

re
sp

o
ns

ib
ili

ti
es

 o
f 
th

e 
sc

ru
ti
ny

 fu
nc

ti
o
n 

1.
1 

Se
t 

o
ut

 a
 c

le
ar

 s
ta

te
m

en
t 

o
f 
th

e 
re

sp
ec

ti
ve

 r
o
le

s 
an

d 
re

sp
o
ns

ib
ili

ti
es

 o
f 

th
e 

ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
an

d 
o
f 
th

e 
ex

ec
ut

iv
e’

s 
m

em
be

rs
 in

di
vi

du
al

ly
 a

nd
 t

he
 C

it
y 

C
o
un

ci
l’s

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
to

w
ar

ds
 p

ut
ti
ng

 t
hi

s 
in

 p
ra

ct
ic

e.
 

 

 
C

it
y 

C
o
un

ci
l’s

 C
o
ns

ti
tu

ti
o
n 

 
M

in
ut

es
 o

f m
ee

ti
ng

s 
C

o
m

pl
ia

nt
 

 Po
st

 im
pl

em
en

ta
ti
o
n 

re
vi

ew
 o

f 
th

e 
C

it
y 

C
o
un

ci
l’s

 C
o
ns

ti
tu

ti
o
n 

to
 b

e 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 a
ft

er
 

si
x 

m
o
nt

hs
. 

 
1.

2 
Se

t 
o
ut

 a
 c

le
ar

 s
ta

te
m

en
t 

o
f 
th

e 
re

sp
ec

ti
ve

 r
o
le

s 
an

d 
re

sp
o
ns

ib
ili

ti
es

 o
f 

o
th

er
 C

it
y 

C
o
un

ci
l m

em
be

rs
, m

em
be

rs
 

ge
ne

ra
lly

 a
nd

 o
f 
se

ni
o
r 

o
ffi

ce
rs

. 
 

 
C

it
y 

C
o
un

ci
l’s

 C
o
ns

ti
tu

ti
o
n 

(S
ch

em
e 

o
f 
D

el
eg

at
io

n)
 

 
Jo

b 
D

es
cr

ip
ti
o
ns

 o
f 
O

ffi
ce

rs
 a

nd
  

M
em

be
rs

 
 

N
o
 c

le
ar

 p
ro

ce
ss

 f
o
r 

up
da

ti
ng

 o
ffi

ce
r’

s 
jo

b 
de

sc
ri

pt
io

ns
 t

o
 r

ef
le

ct
 c

ur
re

nt
 d

ut
ie

s.
  
T

he
se

 
sh

o
ul

d 
be

 r
ev

ie
w

ed
 a

t 
le

as
t 

an
nu

al
ly

 a
s 

pa
rt

 o
f 

PD
PS

 p
ro

ce
ss

. 
 C

o
ns

id
er

at
io

n 
st

ill
 b

ei
ng

 g
iv

en
 t

o
 in

tr
o
du

ct
io

n 
o
f 
M

em
be

rs
 J
o
b 

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o
ns

 
  

2.
 E

ns
ur

in
g 

th
at

 a
 c

o
ns

tr
uc

ti
ve

 
w

o
rk

in
g 

re
la

ti
o
ns

hi
p 

ex
is

ts
 

be
tw

ee
n 

C
it
y 

C
o
un

ci
l m

em
be

rs
 

an
d 

o
ffi

ce
rs

 a
nd

 t
ha

t 
th

e 
re

sp
o
ns

ib
ili

ti
es

 o
f 
m

em
be

rs
 a

nd
 

o
ffi

ce
rs

 a
re

 c
ar

ri
ed

 o
ut

 t
o
 a

 h
ig

h 
st

an
da

rd
 

2.
1 

D
et

er
m

in
e 

a 
sc

he
m

e 
o
f 
de

le
ga

ti
o
n 

an
d 

re
se

rv
e 

po
w

er
s 

w
it
hi

n 
th

e 
co

ns
ti
tu

ti
o
n,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
a 

fo
rm

al
 s

ch
ed

ul
e 

o
f 
th

o
se

 m
at

te
rs

 s
pe

ci
fic

al
ly

 r
es

er
ve

d 
fo

r 
co

lle
ct

iv
e 

de
ci

si
o
n 

o
f 
th

e 
C

it
y 

C
o
un

ci
l, 

ta
ki

ng
 a

cc
o
un

t 
o
f 
re

le
va

nt
 le

gi
sl

at
io

n 
an

d 
en

su
re

 t
ha

t 
it
 is

 m
o
ni

to
re

d 
an

d 
up

da
te

d 
w

he
n 

re
qu

ir
ed

. 
  

 
C

it
y 

C
o
un

ci
l’s

 C
o
ns

ti
tu

ti
o
n 

  

C
o
m

pl
ia

nt
 

 
2.

.2
 M

ak
e 

th
e 

C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

ti
ve

 
re

sp
o
ns

ib
le

 a
nd

 a
cc

o
un

ta
bl

e 
to

 t
he

 C
it
y 

C
o
un

ci
l f

o
r 

al
l a

sp
ec

ts
 o

f 
o
pe

ra
ti
o
na

l 
m

an
ag

em
en

t.
 

 
C

it
y 

C
o
un

ci
l’s

 C
o
ns

ti
tu

ti
o
n 

 
Jo

b 
de

sc
ri

pt
io

n/
Pe

rs
o
n 

Sp
ec

ifi
ca

ti
o
n 

 
o
f 
C

hi
ef

 E
xe

cu
ti
ve

 
 

Pe
rf

o
rm

an
ce

 I
nd

ic
at

o
rs

 
 

C
o
m

pl
ia

nt
 

35



(A
0

0
2

/2
0

0
9

) 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

P
ag

e 
N

o
. 
5

 

Ju
n
e 

0
8

 

D
e
ta

il
e
d

 S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
R

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
C

it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 

C
o

m
p

li
a
n

c
e
 E

v
id

e
n

c
e
 b

y
: 
S

o
u

rc
e
 

D
o

c
u

m
e
n

ts
/P

ro
c
e
ss

e
s 

E
v
a
lu

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 a

c
ti

o
n

s 
re

q
u

ir
e
d

 t
o

 
a
c
h

ie
v
e
 f

u
ll
 c

o
m

p
li
a
n

c
e
 

 
2.

3 
D

ev
el

o
p 

pr
o
to

co
ls

 t
o
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 t

he
 

Le
ad

er
 a

nd
 C

hi
ef

 E
xe

cu
ti
ve

 n
eg

o
ti
at

e 
th

ei
r 

re
sp

ec
ti
ve

 r
o
le

s 
ea

rl
y 

in
 t

he
 

re
la

ti
o
ns

hi
p 

an
d 

th
at

 a
 s

ha
re

d 
un

de
rs

ta
nd

in
g 

o
f 
ro

le
s 

an
d 

o
bj

ec
ti
ve

s 
is

 
m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d.
 

 

 
Jo

b 
D

es
cr

ip
ti
o
ns

 
 

M
em

be
r/

O
ffi

ce
r 

Pr
o
to

co
l 

 
A

nn
ua

l r
ev

ie
w

 o
f 
co

ns
ti
tu

ti
o
n 

 
R

eg
ul

ar
 m

ee
ti
ng

s 
be

tw
ee

n 
th

e 
Le

ad
er

 a
nd

 C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

ti
ve

 
 

C
o
m

pl
ia

nt
 

 
2.

4 
M

ak
e 

a 
se

ni
o
r 

o
ffi

ce
r 

(t
he

 s
15

1 
o
ffi

ce
r)

 r
es

po
ns

ib
le

 f
o
r 

en
su

ri
ng

 t
ha

t 
ap

pr
o
pr

ia
te

 a
dv

ic
e 

is
 g

iv
en

 o
n 

al
l f

in
an

ci
al

 
m

at
te

rs
, f

o
r 

ke
ep

in
g 

pr
o
pe

r 
fin

an
ci

al
 

re
co

rd
s 

an
d 

ac
co

un
ts

 a
nd

 f
o
r 

m
ai

nt
ai

ni
ng

 
an

 e
ffe

ct
iv

e 
sy

st
em

 o
f 
in

te
rn

al
 f
in

an
ci

al
 

co
nt

ro
l 

 

 
Lo

ca
l 

G
o
ve

rn
m

en
t 

&
 H

o
us

in
g 

A
ct

 
19

89
  
- 

Se
ct

io
n 

15
1 

R
es

po
ns

ib
ili

ti
es

 
 

C
it
y 

C
o
un

ci
l’s

 C
o
ns

ti
tu

ti
o
n 

 
 

A
cc

o
un

ts
 &

 A
ud

it
 R

eg
ul

at
io

ns
 2

00
3 

(A
m

en
de

d 
20

06
) 

 
St

at
ut

o
ry

 r
ep

o
rt

s 
 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l R
eg

ul
at

io
ns

 
 

Jo
b 

de
sc

ri
pt

io
n/

pe
rs

o
n 

sp
ec

ifi
ca

ti
o
n 

 
M

ed
iu

m
 T

er
m

 F
in

an
ci

al
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
it
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

an
d 

C
ha

rt
er

 
 

A
nn

ua
l 

as
su

ra
nc

e 
o
pi

ni
o
n 

by
 H

ea
d 

o
f 
A

ud
it
 &

 A
ss

ur
an

ce
 

 
Fi

na
nc

ia
l i

m
pl

ic
at

io
n 

o
n 

re
po

rt
s 

 

C
o
m

pl
ia

nt
 

 
2.

5 
M

ak
e 

a 
se

ni
o
r 

o
ffi

ce
r 

(u
su

al
ly

 t
he

 
m

o
ni

to
ri

ng
 o

ffi
ce

r)
 r

es
po

ns
ib

le
 t

o
 t

he
 

C
it
y 

C
o
un

ci
l f

o
r 

en
su

ri
ng

 t
ha

t 
ag

re
ed

 
pr

o
ce

du
re

s 
ar

e 
fo

llo
w

ed
 a

nd
 t

ha
t 

al
l 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
 s

ta
tu

te
s 

an
d 

re
gu

la
ti
o
ns

 a
re

 
co

m
pl

ie
d 

w
it
h.

 
 

 
M

o
ni

to
ri

ng
 O

ffi
ce

r 
Le

gi
sl

at
io

n 
 

Lo
ca

l G
o
ve

rn
m

en
t 

&
 H

o
us

in
g 

A
ct

 
19

89
 –

 S
ec

ti
o
n 

5 
 

C
it
y 

C
o
un

ci
l’s

 C
o
ns

ti
tu

ti
o
n 

 
M

o
ni

to
ri

ng
 O

ffi
ce

r 
Pr

o
to

co
l 

 
Jo

b 
D

es
cr

ip
ti
o
ns

/p
er

so
n 

sp
ec

ifi
ca

ti
o
n 

 
Pe

rf
o
rm

an
ce

 D
ev

el
o
pm

en
t 

Pl
an

ni
ng

 
Sc

he
m

e 
 

C
o
m

pl
ia

nt
 

3.
 E

ns
ur

in
g 

re
la

ti
o
ns

hi
ps

 b
et

w
ee

n 
th

e 
C

it
y 

C
o
un

ci
l, 

it
s 

pa
rt

ne
rs

 a
nd

 
th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 a
re

 c
le

ar
 s

o
 t

ha
t 

ea
ch

 
kn

o
w

s 
w

ha
t 

to
 e

xp
ec

t 
fr

o
m

 t
he

 
o
th

er
 

3.
1 

D
ev

el
o
p 

pr
o
to

co
ls

 t
o
 e

ns
ur

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

co
m

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

be
tw

ee
n 

m
em

be
rs

 a
nd

 o
ffi

ce
rs

 in
 t

he
ir

 r
es

pe
ct

iv
e 

ro
le

s 
    

 
M

em
be

r/
o
ffi

ce
r 

pr
o
to

co
l 

 
C

o
m

pl
ia

nt
 

36



(A
0

0
2

/2
0

0
9

) 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

P
ag

e 
N

o
. 
6

 

Ju
n
e 

0
8

 

D
e
ta

il
e
d

 S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
R

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
C

it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 

C
o

m
p

li
a
n

c
e
 E

v
id

e
n

c
e
 b

y
: 
S

o
u

rc
e
 

D
o

c
u

m
e
n

ts
/P

ro
c
e
ss

e
s 

E
v
a
lu

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 a

c
ti

o
n

s 
re

q
u

ir
e
d

 t
o

 
a
c
h

ie
v
e
 f

u
ll
 c

o
m

p
li
a
n

c
e
 

 
3.

,2
 S

et
 o

ut
 t

he
 t

er
m

s 
an

d 
co

nd
it
io

ns
 f
o
r 

re
m

un
er

at
io

n 
o
f 
m

em
be

rs
 a

nd
 o

ffi
ce

rs
 

an
d 

an
 e

ffe
ct

iv
e 

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
fo

r 
m

an
ag

in
g 

th
e 

pr
o
ce

ss
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 a
n 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
re

m
un

er
at

io
n 

pa
ne

l. 
 

 
In

de
pe

nd
en

t 
R

em
un

er
at

io
n 

Pa
ne

l 
 

M
em

be
rs

 A
llo

w
an

ce
s 

 S
ch

em
e 

 
C

o
nt

ra
ct

s 
o
f 
em

pl
o
ym

en
t 

 
N

at
io

na
l p

ay
 s

ca
le

s 
 

O
ne

 a
re

a 
w

he
re

 w
o
rk

 is
 s

ti
ll 

o
ng

o
in

g 
is

 t
he

 
pa

y 
an

d 
gr

ad
in

g 
re

vi
ew

 (
Si

ng
le

 S
ta

tu
s)

 f
o
r 

co
m

pa
ra

bi
lit

y.
  
  
D

el
ay

s 
ha

ve
 o

cc
ur

re
d 

du
e 

to
 

th
e 

co
m

pl
ex

it
y 

o
f 
pa

y 
an

d 
gr

ad
in

g 
ac

ro
ss

 t
he

 
C

o
un

ci
l a

nd
 p

o
te

nt
ia

l r
is

k 
o
f l

ia
bi

lit
y 

cl
ai

m
s 

if 
ge

t 
th

in
gs

 w
ro

ng
. 

 
 

3.
3 

En
su

re
 t

ha
t 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
m

ec
ha

ni
sm

s 
ex

is
t 

to
 m

o
ni

to
r 

se
rv

ic
e 

de
liv

er
y.

 
 

 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

la
n 

 
Lo

ca
l A

re
a 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t 

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

ta
l D

ev
el

o
pm

en
t 

Pl
an

s 
 

T
ea

m
 P

la
ns

 
 

PD
P 

Pr
o
ce

ss
 

 
B

ud
ge

t 
R

ep
o
rt

s 
 

Pe
ri

o
di

c 
Pe

rf
o
rm

an
ce

 R
ep

o
rt

s 
 

C
o
m

pl
ia

nt
 

 
3.

4 
En

su
re

 t
ha

t 
th

e 
o
rg

an
is

at
io

n’
s 

vi
si

o
n,

 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

pl
an

s,
 p

ri
o
ri

ti
es

 a
nd

 t
ar

ge
ts

 a
re

 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

ro
bu

st
 m

ec
ha

ni
sm

s,
 

an
d 

in
 c

o
ns

ul
ta

ti
o
n 

w
it
h 

th
e 

lo
ca

l 
co

m
m

un
it
y 

an
d 

o
th

er
 k

ey
 s

ta
ke

ho
ld

er
s,

 
an

d 
th

at
 t

he
y 

ar
e 

cl
ea

rl
y 

ar
ti
cu

la
te

d 
an

d 
di

ss
em

in
at

ed
. 

 

 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

la
ns

 
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
o
m

m
un

it
y 

St
ra

te
gy

 
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
ta

l D
ev

el
o
pm

en
t 

Pl
an

s 
 

C
o
ns

ul
ta

ti
o
n 

 
T

ea
m

 P
la

ns
 

 
N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
o
d 

R
en

ew
al

 S
tr

at
eg

y 
 

Lo
ca

l A
re

a 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t 
 

Pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p 

A
gr

ee
m

en
ts

 
 

C
o
m

pl
ia

nt
 

 
3.

5 
W

he
n 

w
o
rk

in
g 

in
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
, e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 m

em
be

rs
 a

re
 c

le
ar

 a
bo

ut
 t

he
ir

 r
o
le

s 
an

d 
re

sp
o
ns

ib
ili

ti
es

 b
o
th

 in
di

vi
du

al
ly

 a
nd

 
co

lle
ct

iv
el

y 
in

 r
el

at
io

n 
to

 t
he

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 
an

d 
to

 t
he

 C
it
y 

C
o
un

ci
l. 

 

 
Lo

ca
l S

tr
at

eg
ic

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 
 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l R
eg

ul
at

io
ns

 
 

Pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p 

A
gr

ee
m

en
ts

  
 

Pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 
 

M
em

be
rs

 p
ac

k 
20

08
 

  

C
o
m

pl
ia

nt
 

 
3.

6 
W

he
n 

w
o
rk

in
g 

in
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
, 

en
su

re
: 

 
th

at
 t

he
re

 is
 c

la
ri

ty
 a

bo
ut

 t
he

 le
ga

l 
st

at
us

 o
f t

he
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
;  

an
d 

 
   

 
Lo

ca
l S

tr
at

eg
ic

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

  
 

Pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p 

ag
re

em
en

ts
 

 
Fi

na
nc

ia
l R

eg
ul

at
io

ns
 

C
o
m

pl
ia

nt
 

37



(A
0

0
2

/2
0

0
9

) 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

P
ag

e 
N

o
. 
7

 

Ju
n
e 

0
8

 

D
e
ta

il
e
d

 S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
R

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
C

it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 

C
o

m
p

li
a
n

c
e
 E

v
id

e
n

c
e
 b

y
: 
S

o
u

rc
e
 

D
o

c
u

m
e
n

ts
/P

ro
c
e
ss

e
s 

E
v
a
lu

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 a

c
ti

o
n

s 
re

q
u

ir
e
d

 t
o

 
a
c
h

ie
v
e
 f

u
ll
 c

o
m

p
li
a
n

c
e
 

 
th

at
 r

ep
re

se
nt

at
iv

es
 o

f 
o
rg

an
is

at
io

ns
 

bo
th

 u
nd

er
st

an
d 

an
d 

m
ak

e 
cl

ea
r 

to
 a

ll 
pa

rt
ne

rs
 t

he
 e

xt
en

t 
o
f 
th

ei
r 

au
th

o
ri

ty
 

to
 b

in
d 

th
ei

r 
o
rg

an
is

at
io

ns
 t

o
 p

ar
tn

er
 

de
ci

si
o
ns

. 
 

   R
e
fe

re
n

c
e
 D

o
c
u

m
e
n

ts
 

C
ha

ng
in

g 
O

rg
an

is
at

io
na

l C
ul

tu
re

s,
 A

ud
it
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o
n 

(2
00

5)
 

38



(A
0

0
2

/2
0

0
9

) 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

P
ag

e 
N

o
. 
8

 

Ju
n
e 

0
8

 

C
O

R
E

 P
R

IN
C

IP
L

E
 3

: 
C

O
N

D
U

C
T

 A
N

D
 B

E
H

A
V

IO
U

R
 

P
ro

m
o

ti
n

g
 v

a
lu

e
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 C

it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 a

n
d

 d
e
m

o
n

s
tr

a
ti

n
g

 t
h

e
 v

a
lu

e
s
 o

f 
g

o
o

d
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n

c
e
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 u

p
h

o
ld

in
g

 h
ig

h
 s

ta
n

d
a
rd

s
 

o
f 

c
o

n
d

u
c
t 

a
n

d
 b

e
h

a
v
io

u
r 

 G
o
o
d 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
 f
lo

w
s 

fr
o
m

 a
 s

ha
re

d 
et

ho
s 

o
r 

cu
lt
ur

e,
 a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
fr

o
m

 s
ys

te
m

s 
an

d 
st

ru
ct

ur
es

.  
It

 c
an

no
t 

be
 r

ed
uc

ed
 t

o
 a

 s
et

 o
f 
ru

le
s,

 o
r 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 f
ul

ly
 b

y 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

it
h 

a 
se

t 
o
f 
re

qu
ir

em
en

ts
.  

T
hi

s 
sp

ir
it
 o

r 
th

o
se

 o
f 
go

o
d 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
 c

an
 b

e 
ex

pr
es

se
d 

as
 v

al
ue

s 
an

d 
de

m
o
ns

tr
at

ed
 in

 b
eh

av
io

ur
.  

 
 G

o
o
d 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
 b

ui
ld

s 
o
n 

th
e 

se
ve

n 
pr

in
ci

pl
es

 f
o
r 

th
e 

co
nd

uc
t 

o
f 
pe

o
pl

e 
in

 p
ub

lic
 li

fe
 t

ha
t 

w
er

e 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d 
by

 t
he

 C
o
m

m
it
te

e 
o
n 

St
an

da
rd

s 
n 

Pu
bl

ic
 L

ife
, k

no
w

n 
as

 t
he

 
N

o
la

n 
Pr

in
ci

pl
es

.  
In

 E
ng

la
nd

, t
he

 L
o
ca

l G
o
ve

rn
m

en
t 

A
ct

 2
00

0 
o
ut

lin
ed

 t
en

 p
ri

nc
ip

le
s 

o
f 
co

nd
uc

t 
– 

an
 a

dd
it
io

na
l t

hr
ee

 t
o
 t

ho
se

 id
en

ti
fie

d 
by

 N
o
la

n.
 

 D
e
ta

il
e
d

 S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
R

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
C

it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 

C
o

m
p

li
a
n

c
e
 E

v
id

e
n

c
e
 b

y
: 
S

o
u

rc
e
 

D
o

c
u

m
e
n

ts
/P

ro
c
e
ss

e
s 

E
v
a
lu

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 a

c
ti

o
n

s 
re

q
u

ir
e
d

 t
o

 
a
c
h

ie
v
e
 f

u
ll
 c

o
m

p
li
a
n

c
e
 

1.
 E

ns
ur

in
g 

C
it
y 

C
o
un

ci
l 

m
em

be
rs

 a
nd

 o
ffi

ce
rs

 e
xe

rc
is

e 
le

ad
er

sh
ip

 b
y 

be
ha

vi
ng

 in
 w

ay
s 

th
at

 e
xe

m
pl

ify
 h

ig
h 

st
an

da
rd

s 
o
f 

co
nd

uc
t 

an
d 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
go

ve
rn

an
ce

 

1.
1 

En
su

re
 t

ha
t 

th
e 

C
it
y 

C
o
un

ci
l’s

 
le

ad
er

sh
ip

 s
et

s 
a 

to
ne

 f
o
r 

th
e 

o
rg

an
is

at
io

n 
by

 c
re

at
in

g 
a 

cl
im

at
e 

o
f 

o
pe

nn
es

s,
 s

up
po

rt
 a

nd
 r

es
pe

ct
. 

 
Su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
C

o
m

m
un

it
y 

St
ra

te
gy

 
 

M
em

be
rs

/O
ffi

ce
rs

 C
o
de

s 
o
f 

C
o
nd

uc
t 

 
 

M
em

be
r/

o
ffi

ce
r 

pr
o
to

co
l 

C
o
m

pl
ia

nt
 

 
1.

2 
En

su
re

 t
ha

t 
st

an
da

rd
s 

o
f 
co

nd
uc

t 
an

d 
pe

rs
o
na

l b
eh

av
io

ur
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

o
f 
m

em
be

rs
 

an
d 

st
af

f, 
o
f 
w

o
rk

 b
et

w
ee

n 
m

em
be

rs
 a

nd
 

st
af

f 
an

d 
be

tw
ee

n 
th

e 
C

it
y 

C
o
un

ci
l, 

it
s 

pa
rt

ne
rs

 a
nd

 t
he

 c
o
m

m
un

it
y 

ar
e 

de
fin

ed
 

an
d 

co
m

m
un

ic
at

ed
 t

hr
o
ug

h 
co

de
s 

o
f 

co
nd

uc
t 

an
d 

pr
o
to

co
ls

. 
          

 
St

an
da

rd
s 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e 
 

Lo
ca

l S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 B

o
ar

d 
fo

r 
En

gl
an

d 
 

M
em

be
rs

/O
ffi

ce
rs

 C
o
de

s 
o
f 

C
o
nd

uc
t 

 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 C

o
m

pl
ai

nt
s 

pr
o
ce

du
re

 
 

 A
nt

i-
fr

au
d 

an
d 

C
o
rr

up
ti
o
n 

St
ra

te
gy

 
 

W
hi

st
le

bl
o
w

in
g 

Po
lic

y 
up

da
te

d 
in

 2
00

7/
08

 in
 

re
sp

ec
t 

o
f 
eq

ua
lit

ie
s.

  
In

te
rn

al
 a

ud
it
 r

ev
ie

w
 t

o
 

be
 c

ar
ri

ed
 o

ut
 in

 2
00

8/
09

. 
 A

nt
i F

ra
ud

 &
 C

o
rr

up
ti
o
n 

St
ra

te
gy

 r
eq

ui
re

s 
up

da
ti
ng

 t
o
 t

ak
e 

ac
co

un
t 

o
f 
o
ut

co
m

e 
o
f 

re
ce

nt
 “

Fr
au

d 
R

ev
ie

w
” 

by
 C

en
tr

al
 

G
o
ve

rn
m

en
t.
  

 A
ud

it
 &

 A
ss

ur
an

ce
 t

o
 le

ad
 o

n 
re

vi
ew

 o
n 

th
e 

in
te

rn
al

 c
o
m

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

o
f t

he
 C

o
un

ci
l’s

 
Po

lic
ie

s 
to

 r
ai

se
 a

w
ar

en
es

s 
an

d 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e.
  

T
o
 f
ur

th
er

 e
xa

m
in

e 
th

e 
fe

as
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 

en
ha

nc
in

g 
el

ec
tr

o
ni

c 
de

liv
er

y 
to

 M
em

be
rs

 
an

d 
st

af
f. 

   

39



(A
0

0
2

/2
0

0
9

) 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

P
ag

e 
N

o
. 
9

 

Ju
n
e 

0
8

 

D
e
ta

il
e
d

 S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
R

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
C

it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 

C
o

m
p

li
a
n

c
e
 E

v
id

e
n

c
e
 b

y
: 
S

o
u

rc
e
 

D
o

c
u

m
e
n

ts
/P

ro
c
e
ss

e
s 

E
v
a
lu

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 a

c
ti

o
n

s 
re

q
u

ir
e
d

 t
o

 
a
c
h

ie
v
e
 f

u
ll
 c

o
m

p
li
a
n

c
e
 

 
1.

3 
Pu

t 
in

 p
la

ce
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 t
o
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 m

em
be

rs
 a

nd
 e

m
pl

o
ye

es
 o

f 
th

e 
C

it
y 

C
o
un

ci
l a

re
 n

o
t 

in
flu

en
ce

d 
by

 p
re

ju
di

ce
, 

bi
as

 o
r 

co
nf

lic
ts

 o
f 
in

te
re

st
 in

 d
ea

lin
g 

w
it
h 

di
ffe

re
nt

 s
ta

ke
ho

ld
er

s 
an

d 
pu

t 
in

 
pl

ac
e 

ap
pr

o
pr

ia
te

 p
ro

ce
ss

es
 t

o
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 t

he
y 

co
nt

in
ue

 t
o
 o

pe
ra

te
 in

 p
ra

ct
ic

e.
 

 

 
St

an
da

rd
s 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e 
 

M
em

be
r/

O
ffi

ce
r 

C
o
de

s 
o
f 
C

o
nd

uc
t 

 
Fr

au
d 

aw
ar

en
es

s 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 

 
D

ec
la

ra
ti
o
ns

/R
eg

is
te

rs
 o

f 
In

te
re

st
s 

by
 M

em
be

rs
 a

nd
 O

ffi
ce

rs
 

 
A

nn
ua

l r
ev

ie
w

 o
f 
de

cl
ar

at
io

n 
o
f 

in
te

re
st

s,
 g

ift
s 

an
d 

ho
sp

it
al

it
y 

 
C

o
nt

ra
ct

 S
ta

nd
in

g 
O

rd
er

s 
 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l R
eg

ul
at

io
ns

 
 

Se
e 

ab
o
ve

 

2.
 E

ns
ur

in
g 

th
at

 o
rg

an
is

at
io

na
l 

va
lu

es
 a

re
 p

ut
 in

to
 p

ra
ct

ic
e 

an
d 

ar
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 

2.
1 

D
ev

el
o
p 

an
d 

m
ai

nt
ai

n 
sh

ar
ed

 v
al

ue
s 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
le

ad
er

sh
ip

 v
al

ue
s 

fo
r 

bo
th

 t
he

 
o
rg

an
is

at
io

n 
an

d 
st

af
f 
re

fle
ct

in
g 

pu
bl

ic
 

ex
pe

ct
at

io
ns

, a
nd

 c
o
m

m
un

ic
at

e 
th

es
e 

w
it
h 

m
em

be
rs

, s
ta

ff,
 t

he
 c

o
m

m
un

it
y 

an
d 

pa
rt

ne
rs

. 
 

 
M

em
be

rs
/O

ffi
ce

rs
 C

o
de

s 
o
f 

C
o
nd

uc
t 

 

C
o
m

pl
ia

nt
 

 
2.

2 
Pu

t 
in

 p
la

ce
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 t
o
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 s

ys
te

m
s 

an
d 

pr
o
ce

ss
es

 a
re

 d
es

ig
ne

d 
in

 c
o
nf

o
rm

it
y 

w
it
h 

ap
pr

o
pr

ia
te

 e
th

ic
al

 
st

an
da

rd
s,

 a
nd

 m
o
ni

to
r 

th
ei

r 
co

nt
in

ui
ng

 
ef

fe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

in
 p

ra
ct

ic
e.

 
 

 
M

em
be

rs
/O

ffi
ce

rs
 C

o
de

s 
o
f 

C
o
nd

uc
t 

(i
nc

lu
di

ng
 r

em
in

de
rs

 
is

su
ed

) 
 

St
an

da
rd

s 
C

o
m

m
it
te

e 
 (

T
er

m
s 

o
f 

R
ef

er
en

ce
 &

 R
ep

o
rt

s)
 

 
Sc

ru
ti
ny

 
 

Lo
ca

l I
nv

es
ti
ga

ti
o
n 

R
eg

ul
at

io
ns

 
 

C
o
m

pl
ia

nt
 

 
2.

3 
D

ev
el

o
p 

an
d 

m
ai

nt
ai

n 
an

 e
ffe

ct
iv

e 
st

an
da

rd
s 

co
m

m
it
te

e.
 

 

 
St

an
da

rd
s 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e 
 (

T
er

m
s 

o
f 

R
ef

er
en

ce
 &

 R
ep

o
rt

s)
 

C
o
m

pl
ia

nt
 

 
2.

4 
U

se
 t

he
 o

rg
an

is
at

io
n’

s 
sh

ar
ed

 v
al

ue
s 

to
 a

ct
 a

s 
a 

gu
id

e 
fo

r 
de

ci
si

o
n 

m
ak

in
g 

an
d 

as
 a

 b
as

is
 f
o
r 

de
ve

lo
pi

ng
 p

o
si

ti
ve

 a
nd

 
tr

us
ti
ng

 r
el

at
io

ns
hi

ps
 w

it
hi

n 
th

e 
C

it
y 

C
o
un

ci
l. 

 
C

it
y 

C
o
un

ci
l’s

 C
o
ns

ti
tu

ti
o
n 

 
M

em
be

r/
O

ffi
ce

r 
Pr

o
to

co
ls

 
C

o
m

pl
ia

nt
 

40



(A
0

0
2

/2
0

0
9

) 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

P
ag

e 
N

o
. 
1

0
 

Ju
n
e 

0
8

 

D
e
ta

il
e
d

 S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
R

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
C

it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 

C
o

m
p

li
a
n

c
e
 E

v
id

e
n

c
e
 b

y
: 
S

o
u

rc
e
 

D
o

c
u

m
e
n

ts
/P

ro
c
e
ss

e
s 

E
v
a
lu

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 a

c
ti

o
n

s 
re

q
u

ir
e
d

 t
o

 
a
c
h

ie
v
e
 f

u
ll
 c

o
m

p
li
a
n

c
e
 

 
2.

5 
In

 p
ur

su
in

g 
th

e 
vi

si
o
n 

o
f 
a 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p,

 a
gr

ee
 a

 s
et

 o
f 
va

lu
es

 a
ga

in
st

 
w

hi
ch

 d
ec

is
io

n 
m

ak
in

g 
an

d 
ac

ti
o
ns

 c
an

 b
e 

ju
dg

ed
.  

Su
ch

 v
al

ue
s 

m
us

t 
be

 
de

m
o
ns

tr
at

ed
 b

y 
pa

rt
ne

rs
’ b

eh
av

io
ur

 
bo

th
 in

di
vi

du
al

ly
 a

nd
 c

o
lle

ct
iv

el
y.

 
 

 
Pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

p 
ag

re
em

en
ts

 
 

Pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 (
in

cl
ud

in
g 

o
bj

ec
ti
ve

s,
 

pr
o
to

co
ls

,  
ro

le
s,

 f
un

di
ng

, d
is

pu
te

 
re

so
lu

ti
o
n)

 
 

LS
P 

M
em

be
r 

H
ad

bo
o
k 

C
o
m

pl
ia

nt
 

  R
e
fe

re
n

c
e
 D

o
c
u

m
e
n

ts
 

St
an

da
rd

s 
o
f 
C

o
nd

uc
t 

in
 E

ng
lis

h 
Lo

ca
l G

o
ve

rn
m

en
t:
 T

he
 F

ut
ur

e 
O

D
PM

 (
20

05
) 

41



(A
0

0
2

/2
0

0
9

) 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

P
ag

e 
N

o
. 
1

1
 

Ju
n
e 

0
8

 

C
O

R
E

 P
R

IN
C

IP
L

E
 4

: 
S

C
R

U
T

IN
Y

 &
 R

IS
K

 M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

 
T

a
k
in

g
 i

n
fo

rm
e
d

 a
n

d
 t

ra
n

s
p

a
re

n
t 

d
e
c
is

io
n

s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 s

u
b

je
c
t 

to
 e

ff
e
c
ti

v
e
 s

c
ru

ti
n

y
 a

n
d

 m
a

n
a

g
in

g
 r

is
k

 
D

ec
is

io
n 

m
ak

in
g 

w
it
hi

n 
a 

go
o
d 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
 f
ra

m
ew

o
rk

 is
 c

o
m

pl
ex

 a
nd

 c
ha

lle
ng

in
g.

  
It

 m
us

t 
fu

rt
he

r 
th

e 
o
rg

an
is

at
io

n’
s 

pu
rp

o
se

 a
nd

 s
tr

at
eg

ic
 

di
re

ct
io

n 
an

d 
be

 r
o
bu

st
 in

 t
he

 m
ed

iu
m

 a
nd

 lo
ng

er
 t

er
m

s.
  

T
o
 m

ak
e 

su
ch

 d
ec

is
io

ns
, a

ut
ho

ri
ty

 m
em

be
rs

 m
us

t 
be

 w
el

l i
nf

o
rm

ed
. 

 M
em

be
rs

 m
ak

in
g 

de
ci

si
o
ns

 n
ee

d 
th

e 
su

pp
o
rt

 o
f a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 s

ys
te

m
s 

to
 h

el
p 

en
su

re
 t

ha
t 

de
ci

si
o
ns

 a
re

 im
pl

em
en

te
d 

an
d 

th
at

 r
es

o
ur

ce
s 

ar
e 

us
ed

 
le

ga
lly

 a
nd

 e
ffi

ci
en

tl
y.

 
 R

is
k 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

is
 im

po
rt

an
t 

to
 t

he
 s

uc
ce

ss
fu

l d
el

iv
er

y 
o
f 
pu

bl
ic

 s
er

vi
ce

s.
  

A
n 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
ri

sk
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
sy

st
em

 id
en

ti
fie

s 
an

d 
as

se
ss

es
 r

is
k,

 
de

ci
de

s 
o
n 

ap
pr

o
pr

ia
te

 r
es

po
ns

es
 a

nd
 t

he
n 

pr
o
vi

de
s 

as
su

ra
nc

es
 t

ha
t 

th
e 

ch
o
se

n 
re

sp
o
ns

es
 a

re
 e

ffe
ct

iv
e.

 
 D

e
ta

il
e
d

 S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
R

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
C

it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 

C
o

m
p

li
a
n

c
e
 E

v
id

e
n

c
e
 b

y
: 
S

o
u

rc
e
 

D
o

c
u

m
e
n

ts
/P

ro
c
e
ss

e
s 

E
v
a
lu

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 a

c
ti

o
n

s 
re

q
u

ir
e
d

 t
o

 
a
c
h

ie
v
e
 f

u
ll
 c

o
m

p
li
a
n

c
e
 

1.
 B

ei
ng

 r
ig

o
ro

us
 a

nd
 t

ra
ns

pa
re

nt
 

ab
o
ut

 h
o
w

 d
ec

is
io

ns
 a

re
 t

ak
en

 
an

d 
lis

te
ni

ng
 a

nd
 a

ct
in

g 
o
n 

th
e 

o
ut

co
m

e 
o
f 
co

ns
tr

uc
ti
ve

 s
cr

ut
in

y 

1.
1 

D
ev

el
o
p 

an
d 

m
ai

nt
ai

n 
an

 e
ffe

ct
iv

e 
sc

ru
ti
ny

 fu
nc

ti
o
n 

w
hi

ch
 e

nc
o
ur

ag
es

 
co

ns
tr

uc
ti
ve

 c
ha

lle
ng

e 
an

d 
en

ha
nc

es
 t

he
 

C
it
y 

C
o
un

ci
l’s

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 o
ve

ra
ll 

an
d 

th
at

 o
f 
an

y 
o
rg

an
is

at
io

n 
fo

r 
w

hi
ch

 it
 is

 
re

sp
o
ns

ib
le

. 
 

 
C

it
y 

C
o
un

ci
l’s

 C
o
ns

ti
tu

ti
o
n 

 
O

ve
rv

ie
w

 a
nd

 S
cr

ut
in

y 
C

o
m

m
it
te

e,
 

Pa
ne

ls
 p

ro
ce

du
re

s 
ru

le
s 

  
 

Sc
ru

ti
ny

 A
nn

ua
l R

ep
o
rt

 
 

In
di

vi
du

al
 S

cr
ut

in
y 

R
ev

ie
w

s 

C
o
m

pl
ia

nt
 

 
1.

2 
D

ev
el

o
p 

an
d 

m
ai

nt
ai

n 
o
pe

n 
an

d 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

m
ec

ha
ni

sm
s 

fo
r 

do
cu

m
en

ti
ng

 
ev

id
en

ce
 f
o
r 

de
ci

si
o
ns

 a
nd

 r
ec

o
rd

in
g 

th
e 

cr
it
er

ia
, r

at
io

na
le

 a
nd

 c
o
ns

id
er

at
io

ns
 o

n 
w

hi
ch

 d
ec

is
io

ns
 a

re
 b

as
ed

. 
 

 
M

in
ut

es
 o

f m
ee

ti
ng

s 
an

d 
re

co
rd

s 
o
f 

de
ci

si
o
ns

 
 

Su
pp

o
rt

in
g 

re
po

rt
s 

an
d 

m
at

er
ia

l 
 

C
it
y 

C
o
un

ci
l’s

 w
eb

si
te

 
 

C
o
m

pl
ia

nt
 

 
1.

3 
Pu

t 
in

 p
la

ce
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 t
o
 

sa
fe

gu
ar

d 
m

em
be

rs
 a

nd
 e

m
pl

o
ye

es
 

ag
ai

ns
t 

co
nf

lic
ts

 o
f 
in

te
re

st
 a

nd
 p

ut
 in

 
pl

ac
e 

ap
pr

o
pr

ia
te

 p
ro

ce
ss

es
 t

o
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 t

he
y 

co
nt

in
ue

 t
o
 o

pe
ra

te
 in

 p
ra

ct
ic

e.
 

 

 
M

em
be

rs
/O

ffi
ce

rs
 C

o
de

s 
o
f 

C
o
nd

uc
t 

 
D

ec
la

ra
ti
o
ns

/R
eg

is
te

rs
 o

f 
In

te
re

st
 

fo
r 

O
ffi

ce
rs

 a
nd

 M
em

be
rs

 
 

C
it
y 

C
o
un

ci
l’s

 C
o
ns

ti
tu

ti
o
n 

C
o
m

pl
ia

nt
 

42



(A
0

0
2

/2
0

0
9

) 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

P
ag

e 
N

o
. 
1

2
 

Ju
n
e 

0
8

 

D
e
ta

il
e
d

 S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
R

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
C

it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 

C
o

m
p

li
a
n

c
e
 E

v
id

e
n

c
e
 b

y
: 
S

o
u

rc
e
 

D
o

c
u

m
e
n

ts
/P

ro
c
e
ss

e
s 

E
v
a
lu

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 a

c
ti

o
n

s 
re

q
u

ir
e
d

 t
o

 
a
c
h

ie
v
e
 f

u
ll
 c

o
m

p
li
a
n

c
e
 

 
1.

4 
D

ev
el

o
p 

an
d 

m
ai

nt
ai

n 
an

 e
ffe

ct
iv

e 
au

di
t 

co
m

m
it
te

e 
w

hi
ch

 is
 in

de
pe

nd
en

t 
o
f 

th
e 

ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
an

d 
sc

ru
ti
ny

 fu
nc

ti
o
ns

 o
r 

m
ak

e 
ap

pr
o
pr

ia
te

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 f
o
r 

th
e 

di
sc

ha
rg

e 
o
f 
th

e 
fu

nc
ti
o
ns

 o
f a

n 
au

di
t 

co
m

m
it
te

e.
 

 

 
A

ud
it
 P

an
el

 T
er

m
s 

o
f 
R

ef
er

en
ce

 
 

A
ud

it
 P

an
el

 R
ep

o
rt

s 
 

A
ud

it
 P

an
el

 A
nn

ua
l R

ep
o
rt

 
 

A
ud

it
 P

an
el

 M
em

be
rs

hi
p 

 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
o
f e

ffe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

ag
ai

ns
t 

be
st

 p
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l p
ra

ct
ic

e 

Fo
r 

20
07

/0
8 

an
 A

ud
it
 P

an
el

 o
pe

ra
te

d 
re

po
rt

in
g 

to
 O

SO
C

.  
T

hi
s 

ha
s 

be
en

 r
ep

la
ce

d 
by

 a
 f
ul

l A
ud

it
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e 
fo

r 
20

08
/0

9.
 

 T
he

re
 is

 a
 t

ra
in

in
g 

re
qu

ir
em

en
t 

fo
r 

ne
w

 
m

em
be

rs
 g

o
in

g 
fr

o
m

 4
 t

o
 1

0,
 o

n 
th

e 
ro

le
 a

nd
 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

ar
ea

s 
o
f 
di

sc
ha

rg
in

g 
du

ti
es

. 
   

 
1.

5 
En

su
re

 t
ha

t 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e,

 t
ra

ns
pa

re
nt

 a
nd

 
ac

ce
ss

ib
le

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 a

re
 in

 p
la

ce
 f
o
r 

de
al

in
g 

w
it
h 

co
m

pl
ai

nt
s.

 
 

 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 C

o
m

pl
ai

nt
s 

Pr
o
ce

ss
 

C
o
m

pl
ia

nt
 

2.
 H

av
in

g 
go

o
d-

qu
al

it
y 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n,

 a
dv

ic
e 

an
d 

su
pp

o
rt

 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
ar

e 
de

liv
er

ed
 e

ffe
ct

iv
el

y 
an

d 
ar

e 
w

ha
t 

th
e 

co
m

m
un

it
y 

w
an

ts
/n

ee
ds

 

2.
1 

En
su

re
 t

ha
t 

th
o
se

 m
ak

in
g 

de
ci

si
o
ns

, 
w

he
th

er
 f
o
r 

th
e 

C
it
y 

C
o
un

ci
l o

r 
th

e 
pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

p,
 a

re
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

w
it
h 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

th
at

 is
 f
it
 f
o
r 

pu
rp

o
se

 –
 

re
le

va
nt

, t
im

el
y,

 g
iv

in
g 

cl
ea

r 
ex

pl
an

at
io

ns
 

o
f 
te

ch
ni

ca
l i

ss
ue

s 
an

d 
th

ei
r 

im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

. 
 

 
M

ee
ti
ng

 a
ge

nd
as

, m
in

ut
es

 a
nd

 
re

po
rt

s 
 

 
Im

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 o

n 
re

po
rt

s 
e.

g.
 le

ga
l 

an
d 

fin
an

ci
al

 o
n 

al
l c

o
m

m
it
te

e 
re

po
rt

s 
 

D
at

a 
Q

ua
lit

y 
St

ra
te

gy
 

 
T

ra
in

in
g 

fo
r 

m
em

be
rs

 (
in

du
ct

io
n 

an
d 

o
n-

go
in

g)
 

 
M

em
be

rs
 P

ac
k 

20
08

 (
M

em
be

rs
 

H
an

db
o
o
k)

 
 

C
o
m

pl
ia

nt
 

 
2.

2 
En

su
re

 t
ha

t 
pr

o
pe

r 
pr

o
fe

ss
io

na
l 

ad
vi

ce
 o

n 
m

at
te

rs
 t

ha
t 

ha
ve

 le
ga

l o
r 

fin
an

ci
al

 im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 is
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

an
d 

re
co

rd
ed

 w
el

l i
n 

ad
va

nc
e 

o
f 
de

ci
si

o
n 

m
ak

in
g 

an
d 

us
ed

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

ly
. 

   

 
C

o
m

m
it
te

e 
re

po
rt

s/
pr

o
to

co
ls

 
 

Im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 o
n 

re
po

rt
s 

e.
g.

 le
ga

l 
an

d 
fin

an
ci

al
 o

n 
al

l c
o
m

m
it
te

e 
re

po
rt

s 
 

G
ui

da
nc

e/
tr

ai
ni

ng
 t

o
 O

ffi
ce

rs
 

C
o
m

pl
ia

nt
 

 Pr
o
ce

ss
 b

ei
ng

 im
pr

o
ve

d 
fo

r 
20

08
/0

9 
w

it
h 

re
vi

se
d 

fo
rm

at
 f
o
r 

re
po

rt
s.

 

43



(A
0

0
2

/2
0

0
9

) 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

P
ag

e 
N

o
. 
1

3
 

Ju
n
e 

0
8

 

D
e
ta

il
e
d

 S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
R

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
C

it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 

C
o

m
p

li
a
n

c
e
 E

v
id

e
n

c
e
 b

y
: 
S

o
u

rc
e
 

D
o

c
u

m
e
n

ts
/P

ro
c
e
ss

e
s 

E
v
a
lu

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 a

c
ti

o
n

s 
re

q
u

ir
e
d

 t
o

 
a
c
h

ie
v
e
 f

u
ll
 c

o
m

p
li
a
n

c
e
 

3.
 E

ns
ur

in
g 

th
at

 a
n 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
ri

sk
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

sy
st

em
 is

 in
 p

la
ce

 
3.

1 
En

su
re

 t
ha

t 
ri

sk
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
is

 
em

be
dd

ed
 in

to
 t

he
 c

ul
tu

re
 o

f t
he

 C
it
y 

C
o
un

ci
l, 

w
it
h 

m
em

be
rs

 a
nd

 m
an

ag
er

s 
at

 
al

l l
ev

el
s 

re
co

gn
is

in
g 

th
at

 r
is

k 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
is

 p
ar

t 
o
f 
th

ei
r 

jo
bs

. 
 

 
R

is
k 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

St
ra

te
gy

 
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
/d

ep
ar

tm
en

ta
l r

is
ks

 
 

In
te

rn
al

 a
ud

it
 r

ep
o
rt

s 
 

R
is

k 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 

 
R

is
k 

as
se

ss
m

en
ts

 (
e.

g.
 m

aj
o
r 

pr
o
je

ct
s)

 a
nd

 R
is

k 
w

o
rk

sh
o
ps

  
 

R
is

k 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
re

po
rt

s 
 

R
is

k 
re

gi
st

er
s 

(c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 a

nd
 

de
pa

rt
m

en
ta

l)
 

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

ta
l D

ev
el

o
pm

en
t 

Pl
an

s 
 

T
ea

m
 P

la
nn

in
g 

Pr
o
ce

ss
  

 
R

is
k 

im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 in
 r

ep
o
rt

s 
 

R
is

k 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
St

ra
te

gy
 b

ei
ng

 u
pd

at
ed

 w
it
h 

gr
ea

te
r 

em
ph

as
is

 o
n 

o
pp

o
rt

un
it
ie

s 
an

d 
pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

ps
. 

 B
us

in
es

s 
C

o
nt

in
ui

ty
 P

la
nn

in
g 

to
 b

e 
re

vi
ew

ed
 

in
 r

el
at

io
n 

to
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
s,

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t 

co
nt

ra
ct

o
rs

 a
nd

 s
pe

ci
fic

al
ly

 r
el

at
in

g 
to

 I
C

T
 

re
si

lie
nc

e.
 

 
3.

2 
En

su
re

 t
ha

t 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 
fo

r 
w

hi
st

le
-b

lo
w

in
g 

ar
e 

in
 p

la
ce

 t
o
 w

hi
ch

 
o
ffi

ce
rs

, s
ta

ff 
an

d 
al

l t
ho

se
 c

o
nt

ra
ct

in
g 

w
it
h 

o
r 

ap
po

in
te

d 
by

 t
he

 C
it
y 

C
o
un

ci
l 

ha
ve

 a
cc

es
s.

 
 

 
W

hi
st

le
-b

lo
w

in
g 

po
lic

y 
 

A
w

ar
en

es
s 

ca
m

pa
ig

ns
 o

f 
po

lic
y 

e.
g.

 
po

st
er

s,
 m

es
sa

ge
s 

to
 s

ta
ff,

 t
ra

in
in

g 

C
o
m

pl
ia

nt
 

 Pr
o
ce

ss
 t

o
 b

e 
re

vi
ew

ed
 b

y 
A

ud
it
 &

 A
ss

ur
an

ce
 

Se
rv

ic
es

 in
 2

00
8/

09
 a

nd
 in

te
rn

al
 c

am
pa

ig
n 

to
 

ra
is

e 
fu

rt
he

r 
aw

ar
en

es
s.

 
   

4.
 E

ns
ur

in
g 

th
at

 a
ut

ho
ri

ti
es

 u
se

 
th

ei
r 

le
ga

l p
o
w

er
s 

to
 t

he
 fu

ll 
be

ne
fit

 o
f 
th

e 
ci

ti
ze

ns
 a

nd
 

co
m

m
un

it
ie

s 
in

 t
he

ir
 a

re
as

 

4.
1 

A
ct

iv
el

y 
re

co
gn

is
e 

th
e 

lim
it
s 

o
f 
la

w
fu

l 
ac

ti
vi

ty
 p

la
ce

d 
o
n 

th
em

 b
y,

 f
o
r 

ex
am

pl
e,

 
th

e 
ul

tr
a 

vi
re

s 
do

ct
ri

ne
 b

ut
 a

ls
o
 s

tr
iv

e 
to

 
ut

ili
se

 t
he

ir
 p

o
w

er
s 

to
 t

he
 fu

ll 
be

ne
fit

 o
f 

th
ei

r 
co

m
m

un
it
ie

s.
 

 

 
M

o
ni

to
ri

ng
 O

ffi
ce

r 
Le

gi
sl

at
io

n 
 

Lo
ca

l G
o
ve

rn
m

en
t 

an
d 

H
o
us

in
g 

A
ct

 
19

89
 S

ec
ti

o
n 

5 
 

C
it
y 

C
o
un

ci
l’s

 C
o
ns

ti
tu

ti
o
n 

 
T

ra
in

in
g 

an
d 

qu
al

ifi
ed

 o
ffi

ce
rs

 (
PD

PS
 

Sc
he

m
e,

 C
PD

) 
       

C
o
m

pl
ia

nt
 

44



(A
0

0
2

/2
0

0
9

) 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

P
ag

e 
N

o
. 
1

4
 

Ju
n
e 

0
8

 

D
e
ta

il
e
d

 S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
R

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
C

it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 

C
o

m
p

li
a
n

c
e
 E

v
id

e
n

c
e
 b

y
: 
S

o
u

rc
e
 

D
o

c
u

m
e
n

ts
/P

ro
c
e
ss

e
s 

E
v
a
lu

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 a

c
ti

o
n

s 
re

q
u

ir
e
d

 t
o

 
a
c
h

ie
v
e
 f

u
ll
 c

o
m

p
li
a
n

c
e
 

 
4.

2 
R

ec
o
gn

is
e 

th
e 

lim
it
s 

o
f l

aw
fu

l a
ct

io
n 

an
d 

o
bs

er
ve

 b
o
th

 t
he

 s
pe

ci
fic

 
re

qu
ir

em
en

ts
 o

f 
le

gi
sl

at
io

n 
an

d 
th

e 
ge

ne
ra

l r
es

po
ns

ib
ili

ti
es

 p
la

ce
d 

o
n 

au
th

o
ri

ti
es

 b
y 

pu
bl

ic
 la

w
. 

 

 
M

o
ni

to
ri

ng
 O

ffi
ce

r 
Le

gi
sl

at
io

n 
 

Lo
ca

l G
o
ve

rn
m

en
t 

an
d 

H
o
us

in
g 

A
ct

 
19

89
 S

ec
ti

o
n 

5 
 

R
ev

ie
w

 o
f 
re

po
rt

s 
by

 M
o
ni

to
ri

ng
 

O
ffi

ce
r 

 
T

ra
in

in
g 

an
d 

qu
al

ifi
ed

 o
ffi

ce
rs

 (
PD

PS
 

Sc
he

m
e,

 C
PD

) 

C
o
m

pl
ia

nt
  

 
4.

3 
O

bs
er

ve
 a

ll 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
le

gi
sl

at
iv

e 
re

qu
ir

em
en

ts
 p

la
ce

d 
o
n 

th
em

, a
s 

w
el

l a
s 

th
e 

re
qu

ir
em

en
ts

 o
f 
ge

ne
ra

l l
aw

, a
nd

 in
 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
 t

o
 in

te
gr

at
e 

th
e 

ke
y 

pr
in

ci
pl

es
 

o
f 
go

o
d 

ad
m

in
is

tr
at

iv
e 

la
w

 –
 r

at
io

na
lit

y,
 

le
ga

lit
y 

an
d 

na
tu

ra
l j

us
ti
ce

 –
 in

to
 t

he
ir

 
pr

o
ce

du
re

s 
an

d 
de

ci
si

o
n-

m
ak

in
g 

pr
o
ce

ss
es

. 
 

 
M

o
ni

to
ri

ng
 O

ffi
ce

r 
Le

gi
sl

at
io

n 
 

Lo
ca

l G
o
ve

rn
m

en
t 

an
d 

H
o
us

in
g 

A
ct

 
19

89
 S

ec
ti

o
n 

5 
 

C
it
y 

C
o
un

ci
l’s

 C
o
ns

ti
tu

ti
o
n 

 
T

ra
in

in
g 

an
d 

qu
al

ifi
ed

 o
ffi

ce
rs

 (
PD

PS
 

Sc
he

m
e,

 C
PD

) 
   

C
o
m

pl
ia

nt
 

  R
e
fe

re
n

c
e
 D

o
c
u

m
e
n

ts
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

o
f 
R

is
k 

Pr
in

ci
pl

es
 a

nd
 C

o
nc

ep
ts

: T
he

 O
ra

ng
e 

B
o
o
k,

 H
M

 T
re

as
ur

y 
(2

00
4)

 
A

ud
it
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e:
 P

ra
ct

ic
al

 G
ui

da
nc

e 
fo

r 
Lo

ca
l A

ut
ho

ri
ti

es
, C

IP
FA

 (
20

06
) 

45



(A
0

0
2

/2
0

0
9

) 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

P
ag

e 
N

o
. 
1

5
 

Ju
n
e 

0
8

 

C
O

R
E

 P
R

IN
C

IP
L

E
 5

: 
E

F
F

E
C

T
IV

E
 C

A
P

A
C

IT
Y

 
D

e
v

e
lo

p
in

g
 t

h
e

 c
a

p
a

c
it

y
 a

n
d

 c
a

p
a

b
il

it
y
 o

f 
m

e
m

b
e
rs

 a
n

d
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 t
o

 b
e
 e

ff
e
c
ti

v
e
 

 
Ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

lo
ca

l g
o
ve

rn
m

en
t 

re
lie

s 
o
n 

pu
bl

ic
 c

o
nf

id
en

ce
 in

 a
ut

ho
ri

ty
 m

em
be

rs
, w

he
th

er
 e

le
ct

ed
 o

r 
ap

po
in

te
d,

 a
nd

 in
 o

ffi
ce

rs
.  

G
o
o
d 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
 

st
re

ng
th

en
s 

cr
ed

ib
ili

ty
 a

nd
 c

o
nf

id
en

ce
 in

 o
ur

 p
ub

lic
 s

er
vi

ce
s.

  
A

ut
ho

ri
ti
es

 n
ee

d 
pe

o
pl

e 
w

it
h 

th
e 

ri
gh

t 
sk

ill
s 

to
 d

ir
ec

t 
an

d 
co

nt
ro

l t
he

m
 e

ffe
ct

iv
el

y.
  

G
o
ve

rn
an

ce
 r

o
le

s 
an

d 
re

sp
o
ns

ib
ili

ti
es

 a
re

 c
ha

lle
ng

in
g 

an
d 

de
m

an
di

ng
, a

nd
 a

ut
ho

ri
ty

 m
em

be
rs

 n
ee

d 
th

e 
ri

gh
t 

sk
ill

s 
fo

r 
th

ei
r 

ro
le

s.
  

In
 a

dd
it
io

n 
go

ve
rn

an
ce

 m
ea

ns
 d

ra
w

in
g 

o
n 

th
e 

la
rg

es
t 

po
ss

ib
le

 p
o
o
l o

f 
po

te
nt

ia
l m

em
be

rs
 t

o
 r

ec
ru

it
 p

eo
pl

e 
w

it
h 

th
e 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
sk

ill
s.

  
 

 D
e
ta

il
e
d

 S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
R

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
C

it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 

C
o

m
p

li
a
n

c
e
 E

v
id

e
n

c
e
 b

y
: 
S

o
u

rc
e
 

D
o

c
u

m
e
n

ts
/P

ro
c
e
ss

e
s 

E
v
a
lu

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 a

c
ti

o
n

s 
re

q
u

ir
e
d

 t
o

 
a
c
h

ie
v
e
 f

u
ll
 c

o
m

p
li
a
n

c
e
 

1.
 M

ak
in

g 
su

re
 t

ha
t 

m
em

be
rs

 a
nd

 
o
ffi

ce
rs

 h
av

e 
th

e 
sk

ill
s,

 
kn

o
w

le
dg

e,
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
an

d 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

th
ey

 n
ee

d 
to

 p
er

fo
rm

 
w

el
l i

n 
th

ei
r 

ro
le

s 

1.
1 

Pr
o
vi

de
 in

du
ct

io
n 

pr
o
gr

am
m

es
 

ta
ilo

re
d 

to
 in

di
vi

du
al

 n
ee

ds
 a

nd
 

o
pp

o
rt

un
it
ie

s 
fo

r 
m

em
be

rs
 a

nd
 o

ffi
ce

rs
 

to
 u

pd
at

e 
th

ei
r 

kn
o
w

le
dg

e 
o
n 

a 
re

gu
la

r 
ba

si
s.

 
 

 
M

em
be

rs
 a

nd
 O

ffi
ce

rs
 in

du
ct

io
n 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 
 

M
em

be
rs

 T
ra

in
in

g 
Pl

an
 

 
O

ffi
ce

r’
s 

PD
PS

 S
ch

em
e 

i.e
. L

ea
rn

in
g 

&
 D

ev
el

o
pm

en
t 

Pl
an

s 
 

IIP
 a

cc
re

di
ta

ti
o
n 

(l
im

it
ed

) 
 

T
ra

in
in

g 
re

qu
ir

em
en

ts
 o

f 
M

em
be

rs
 f
o
r 

co
ns

ti
tu

ti
o
na

l c
ha

ng
e 

be
in

g 
ad

dr
es

se
d.

 

 
1.

2 
En

su
re

 t
ha

t 
th

e 
st

at
ut

o
ry

 o
ffi

ce
rs

 
ha

ve
 t

he
 s

ki
lls

, r
es

o
ur

ce
s 

an
d 

su
pp

o
rt

 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

to
 p

er
fo

rm
 e

ffe
ct

iv
el

y 
in

 t
he

ir
 

ro
le

s 
an

d 
th

at
 t

he
se

 r
o
le

s 
ar

e 
pr

o
pe

rl
y 

un
de

rs
to

o
d 

th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 t

he
 C

it
y 

C
o
un

ci
l. 

 

 
O

ffi
ce

r’
s 

PD
PS

 S
ch

em
e 

 
Jo

b 
de

sc
ri

pt
io

ns
 

 
C

it
y 

C
o
un

ci
l’s

 C
o
ns

ti
tu

ti
o
n 

 
Sc

he
m

e 
o
f 
de

le
ga

ti
o
n 

 
IIP

 a
cc

re
di

ta
ti
o
n 

(l
im

it
ed

) 
 

Jo
b 

de
sc

ri
pt

io
ns

/p
er

so
n 

sp
ec

ifi
ca

ti
o
ns

 
 

Is
su

e 
o
ve

r 
th

e 
re

gu
la

r 
re

vi
ew

 a
nd

 u
pd

at
in

g 
o
f 

Jo
b 

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o
ns

. 

2.
 D

ev
el

o
pi

ng
 t

he
 c

ap
ab

ili
ty

 o
f 

pe
o
pl

e 
w

it
h 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
 

re
sp

o
ns

ib
ili

ti
es

 a
nd

 e
va

lu
at

in
g 

th
ei

r 
pe

rf
o
rm

an
ce

 a
s 

in
di

vi
du

al
s 

an
d 

as
 a

 g
ro

up
 

2.
1 

A
ss

es
s 

th
e 

sk
ill

s 
re

qu
ir

ed
 b

y 
m

em
be

rs
 a

nd
 o

ffi
ce

rs
 a

nd
 m

ak
e 

a 
co

m
m

it
m

en
t 

to
 d

ev
el

o
p 

th
o
se

 s
ki

lls
 t

o
 

en
ab

le
 r

o
le

s 
to

 b
e 

ca
rr

ie
d 

o
ut

 e
ffe

ct
iv

el
y.

 
 

 
O

ffi
ce

r’
s 

PD
PS

 S
ch

em
e 

 
Le

ar
ni

ng
 a

nd
 D

ev
el

o
pm

en
t 

Pl
an

s 
 

M
em

be
rs

 in
du

ct
io

n 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 

 
T

ea
m

 P
la

ns
 

 
M

em
be

rs
 T

ra
in

in
g 

Pr
o
gr

am
m

e 
 

C
o
nt

in
ue

d 
Pr

o
fe

ss
io

na
l 

D
ev

el
o
pm

en
t 

 (
C

PD
) 

o
f 

pr
o
fe

ss
io

na
l i

ns
ti
tu

te
s/

bo
di

es
 

 
IIP

 a
cc

re
di

ta
ti
o
n 

(l
im

it
ed

) 

IIP
 a

cc
re

di
ta

ti
o
n 

to
 b

e 
un

de
rt

ak
en

 f
o
r 

al
l 

de
pa

rt
m

en
ts

 
 Pa

y 
an

d 
W

o
rk

fo
rc

e 
St

ra
te

gy
 t

o
 b

e 
re

vi
ew

ed
, 

up
da

te
d 

an
d 

ap
pr

o
ve

d.
 

 Pe
o
pl

e 
St

ra
te

gy
 t

o
 b

e 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

 

46



(A
0

0
2

/2
0

0
9

) 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

P
ag

e 
N

o
. 
1

6
 

Ju
n
e 

0
8

 

D
e
ta

il
e
d

 S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
R

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
C

it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 

C
o

m
p

li
a
n

c
e
 E

v
id

e
n

c
e
 b

y
: 
S

o
u

rc
e
 

D
o

c
u

m
e
n

ts
/P

ro
c
e
ss

e
s 

E
v
a
lu

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 a

c
ti

o
n

s 
re

q
u

ir
e
d

 t
o

 
a
c
h

ie
v
e
 f

u
ll
 c

o
m

p
li
a
n

c
e
 

 
2.

2 
D

ev
el

o
p 

sk
ill

s 
o
n 

a 
co

nt
in

ui
ng

 b
as

is
 

to
 im

pr
o
ve

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 t

he
 

ab
ili

ty
 t

o
 s

cr
ut

in
is

e 
an

d 
ch

al
le

ng
e 

an
d 

to
 

re
co

gn
is

e 
w

he
n 

o
ut

si
de

 e
xp

er
t 

he
lp

 is
 

ne
ed

ed
. 

 

 
M

em
be

r 
T

ra
in

in
g 

Pr
o
gr

am
m

e 
 

O
ffi

ce
r’

s 
PD

PS
 S

ch
em

e 
 

 

C
o
m

pl
ia

nt
 

 
2.

3 
En

su
re

 t
ha

t 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 
ar

e 
in

 p
la

ce
 f
o
r 

re
vi

ew
in

g 
th

e 
pe

rf
o
rm

an
ce

 o
f 
th

e 
ex

ec
ut

iv
e 

as
 a

 w
ho

le
 

an
d 

o
f 
in

di
vi

du
al

 m
em

be
rs

 a
nd

 a
gr

ee
in

g 
an

 a
ct

io
n 

pl
an

 w
hi

ch
 m

ig
ht

, f
o
r 

ex
am

pl
e,

 
ai

m
 t

o
 a

dd
re

ss
 a

ny
 t

ra
in

in
g 

o
r 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

ne
ed

s.
 

 

 
O

ve
rv

ie
w

 a
nd

 S
cr

ut
in

y 
 

Pe
rf

o
rm

an
ce

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

 
C

it
y 

C
o
un

ci
l’s

 C
o
ns

ti
tu

ti
o
n 

 
Sc

ru
ti
ny

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 

 

C
o
m

pl
ia

nt
 

3.
 E

nc
o
ur

ag
in

g 
ne

w
 t

al
en

t 
fo

r 
m

em
be

rs
hi

p 
o
f t

he
 C

it
y 

C
o
un

ci
l 

so
 t

ha
t 

be
st

 u
se

 c
an

 b
e 

m
ad

e 
o
f 

in
di

vi
du

al
’s

 s
ki

lls
 a

nd
 r

es
o
ur

ce
s 

in
 

ba
la

nc
in

g 
co

nt
in

ui
ty

 a
nd

 r
en

ew
al

 

3.
1 

En
su

re
 t

ha
t 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 

ar
e 

in
 p

la
ce

 d
es

ig
ne

d 
to

 e
nc

o
ur

ag
e 

in
di

vi
du

al
s 

fr
o
m

 a
ll 

se
ct

io
ns

 o
f 
th

e 
co

m
m

un
it
y 

to
 e

ng
ag

e 
w

it
h,

 a
nd

 
co

nt
ri

bu
te

 t
o
 a

nd
 p

ar
ti
ci

pa
te

 in
 t

he
 w

o
rk

 
o
f 
th

e 
C

it
y 

C
o
un

ci
l. 

 

 
Lo

ca
l S

tr
at

eg
ic

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 
 

C
it
iz

en
s 

V
ie

w
s 

20
07

 
 

Lo
ca

l A
re

a 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t 
 

Eq
ua

lit
ie

s 
Po

lic
y 

 
B

ud
ge

t 
co

ns
ul

ta
ti
o
n 

m
ee

ti
ng

s 
 

C
it
y 

C
o
un

ci
l’s

 w
eb

si
te

 
 

C
ha

rt
er

 M
ar

k 
(l
im

it
ed

 t
o
 c

er
ta

in
 

ar
ea

s)
 

 
H

o
us

in
g 

 s
to

ck
 t

ra
ns

fe
r 

te
na

nt
s 

co
ns

ul
ta

ti
o
n 

an
d 

vo
te

 
  

C
o
m

pl
ia

nt
 

   

 
3.

2 
En

su
re

 t
ha

t 
ca

re
er

 s
tr

uc
tu

re
s 

ar
e 

in
 

pl
ac

e 
fo

r 
m

em
be

rs
 a

nd
 o

ffi
ce

rs
 t

o
 

en
co

ur
ag

e 
pa

rt
ic

ip
at

io
n 

an
d 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t.
 

 
O

ffi
ce

r’
s 

PD
PS

 S
ch

em
e 

i.e
. L

ea
rn

in
g 

&
 D

ev
el

o
pm

en
t 

Pl
an

s 
 

M
em

be
r 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

 

Pe
o
pl

e 
St

ra
te

gy
 t

o
 b

e 
de

ve
lo

pe
d,

 a
pp

ro
ve

d 
an

d 
in

tr
o
du

ce
d.

 
 O

ffi
ce

rs
 g

ra
di

ng
 s

tr
uc

tu
re

 v
er

y 
ri

gi
d 

an
d 

no
t 

an
 in

ce
nt

iv
e 

fo
r 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t.
  
A

bs
en

ce
 o

f 
ca

re
er

 a
nd

 p
ro

m
o
ti
o
n 

ba
se

d 
o
n 

m
er

it
. 

 

47



(A
0

0
2

/2
0

0
9

) 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

P
ag

e 
N

o
. 
1

7
 

Ju
n
e 

0
8

 

 

C
O

R
E

 P
R

IN
C

IP
L

E
 6

: 
E

N
G

A
G

E
M

E
N

T
 A

N
D

 A
C

C
O

U
N

T
A

B
IL

IT
Y

 
E

n
g

a
g

in
g

 w
it

h
 l

o
c
a
l 

p
e
o

p
le

 a
n

d
 o

th
e
r 

s
ta

k
e
h

o
ld

e
rs

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 r

o
b

u
s
t 

p
u

b
li
c
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ta
b

il
it

y
 

 
Lo

ca
l g

o
ve

rn
m

en
t 

is
 a

cc
o
un

ta
bl

e 
in

 a
 n

um
be

r 
o
f 
w

ay
s.

  
El

ec
te

d 
lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

ri
ty

 m
em

be
rs

 a
re

 d
em

o
cr

at
ic

al
ly

 a
cc

o
un

ta
bl

e 
to

 t
he

ir
 lo

ca
l a

re
a 

an
d 

th
is

 g
iv

es
 a

 c
le

ar
 le

ad
er

sh
ip

 r
o
le

 in
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

co
m

m
un

it
ie

s.
  

A
ll 

m
em

be
rs

 m
us

t 
ac

co
un

t 
to

 t
he

ir
 c

o
m

m
un

it
ie

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
de

ci
si

o
ns

 t
he

y 
ha

ve
 t

ak
en

 a
nd

 t
he

 r
at

io
na

le
 b

eh
in

d 
th

o
se

 d
ec

is
io

ns
.  

A
ll 

au
th

o
ri

ti
es

 a
re

 s
ub

je
ct

 t
o
 e

xt
er

na
l r

ev
ie

w
 t

hr
o
ug

h 
th

e 
ex

te
rn

al
 a

ud
it
 o

f 
th

ei
r 

fin
an

ci
al

 
st

at
em

en
ts

.  
T

he
y 

ar
e 

re
qu

ir
ed

 t
o
 p

ub
lis

h 
th

ei
r 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 a
nd

 a
re

 e
nc

o
ur

ag
ed

 t
o
 p

o
re

pa
re

 a
n 

an
nu

al
 r

ep
o
rt

.  
 M

an
y 

ar
e 

su
bj

ec
t 

to
 

na
ti
o
na

l s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 a

nd
 t

ar
ge

ts
. 

 D
e
ta

il
e
d

 S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
R

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
C

it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 

C
o

m
p

li
a
n

c
e
 E

v
id

e
n

c
e
 b

y
: 
S

o
u

rc
e
 

D
o

c
u

m
e
n

ts
/P

ro
c
e
ss

e
s 

E
v
a
lu

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 a

c
ti

o
n

s 
re

q
u

ir
e
d

 t
o

 
a
c
h

ie
v
e
 f

u
ll
 c

o
m

p
li
a
n

c
e
 

1.
 E

xe
rc

is
in

g 
le

ad
er

sh
ip

 t
hr

o
ug

h 
a 

ro
bu

st
 s

cr
ut

in
y 

fu
nc

ti
o
n 

w
hi

ch
 

ef
fe

ct
iv

el
y 

en
ga

ge
s 

lo
ca

l p
eo

pl
e 

an
d 

al
l i

ns
ti
tu

ti
o
na

l s
ta

ke
ho

ld
er

s,
 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

ps
, a

nd
 

de
ve

lo
ps

 c
o
ns

tr
uc

ti
ve

 
ac

co
un

ta
bi

lit
y 

re
la

ti
o
ns

hi
ps

. 

1.
1 

M
ak

e 
cl

ea
r 

to
 t

he
m

se
lv

es
, a

ll 
st

af
f 
an

d 
th

e 
co

m
m

un
it
y 

to
 w

ho
m

 t
he

y 
ar

e 
ac

co
un

ta
bl

e 
an

d 
fo

r 
w

ha
t.
 

 
C

it
y 

C
o
un

ci
l’s

 C
o
ns

ti
tu

ti
o
n 

 
O

ve
rv

ie
w

 a
nd

 S
cr

ut
in

y 
C

o
m

m
it
te

e/
pr

o
ce

du
re

s 
ru

le
s 

 
Sc

ru
ti
ny

 P
an

el
s 

(I
nc

lu
di

ng
 A

ud
it
) 

 
A

nn
ua

l S
cr

ut
in

y 
R

ep
o
rt

 
 

Pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p 

ag
re

em
en

ts
 

C
o
m

pl
ia

nt
 

 
1.

2 
C

o
ns

id
er

 t
ho

se
 in

st
it
ut

io
na

l 
st

ak
eh

o
ld

er
s 

to
 w

ho
m

 t
he

 C
it
y 

C
o
un

ci
l 

is
 a

cc
o
un

ta
bl

e 
an

d 
as

se
ss

 t
he

 
ef

fe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

o
f 
th

e 
re

la
ti
o
ns

hi
ps

 a
nd

 a
ny

 
ch

an
ge

s 
re

qu
ir

ed
. 

 

 
Su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
C

o
m

m
un

it
y 

St
ra

te
gy

 
 

Lo
ca

l S
tr

at
eg

ic
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 

 
Lo

ca
l A

re
a 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t 

 

C
o
m

pl
ia

nt
 

 
1.

3 
Pr

o
du

ce
 a

n 
an

nu
al

 r
ep

o
rt

 o
n 

th
e 

ac
ti

vi
ty

 o
f 
th

e 
sc

ru
ti
ny

 f
un

ct
io

n.
 

      

 
A

nn
ua

l S
cr

ut
in

y 
R

ep
o
rt

  
C

o
m

pl
ia

nt
 

48



(A
0

0
2

/2
0

0
9

) 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

P
ag

e 
N

o
. 
1

8
 

Ju
n
e 

0
8

 

D
e
ta

il
e
d

 S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
R

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
C

it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 

C
o

m
p

li
a
n

c
e
 E

v
id

e
n

c
e
 b

y
: 
S

o
u

rc
e
 

D
o

c
u

m
e
n

ts
/P

ro
c
e
ss

e
s 

E
v
a
lu

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 a

c
ti

o
n

s 
re

q
u

ir
e
d

 t
o

 
a
c
h

ie
v
e
 f

u
ll
 c

o
m

p
li
a
n

c
e
 

2.
 T

ak
in

g 
an

 a
ct

iv
e 

an
d 

pl
an

ne
d 

ap
pr

o
ac

h 
to

 d
ia

lo
gu

e 
w

it
h,

 a
nd

 
ac

co
un

ta
bi

lit
y 

to
, t

he
 p

ub
lic

 t
o
 

en
su

re
 e

ffe
ct

iv
e 

an
d 

ap
pr

o
pr

ia
te

 
se

rv
ic

e 
de

liv
er

y,
 w

he
th

er
 d

ir
ec

tl
y 

by
 t

he
 C

it
y 

C
o
un

ci
l, 

in
 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p 

o
r 

by
 c

o
m

m
is

si
o
ni

ng
 

2.
1 

En
su

re
 c

le
ar

 c
ha

nn
el

s 
o
f 

co
m

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

ar
e 

in
 p

la
ce

 w
it
h 

al
l 

se
ct

io
ns

 o
f 
th

e 
co

m
m

un
it
y 

an
d 

o
th

er
 

st
ak

eh
o
ld

er
s,

 a
nd

 p
ut

 in
 p

la
ce

 m
o
ni

to
ri

ng
 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 a
nd

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 t
he

y 
o
pe

ra
te

 e
ffe

ct
iv

el
y.

 
 

 
C

o
m

m
un

it
y 

st
ra

te
gy

 
 

C
o
m

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

 S
tr

at
eg

y 
 

Lo
ca

l S
tr

at
eg

ic
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 

 
Lo

ca
l A

re
a 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t 

 
C

it
iz

en
s 

V
ie

w
s 

20
07

 
 

St
af

f 
Su

rv
ey

 
 

C
ha

rt
er

 M
ar

k 
(l
im

it
ed

 t
o
 c

er
ta

in
 

se
rv

ic
es

) 
 

R
ev

ie
w

 o
f t

he
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 c

o
ns

ul
ta

ti
o
n 

an
d 

co
m

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

 p
o
lic

ie
s.

 

 
2.

2 
H

o
ld

 m
ee

ti
ng

s 
in

 p
ub

lic
 u

nl
es

s 
th

er
e 

go
o
d 

re
as

o
ns

 f
o
r 

co
nf

id
en

ti
al

it
y.

 
 

 
C

it
y 

C
o
un

ci
l’s

 C
o
ns

ti
tu

ti
o
n 

 
M

ee
ti
ng

  
m

in
ut

es
 

C
o
m

pl
ia

nt
 

 
2.

3 
En

su
re

 t
ha

t 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 a

re
 in

 p
la

ce
 

to
 e

na
bl

e 
th

e 
C

it
y 

C
o
un

ci
l t

o
 e

ng
ag

e 
w

it
h 

al
l s

ec
ti
o
ns

 o
f 
th

e 
co

m
m

un
it
y 

ef
fe

ct
iv

el
y.

  
T

he
se

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 s

ho
ul

d 
re

co
gn

is
e 

th
at

 d
iff

er
en

t 
se

ct
io

ns
 o

f 
th

e 
co

m
m

un
it
y 

ha
ve

 d
iff

er
en

t 
pr

io
ri

ti
es

 a
nd

 
es

ta
bl

is
h 

ex
pl

ic
it
 p

ro
ce

ss
es

 f
o
r 

de
al

in
g 

w
it
h 

th
es

e 
co

m
pe

ti
ng

 d
em

an
ds

. 
 

 
Su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
C

o
m

m
un

it
y 

St
ra

te
gy

 
 

Lo
ca

l A
re

a 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t 
 

B
ud

ge
t 

C
o
ns

ul
ta

ti
o
n 

 

C
o
m

pl
ia

nt
 

 
2.

4 
Es

ta
bl

is
h 

a 
cl

ea
r 

po
lic

y 
o
n 

th
e 

ty
pe

s 
o
f 
is

su
es

 t
he

y 
w

ill
 m

ea
ni

ng
fu

lly
 c

o
ns

ul
t 

o
n 

o
r 

en
ga

ge
 w

it
h 

th
e 

pu
bl

ic
 a

nd
 s

er
vi

ce
 

us
er

s 
ab

o
ut

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 a

 f
ee

db
ac

k 
m

ec
ha

ni
sm

 f
o
r 

th
o
se

 c
o
ns

ul
te

d 
to

 
de

m
o
ns

tr
at

e 
w

ha
t 

ha
s 

ch
an

ge
d 

as
 a

 
re

su
lt
.      

 
A

nn
ua

l R
ep

o
rt

 
 

Sc
ru

ti
ny

 r
ep

o
rt

s 
 

C
o
m

pl
ia

nt
 

49



(A
0

0
2

/2
0

0
9

) 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

P
ag

e 
N

o
. 
1

9
 

Ju
n
e 

0
8

 

D
e
ta

il
e
d

 S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
R

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
C

it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 

C
o

m
p

li
a
n

c
e
 E

v
id

e
n

c
e
 b

y
: 
S

o
u

rc
e
 

D
o

c
u

m
e
n

ts
/P

ro
c
e
ss

e
s 

E
v
a
lu

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 a

c
ti

o
n

s 
re

q
u

ir
e
d

 t
o

 
a
c
h

ie
v
e
 f

u
ll
 c

o
m

p
li
a
n

c
e
 

 
2.

5 
O

n 
an

 a
nn

ua
l b

as
is

, p
ub

lis
h 

a 
pe

rf
o
rm

an
ce

 p
la

n 
gi

vi
ng

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

o
n 

th
e 

C
it
y 

C
o
un

ci
l’s

 v
is

io
n,

 s
tr

at
eg

y,
 p

la
ns

 
an

d 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
ab

o
ut

 it
s 

o
ut

co
m

es
, 

ac
hi

ev
em

en
ts

 a
nd

 t
he

 s
at

is
fa

ct
io

n 
o
f 

se
rv

ic
e 

us
er

s 
in

 t
he

 p
re

vi
o
us

 p
er

io
d.

 
 

 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

la
n 

 
Su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
C

o
m

m
un

it
y 

St
ra

te
gy

 
 

A
nn

ua
l R

ep
o
rt

 
 

St
at

em
en

t 
o
f 
A

cc
o
un

ts
 

 
C

o
un

ci
l T

ax
 L

ea
fle

t 
 

Pe
rf

o
rm

an
ce

 P
la

n 
 

M
ed

iu
m

 T
er

m
 F

in
an

ci
al

 S
tr

at
eg

y 
 

C
o
m

pl
ia

nt
 

 
2.

6 
En

su
re

 t
ha

t 
th

e 
C

it
y 

C
o
un

ci
l a

s 
a 

w
ho

le
 is

 o
pe

n 
an

d 
ac

ce
ss

ib
le

 t
o
 t

he
 

co
m

m
un

it
y,

 s
er

vi
ce

 u
se

rs
 a

nd
 it

s 
st

af
f 
an

d 
en

su
re

 t
ha

t 
it
 h

as
 m

ad
e 

a 
co

m
m

it
m

en
t 

to
 

o
pe

nn
es

s 
an

d 
tr

an
sp

ar
en

cy
 in

 a
ll 

it
s 

de
al

in
gs

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
s,

 s
ub

je
ct

 
o
nl

y 
to

 t
he

 n
ee

d 
to

 p
re

se
rv

e 
co

nf
id

en
ti
al

it
y 

in
 t

ho
se

 s
pe

ci
fic

 
ci

rc
um

st
an

ce
s 

w
he

re
 it

 is
 p

ro
pe

r 
an

d 
ap

pr
o
pr

ia
te

 t
o
 d

o
 s

o
. 

 

 
C

it
y 

C
o
un

ci
l’s

 C
o
ns

ti
tu

ti
o
n 

 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

la
n 

 
Fr

ee
do

m
 o

f 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
A

ct
 

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

 
Pu

bl
ic

at
io

n 
Sc

he
m

e 
 

W
hi

st
le

bl
o
w

in
g 

Po
lic

y 
 

A
nt

i F
ra

ud
 &

 C
o
rr

up
ti
o
n 

St
ra

te
gy

 
 

D
ec

la
ra

ti
o
ns

 o
f 
In

te
re

st
s,

 G
ift

s 
an

d 
H

o
sp

it
al

it
y 

Po
lic

y 
 

C
o
m

pl
ia

nt
 

3.
 M

ak
in

g 
be

st
 u

se
 o

f 
hu

m
an

 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

by
 t

ak
in

g 
an

 a
ct

iv
e 

an
d 

pl
an

ne
d 

ap
pr

o
ac

h 
to

 m
ee

t 
re

sp
o
ns

ib
ili

ti
es

 t
o
 s

ta
ff 

3.
1 

D
ev

el
o
p 

an
d 

m
ai

nt
ai

n 
a 

cl
ea

r 
po

lic
y 

o
n 

ho
w

 s
ta

ff 
an

d 
th

ei
r 

re
pr

es
en

ta
ti
ve

s 
ar

e 
co

ns
ul

te
d 

an
d 

in
vo

lv
ed

 in
 d

ec
is

io
n 

m
ak

in
g.

 
 

 
C

it
y 

C
o
un

ci
l’s

 C
o
ns

ti
tu

ti
o
n 

 
St

af
f 
Su

rv
ey

 
 

St
af

f 
C

o
nf

er
en

ce
s 

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

ta
l S

ta
ff 

G
at

he
ri

ng
s 

 
T

ea
m

 M
ee

ti
ng

s 
 

T
M

T
 a

nd
 D

M
T

s 
 

C
it
y 

C
o
un

ci
l’s

 In
tr

an
et

 
 

T
ra

de
 U

ni
o
n 

Pr
o
to

co
ls

 

C
o
m

pl
ia

nt
 

 R
e
fe

re
n

c
e
 D

o
c
u

m
e
n

ts
 

G
o
ve

rn
in

g 
Pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

ps
: B

ri
dg

in
g 

th
e 

A
cc

o
un

ta
bi

lit
y 

G
ap

, A
ud

it
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o
n 

 (
20

05
) 

T
he

 G
o
o
d 

G
o
ve

rn
an

ce
 S

ta
nd

ar
d 

fo
r 

Pu
bl

ic
 S

er
vi

ce
s,

 T
he

 In
de

pe
nd

en
t 

C
o
m

m
is

si
o
n 

o
n 

G
o
o
d 

G
o
ve

rn
an

ce
 in

 P
ub

lic
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

(2
00

4)
 

 

50



APPENDIX 2 

 

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT FOR 
THE YEAR ENDED 31

ST
 MARCH 2008 

Corporate governance is the system by which the council directs 
and controls its functions and relates to the community.  A key 
aspect of corporate governance is the requirement to put into place 
“effective risk management systems, including systems of internal 
control”.  Brighton & Hove City Council is committed to the highest 
standards of corporate governance as outlined in this Annual 
Governance Statement. 

51



APPENDIX 2 

Annual Governance Statement for the year ended 31st March 2008

1. BACKGROUND 

In discharging this overall responsibility, the council is also responsible for ensuring that 
there is a sound system of Corporate Governance which facilitates the effective exercise of 
the council functions and which includes arrangements for the management of risk. 
 
The Department of Communities and Local Government recognise “proper practice” in 
relation to Corporate Governance, as contained in the CIPFA/SOLACE Framework 
Delivering Good Governance in Local Government (2007).   The new “proper practice” builds on 
existing disclosure statement requirements by extending the existing legislative 
requirements, governance principles and management processes relating to the whole 
organisation and the activities through which it accounts to, engages with and leads its 
community. 
 
This Annual Governance Statement summarises how the council has complied with the 
code. 

2. SCOPE OF RESPONSIBILITY 

Brighton & Hove City Council through its elected Members and officers,  is responsible for 
ensuring that its business is conducted in accordance with the law and proper standards,  
that public money is safeguarded and properly accounted for, and used economically, 
efficiently and effectively.   In discharging this accountability, Members and officers are 
responsible for putting in place and maintaining, proper arrangements for the governance of 
the council affairs and the stewardship of the resources at its disposal.  To this end the 
council has approved and adopted a Constitution and a Code of Corporate Governance, 
which is consistent with the principles and reflects the requirements of the CIPFA/SOLACE 
Framework Delivering Good Governance in Local Government.  A copy of the code is 
available on our website www.brighton-hove.gov.uk.   
 
The council also has a duty under the Local Government Act 1999 to make arrangements to 
secure continuous improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised having 
regard to a combination of efficiency, effectiveness and economy. 

3. THE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK 

The  governance framework comprises the systems and processes, and cultures and values 
by which the council is directed and controlled and its activities through which it accounts 
to, engages with and leads the community.  It enables the council to monitor the 
achievement of its strategic objectives and to consider whether those objectives have led to 
the delivery of appropriate, cost effective services. 
 
For 2007/08 the overall governance responsibilities were charged to the Policy & Resources 
Committee.  As result of the recent constitutional change this has now moved for 2008/09 
onwards, to the Audit and Governance Committees.   
 
 

52



APPENDIX 2 

The role of approving this Statement and recommending the Code of Corporate 
Governance for adoption by full council falls to the Audit Committee.  Also the 
responsibility for the approval of the Statement of Accounts and the subsequent Audit 
Commission Governance Report falls to the Audit Committee.  
 
The council has agreed a constitution which sets out how the council operates, how 
decisions are made and the processes which are followed to ensure these are efficient, 
transparent and accountable to the community.  Many of these processes are required by 
statute, while the council has determined others locally.  The Constitution is divided into 
seventeen articles that set out the basic rules governing the council business.   
 

4. POLICY AND DECISION MAKING 

In discharging its statutory duties in the provision of services the constitution provides 
details of the decision making process for the council as a whole.  
 
The council’s constitution is available on our website and is reviewed by the Monitoring 
Officer on a regular basis and regular reports are received by the Governance Committee 
and council relating to proposed changes. The Executive are responsible for taking most 
operational decisions. Key decisions required are published in advance via the forward plan, 
which is published at monthly intervals.  All Member meetings held by the council are open 
to the public, unless the items being discussed are considered to be private under the Local 
Government Act 1972; these will include staffing, legal matters and those of a contractual 
nature. 
 
The council’s Overview and Scrutiny Commission and a further five Overview and Scrutiny 
Committees scrutinise all matters, executive decisions and service provision. 
 
5. ESTABLISHING AND MONITORING OF CORPORATE AND SERVICE 

OBJECTIVES

The council three year Corporate Plan is approved by Members and provides details of the 
council corporate priorities and targets for the forthcoming year and reports its 
performance for the previous year.   Targets are reviewed and updated on an annual basis.   
Copies can be found on our website at: http://www.brighton-hove.gov.uk .  Due to a change 
in the council’s political administration during 2007/08, the updating of the Corporate Plan 
was not completed during the year.  However the updated version is due to go to Cabinet 
in June 2008 for approval. 
 
The Corporate Plan contains the Corporate Priorities of the council and these are fed down 
through to directorate development plans, individual service business plans and individual 
performance appraisals, the “Golden Thread”.  
 
This Corporate Plan sets out the council targets for both National and Local Performance 
Indicators. These targets are cascaded to service business plans and are time specific. 
Performance is monitored by the Chief Officers Management Team (TMT) and the Executive 
on a quarterly basis giving details of the progress to date and what management action is 
being taken to correct any adverse performance. 
 

53



APPENDIX 2 

.  

6. USE OF RESOURCES 

The effective targeting and usage of our resources has always been a corporate priority, and 
this is achieved in several ways.  
 
The council produces a three year Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS), annual budget 
setting and service business planning. 

The council is subject to an annual assessment by the Audit Commission on how well it 
manages and uses its resources and is an important part of the Comprehensive Performance 
Assessment (CPA) framework.  The Use of Resources (UoR) assessment evaluates how well 
local authorities manage their resources to support their strategic priorities, improve 
services and deliver value for money. The assessment is carried out each year and focuses 
on the importance of strategic financial management, sound governance, value for money 
and effective financial reporting arrangements.  These should support the council in the 
achievement of its priorities and improving services, whilst delivering value for money. 
 
The Assessment covers five themes: financial reporting, financial management, financial 
standing, internal control and value for money. The council was assessed principally on its 
2006/07 performance and the Audit Commission reported the outcome in December 2007.  
Their overall conclusion is that the council has maintained strong arrangements in place for 
financial management and internal control and that it continues to develop its arrangements to 
manage and improve value for money. 
 
The report issued by the Audit Commission on the outcome of the Assessment was 
presented to Members in March 2008 and identified further areas for improvement and 
officers are planning actions to address these.   

7. COMPLAINTS AND CONFIDENTIAL REPORTING POLICIES 

The council operates a formal complaints procedure which is available to both staff and 
stakeholders either on request or on the council website. The procedure is well 
documented and complaints referred to the Local Government Ombudsman are reported at 
every Standards Committee.  Outcomes and decisions are summarised in each of these 
reports.  There have been no findings of maladministration against the council for 2007/08. 
 
The council also has a Whistleblowing Policy along with an Anti Fraud Strategy. Staff  are 
informed of these at their induction and are reminded on a regular basis.  Both the 
Whistleblowing Policy and Anti Fraud Strategy are reviewed and updated where necessary 
on a regular basis. 
 

54



APPENDIX 2 

8. COMPLIANCE 
 

The council has a duty to ensure that all activities undertaken are in accordance with the 
law. This is discharged in part by the council’s Financial Regulations and  Contract Standing 
Orders. Other policies or strategies covering both internal and external issues are available 
to staff and the public via the council intranet and internet sites respectively and can be 
found on the council website at www.brighton-hove.gov.uk . These include: 
 
 

 Anti-fraud Strategy 

 Whistleblowing Policy 

 Freedom of Information 

 Anti-money Laundering Policy 
 
All strategies or policies are allocated to a lead officer who is responsible for the periodic 
review and updating of each.  

9. REVIEW OF EFFECTIVENESS 

The effectiveness of the council corporate governance arrangements is demonstrated by a 
range of independent procedures and protocols, including: 
 
 Officers Governance Group procedures and associated actions 
 Financial management reporting 
 Performance management reporting 
 Cabinet, Audit and Governance Committees 
 Overview and Scrutiny function 
 Statutory Officers (Head of Paid Service, Monitoring Officer, S151 Officer and 

authorised deputies) 
 Internal Audit 
 
Collectively these form the basis of the council arrangements and are further validated by 
independent assessments from various external agencies including:  

 External  Audit (financial and CPA assessment) 
 External Inspectorates 
 
The Director of Strategy & Governance has the responsibility for overseeing the 
implementation and monitoring the operation of the council’s Code of Corporate 
Governance.    This is supported by the continuous internal audit work undertaken by Audit 
& Assurance Services. 
 
The council has a duty to maintain an effective internal audit service. This responsibility is 
discharged by the Director of Finance and Resources. The scope of internal audits 
encompasses the examination and evaluation of the adequacy and effectiveness of the council 
control environment as a contribution to the proper, economic, efficient and effective use of 
resources and achievement for value for money. 

55



APPENDIX 2 

 
 
Audit & Assurance Services undertakes internal audit work in accordance with the CIPFA 
Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local Government. The outcome of individual audits 
results in assurance opinions being provided and reported to management on the 
effectiveness of internal controls and management of risks operating.   
 
In March of each year for the forthcoming financial year, the Annual Internal Audit Strategy 
and Annual Plan is reported to and agreed by the Chief Officers Management Team (TMT) 
and the Audit Panel.  During 2007/08 regular progress reports were made to the Audit 
Panel including key issues and recommendation arising from audits undertaken.  From 
2008/09 onwards, the responsibility will change from the Audit Panel to the Audit 
Committee. 
 
Significant Internal Audit reviews on governance arrangements (e.g. partnership), internal 
control, risk management, business planning and system development/implementation have 
been completed during 2007/08 and reported accordingly.  In all these areas the council has 
shown improvement.    
 
The Head of Audit & Assurance Services provides an assurance opinion to the Audit 
Committee in June 2008 on the council overall control environment and management of 
risks operating , based on the reviews completed (and management actions taken) in respect 
of 2007/08. 
 
The effectiveness of the system of internal audit is reviewed on an annual basis, evidence for 
which includes self assessment against best professional practice, benchmarking data and 
external audit views.  This is subjected to external peer review and for 2007/08 was 
reported to the Audit Panel including an agreed action plan for any improvements required. 
 
The council externally appointed auditors for the 2007/08 financial year were the Audit 
Commission; they principally audit the Statement of Accounts and Comprehensive 
Performance Assessment.  For 2007/08 reports issued by the Audit Commission were 
presented to the Audit Panel for consideration and comment.  For 2008/09 they will report 
to the Audit Committee. 
 
Risk management is a key element within Corporate Governance, to this end a Risk 
Management Strategy was adopted and sets out the roles of Members and Officers.  It is 
reviewed annually and for 2007/08 it was agreed by The Management Team, Policy & 
Resources Committee and Council.  
 
The risk registers that flow from the strategy cover both strategic and operational risks and 
are reviewed annually as part of service and strategic planning. To ensure that risk is 
considered in key decision making, all reports presented to Members must include a risk 
assessment of the actions within the report. 
 
Furthermore, partnership working is now becoming more prevalent within local 
government, and both the Constitution and Risk Management Strategy are currently being 
updated to take account of this wider working. 
 

56



APPENDIX 2 

10. SIGNIFICANT GOVERNANCE ISSUES ARISING 
 

The Annual Governance Statement encompasses the previous Statements on Internal 
Control.  Actions from previous years either complete or in progress are shown as follows: 
 
Actions Completed 
 

 Introduction of a new council  constitution 

 Introduction of revised Code of Conduct for  Members  

 Introduce revised Code of Corporate Governance in accordance with the 
CIPFA/SOLACE Framework 

 Undertaken major consultation exercises with the community for City Views 2007 
and Schools Admissions 

 Completion of city wide anti fraud campaign “Stamping out Fraud” 

 Improvements to the controls and monitoring for the reconciliation of the Financial 
Information Systems with key interfaced systems 

 Introduction of a comprehensive Value for Money review programme targeting 
specific areas for review 

 Review the effectiveness of data quality across the council, in particular relating to 
performance management information 

 Pre-tender risk appraisal process introduced before procurement activity for 
contracted goods and services 

 Achievement of  the South East Employers Charter 

 Financial Management Standards agreed for Budget Managers 
 
 
Actions in Progress 
 

 Approval and publication of new Corporate Plan and Medium Term Financial 
Strategy   

 Updating the Corporate Asset Management Plan and Corporate Procurement 
Strategy 

 Introduction of new local arrangements for Standards for Conduct 

 Appraise options for reducing the funding gap to meet the substantial investment 
backlog in council housing 

 
Actions for Improvement to Governance Framework 

 
There are not considered to be any significant issues and actions arising from the 2007/08 
review.  However actions for improvement were identified and shown together with actions 
in the following table: 
 
 
 
 
 
 

57



APPENDIX 2 

 
 

 

No. Area/Issue Action Planned 
1. Contract Management  - Improved Value 

for Money 
 

Development and introduction of training 
module for Value for Money in Contract 
Management. 

2. Business Planning 
 

To implement new business planning 
process replacing Team Planning 
Framework. 

3. Anti Fraud & Corruption Strategy Update the Anti Fraud Strategy to meet 
the requirements of the Government’s 
Fraud Review. 

4. Constitution Post implementation review of new 
constitution arrangements. 

5. Business Continuity Management 
 

Review in relation to partnerships, 
significant contractors and specifically 
relating to ICT resilience. 

6. Financial Management –  Improved access 
to tools and training  

Financial skills training, improved support 
delivery through intranet, further 
developments of Financial Information 
System. 

7. Pay and Workforce Strategy Review, update and approve. 
8. HR System  - Improved quality of 

management information 
 

Acquisition and implementation of new IT 
system to improve control and 
effectiveness of employees. 

9. People Strategy  
 

Development, approval and 
implementation. 

10. Partnership Agreements Complete Section 75 agreement. 
11. Community Engagement  Framework 

 
Review of the corporate consultation and 
communications policies. 

12. Key Governance Policies Review of awareness and compliance 
across the council. 

 
 
 
 

 
Signed     Signed  
 
 
 
 
 
 Alan McCarthy    Councillor Mary Mears    
 Chief Executive   Leader of the COUNCIL 
Dated:     Dated:  

58



CABINET / AUDIT 
COMMITTEE 

Agenda Item 17 
Brighton & Hove City Council 

 

 

  

Subject: Targeted Budget Management (TBM) Revenue Outturn 
2007/08 

Date of Meeting: 12 June 2008 / 26 June 2008  

Report of: Director of Finance & Resources 

Contact Officer: Name:  Nigel Manvell Tel: 29-3104      

 E-mail: nigel.manvell@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

Key Decision: Yes Forward Plan No. 7 

Wards Affected: All  

 

FOR GENERAL RELEASE 

 

1. SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT:  

1.1 This report sets out the revenue outturn for 2007/08 for the General Fund, 
Section 75 Partnerships and Housing Revenue Account (HRA) as at the 31 
March 2008, please note the outturn is subject to audit. 

  

2. RECOMMENDATIONS:  

 

(1) To note the provisional outturn for the General Fund, Section 75 (S75) 
Partnerships and Housing Revenue Account for 2007/08 and the impact on 
reserves and balances. 

 

(2) To agree the contribution of £0.500 million to the Single Status reserve and 
the creation of a Car Parks Maintenance reserve of £0.400 million. 

 

(3) To agree the changes to the 2008/09 budget allocations as set out in 
paragraph 3.6 of the report and the use of unallocated general reserves as 
set out in paragraph 3.5. 

 

(4) To agree the carry forward of £0.799 million to 2008/09 relating to the Older 
People Mental Health Services S75 pooled budget, managed by Sussex 
Partnership Trust, subject to Joint Commissioning Board approval at their 
meeting on 16th June 2008. 

 

(5) To agree an additional contribution from the General Fund to the S75 
Partnership pooled budget to meet the shortfall of £0.199 million against the 
Integrated Community Equipment Services S75 pooled budget managed by 

59



 

South Downs Health Trust. 

(6) To agree the proposed distribution of the unallocated Local Authority 
Business Growth Incentive Scheme (LABGI) funding as set out in Appendix 
2. 

 

3. RELEVANT BACKGROUND INFORMATION/CHRONOLOGY OF KEY EVENTS: 

 

 

3.1 Table 1 shows the 2007/08 forecast outturn position for council controlled budgets 
within the General Fund, including directorates and centrally managed budgets and 
the outturn on NHS Trust managed S75 Partnership Services. 

 

 

 

 Forecast      2007/08  Forecast  Forecast Forecast 

 Variance      Budget  Outturn  Variance Variance 

 Month 9    Month 12  Month 12  Month 12 Month 12 

 £'000  Department   £'000  £'000  £'000 % 

 213   Adult Social Care & Housing   38,285   38,226   (59) -0.2% 

 23   S75 Learning Disability Services   20,582   20,610   28  0.1% 

 1,043   Children & Young People's Trust   40,445   41,177   732  1.8% 

 1,989   Finance & Resources   21,530   23,299   1,769  8.2% 

 (81)  Strategy & Governance   9,454   9,482   28  0.3% 

 96   Environment   32,531   32,094   (437) -1.3% 

 (14)  Cultural Services   12,719   12,543   (176) -1.4% 

 3,269   Sub Total   175,546   177,431   1,885  1.1% 

 (2,489)  Centrally Managed Budgets   16,229   14,018   (2,211) -13.6% 

 780   Total Council Controlled Budgets   191,775   191,449   (326) -0.2% 

 (202)  NHS Trust managed S75 Servs   11,025   11,224   199  0.0% 

 578   Total Overall Position   202,800   202,673   (127) -0.1% 

 

 

3.2 Details of individual directorate forecasts are given in Appendix 1. Overall the 
council, has achieved an underspend of £0.127 million after providing for a 
proposed additional contribution to the S75 Partnership of £0.199 million. The 
provisional outturn is after taking account of all other recommended provisions and 
reserves. 

60



 

 

3.3 The outturn position is significantly better than previously forecast. Strong financial 
control to address the forecast overspend, prudent financial management, 
including the achievement of additional efficiencies and vacancy savings where 
possible, and improved income generation have all contributed to the turnaround. 

 

3.4 Specific Reserves & Provisions 

The improved financial position enables consideration of an additional contribution 
to the Single Status Reserve. We are currently establishing our financial liability 
and this will be subject to negotiation with staff and unions. The medium term 
financing of any potential liabilities would need to be considered in future budget 
setting rounds alongside any available earmarked reserves and potential 
capitalisation directions from the government (which, if successfully obtained, 
would enable some of the potential liability to be spread over a period of years). 
Given the uncertainty over the potential liabilities and the method of financing, an 
increase to the reserve of £0.500 million is recommended at this time. 

 

It is also proposed that a specific reserve of £0.400 million is created in respect of 
car parks maintenance. Additional detail on use of the reserve is given in Appendix 
1 within the Environment directorate section. 

 

3.5 Unallocated General Reserves 

The accounting regulations applicable for the 2007/08 financial year included a 
change to the way capital financing costs are dealt with. The change resulted in a 
one-off reversal of charges made in previous financial years for premiums and 
interest. Under the new arrangements, these charges must now be spread over 
future years. The reversal had no effect on the overall outturn of £0.127 million but 
has increased unallocated general reserves by £0.970 million. 

 

Including the underspend for 2007/08 and the accounting adjustment, unallocated 
general reserves stand at £1.530 million. 

 

The collection fund is the account into which all council tax and council tax benefit 
is paid. The council’s share of a projected deficit on the collection fund was 
estimated at £0.300 million in early January. Since then, the deficit has increased 
by £1.070 million for two main reasons: first, in common with many authorities 
there have been a number of successful appeals on council tax bandings requiring 
refunds to be made to residents going back a number of years, and; second, due 
to an unanticipated rise in the number of properties with student exemptions. The 
overall deficit in 2007/08 represents 1.25% of the total collection fund. It is 
proposed to earmark resources from the unallocated general reserves to meet the 
increased deficit and ensure that there is no impact on the level of council tax in 
2009/10. 

 

The budget for 2008/09 included the creation of a £0.250 million Transformation 
Fund to provide recurrent funding to support service transformation both in terms 

61



 

of management capacity and learning & development. The first round of Value for 
Money Reviews have identified significant opportunities for improvement projects 
and transformation plans and it is proposed to provide additional one-off support to 
take these forward by earmarking £0.100 million from unallocated general 
reserves. 

 

Taking into account the proposed allocations above, the revised unallocated 
general reserves will be £0.360 million. 

 

3.6 Proposed Budget Changes 2008/09 

Environment Committee at their meeting on 20 March 2008 agreed the award of 
tendered bus services for the period 2008 to 2012. It also agreed that the identified 
shortfall in the subsidised bus routes budget of £0.162 million be met from savings 
in the sustainable transport budget. A review of the concessionary fares budget, 
using newly available financial models provided by the Department of Transport to 
help assess reimbursement levels for the bus operators, has identified capacity 
within the budget to meet this shortfall in 2008/09 and beyond. It is therefore 
proposed to transfer £0.162 million budget from concessionary fares to subsidised 
bus routes. 

 

The Government announced provisional allocations for the final year of the Local 
Authority Business Growth Incentive scheme (LABGI) on 2 April 2008. The 
allocation to Brighton & Hove City Council was £1.269 million. Budget Council in 
February 2008 agreed the allocation of £1 million to various schemes leaving 
£0.269 million unallocated resources. It is proposed to allocate the remainder as 
set out in Appendix 2. 

 

The Living Without Violence project requires interim funding to continue as it has 
now been confirmed that the current funding stream has come to an end. The 
project is a high priority for the council but there is a gap before there is a suitable 
bidding opportunity for central government funding.  It is proposed to provide gap 
funding upto a maximum of £0.100 million Local Public Service Agreement 2 
(LPSA2) reward grant. The reward grant is due to be paid during 2008/09 and 
2009/10. The total reward is as yet unknown but is anticipated to be in excess of 
£2.500 million. This is funding of last resort and should the project secure funding 
from alternative sources this allocation will not be provided.  

 

3.7 NHS Trust Managed Section 75 Partnerships 

 

The Older People Mental Health Service is managed by Sussex Partnership Trust 
under a Section 75 Partnership arrangement. The service had planned to 
introduce a new service, “Dementia at Home”, to provide intensive home care to 
enable more people to remain at home and avoid expensive acute hospital and/or 
nursing home care. Due to recruitment and other logistical difficulties, the 
implementation of the service has been delayed resulting in an underspend 
against the service. It is proposed to carry forward the underspend of £0.799 
million to provide financing for the service in 2008/09 subject to Joint 

62



 

Commissioning Board approval on 16 June 2008. 

 

The Integrated Community Equipment Store is managed by South Downs Health 
NHS Trust. The service has been under considerable pressure over the year in 
respect of both health and social care equipment and service demands. Health 
commissioners (Primary Care Trust) have provided an additional £0.400 million to 
meet additional demands for health equipment. In respect of social care equipment 
and services, there is on overspend of £0.199 million relating to increased 
demand. South Downs Health NHS Trust is unable to meet the overspend from 
other services. Taking into account all factors, it is proposed to make an additional 
contribution to the S75 Partnership pooled budget of £0.199 million as detailed in 
Appendix 1 subject to satisfactory financial performance. The council will provide 
some additional funding in 2008/09 subject to improved performance and will work 
closely with the Commissioner and South Downs Health to improve financial 
controls and efficiency in this service. 

The above proposals for S75 partnerships are included in the overall outturn 
position reported at 3.1 above. 

  

4. CONSULTATION 

 

4.1 No specific consultation was undertaken in relation to this report. 

  

5. FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS:  

Financial Implications: 

 

5.1 Included within the body of the report 

 

Legal Implications: 

 

5.2 In reaching its decisions in relation to its budget, the council needs to have 
regard to a number of general points. It must provide the services, which, 
statutorily, it is obliged to provide. Where there is power to provide services, 
rather than a duty, it has a discretion to provide such services. It must observe 
its other legal duties, such as the duty to achieve best value and comply with the 
Human Rights Act 1998. It must act in accordance with its general fiduciary 
duties to its Council Tax payers to act with financial prudence. Finally, it must 
bear in mind the reserve powers of the Secretary of State under the Local 
Government Act 1999 to limit Council Tax & precepts. 

 

Equalities Implications: 

 

5.3 There are no direct equalities implications arising from this report.  

 

63



 

Sustainability Implications: 

 

5.4 There are no direct sustainability implications arising from this report.   

 

Crime & Disorder Implications:  

 

5.5 There are no direct crime & disorder implications arising from this report 

 

Risk and Opportunity Management Implications:  

 

5.6 There are no direct risk or opportunity management implications arising from 
this report 

 

Corporate / Citywide Implications: 

5.7 The Council’s financial position impacts on levels of Council Tax and service 
levels and therefore has citywide implications. 

 

6. EVALUATION OF ANY ALTERNATIVE OPTION(S): 

 

6.1 The proposed contribution to the Single Status reserve (£0.500 million) and the 
creation of a Car Parks Maintenance (£0.400 million) reserve are prudent 
actions based on current financial risk assessments. If these proposals were 
not approved, unallocated general reserves would increase by a corresponding 
amount. 

 

6.2 If the earmarking of an amount (£1.070 million) of unallocated general reserves 
to support the collection fund deficit were not approved, alternative funds would 
need to be identified to cover the deficit to avoid future council tax levels being 
affected. 

 

6.3 The £0.100 million allocation to the transformation fund if not made could delay 
service transformation projects/ value for money improvements. This is a 
modest amount that should support the speedier delivery of improvement 
projects and associated efficiency and productivity gains. 

 

6.4 The proposed carry forward of £0.799 million in respect of S75 Older People 
Mental Health Services will be reported to the Joint Commissioning Board 
(JCB) for approval and is considered vital to ensure the setup and delivery of 
the new “Dementia at Home” service in 2008/09. Decisions regarding the 
utilisation of underspends on partnerships are taken jointly by the partners 
through the JCB. If this was not approved by the JCB and/or the Cabinet, the 
underspend would revert to both partners and would normally be shared in 

64



 

proportion to the partners’ contributions to the pooled budget. However, given 
the additional investment of over £1.9 million in this service in 2007/08, it is 
highly likely that this would be successfully disputed by the Primary Care Trust 
and that the underspend would revert to the Primary Care Trust in full. 

 

The overspend on the Integrated Community Equipment Store (£0.199 million) 
has been reported for many months and the demands on the service are 
known to have increased. South Downs Health NHS Trust were expecting to 
manage this pressure but higher than anticipated costs on other S75 services 
has meant that financial recovery could not be achieved. Provider trusts are 
expected to deliver within budget provided there are no significant changes in 
demand. In this case, there is some evidence of a change in demand for social 
care equipment and the provider is highly likely to be successful in arguing the 
case for additional contributions from the commissioners (council and/or PCT). 
If the additional contribution was not approved, South Downs Health Trust is 
likely to seek redress under the terms of the S75 agreement. 

 

7. REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 

7.1 The recommendations have been made in the context of the overall financial 
standing and future outlook of the council. The movements on specific 
reserves and the earmarking of unallocated general reserves represent 
prudent financial management and make best use of the limited financial 
resources available to the council. 

  

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

Appendices: 

 

1. Appendix 1 – Revenue Outturn Position by directorate 

  

Documents In Members’ Rooms 

1. None 

  

Background Documents 

 

1. Financial outturn reports for 2007/08. 

65



 

Appendix 1 

 

Adult Social Care & Housing 

 

Forecast    2007/08  Forecast  Forecast Forecast 

 Variance  Division   Budget  Outturn  Variance Variance 

 Month 9    Month 12  Month 12  Month 12 Month 12 

 £'000    £'000  £'000  £'000 % 

 37   Director   279   311   32  11.5% 

 40   Housing Strategy   4,767   4,761   (6) -0.1% 

 136   Adult Social Care   33,239   33,154   (85) -0.3% 

 213   Total   38,285   38,226   (59) -0.2% 

*  This excludes £31.607 million in grant to the Section 75 Partnerships (see below) 

 

Adult Social Care & Housing is reporting an underspend of £0.059 million, compared 
to an overspend of £0.213 million at Month 9. 

 

Housing Strategy is reporting a small underspend of £0.006 million, which is an 
improvement of £0.046 million from Month 9.  There is an underspend on the 
Homelessness budget of £0.345 million, mainly as a result of improved housing 
benefit collection levels and closure of a high unit cost accommodation unit. This 
underspend has been offset by significant pressures on Hostels as a result of 
essential repair works which reduced occupancy and increased staffing costs across 
the division. 

 

Adult Social Care is showing an underspend of £0.085 million, which is an 
improvement of £0.221 million from Month 9. The main reason for this improvement 
is within Community Care reflecting the allocation of social care contingency funding. 
The Community Care budget shows an overspend of £0.104 million, with Physical 
Disabilities overspent by £0.403 million (being the full year effect of unachieved 
savings plan from 2006/07 and pressures within Homecare) and Older People 
Services are underspent by £0.344 million. 
  

The above overspend has been offset by other mainstream budgets which are 
underspent by £0.189 million across Older People and Physical Disabilities. 

 

66



 

Appendix 1 

 

Children & Young People’s Trust 

 

Forecast    2007/08  Forecast  Forecast Forecast 

 Variance  Division   Budget  Outturn  Variance Variance 

 Month 9    Month 12  Month 12  Month 12 Month 12 

 £'000    £'000  £'000  £'000 % 

 103   Director   897   1,050   153  17.1% 

 362   East, Early Years & NHS Comm Servs  9,684   10,023   339  3.5% 

 39   Central Area & School Support   (7,207)  (7,155)  52  0.7% 

 (43)  Learning & Schools   3,296   3,252   (44) -1.3% 

 (126)  West Area & Youth Support   4,685   4,596   (89) -1.9% 

 748   Social Care   27,996   28,419   423  1.5% 

 (40)  Quality & Performance   1,094   992   (102) -9.3% 

 1,043   Total   40,445   41,177   732  1.8% 

 

The directorate is reporting an overspend of £0.732 million, an improvement of 
£0.311 million since month 9. The main change is an improvement of £0.109 million 
on the corporate critical budget of foster care and child agency placements. 

 

The total forecast overspend on foster care and child agency placements is £0.653 
million, which is largely due to in-house foster placements of £0.406 million and 
leaving care of £0.276 million. The in-house foster placements variance was mainly 
caused by an increase in the number of residence order allowances. At the end of 
the financial year there were 153 residence order placements. The leaving care 
payments overspend largely related to additional accommodation costs.  

 

Other major variances include overspends on legal fees (£0.124 million) and 
preventative payments for homeless families (£0.147 million), and a saving on Early 
Years Visitors of £0.150 million. 

 

67



 

Appendix 1 

 

Finance & Resources 

 

Forecast    2007/08  Forecast  Forecast Forecast 

 Variance  Division   Budget  Outturn  Variance Variance 

 Month 9    Month 12  Month 12  Month 12 Month 12 

 £'000    £'000  £'000  £'000 % 

 (152)  Finance   5,629   5,480   (149) -2.6% 

 (86)  ICT   5,074   4,961   (113) -2.2% 

 2,390   Customer Services   9,865   12,143   2,278  23.1% 

 (163)  Property & Design   962   715   (247) -25.7% 

 1,989   Total   21,530   23,299   1,769  8.2% 

 

The overall Finance & Resources directorate position has improved by £0.220 million 
from the variance reported at month 9. 

 

The Finance underspend was due in the main to vacancy management savings. 

 

The ICT outturn reflects the continued increase of savings from the telecomms 
contract and migration of data lines to a new platform. 

 

Customer Services are reporting an overspend of £2.028 million (previously £2.100 
million) on concessionary fares, due primarily to a much higher growth in journey 
numbers than expected but increases in bus fares had also contributed. The 
reduction in the overspend is due to the reassessment of all the appeal 
determinations. In April 2008 the council, with Lewes and Adur District Councils, 
lodged a Judicial Review (JR) application to challenge the way the decision was 
made by the Secretary of State for Transport on the 2007/08 reimbursement appeal 
determination for Brighton & Hove Bus Company. There have been 22 Judicial 
Review applications lodged nationally, mostly by bus operators and the outcomes of 
these applications are unlikely to be known until much later this financial year. There 
was also an under-achievement of income predicted on land charges fee income of 
£0.330 million. 

 

The overall Property & Design underspend is due in the main to additional back rent, 
and in-year expenditure savings. The further improvement in the position since 
month 9 is due to additional back rent for residential properties within the Preston 
Barracks site. 

 

68



 

Appendix 1 

 

Strategy & Governance 

 

Forecast    2007/08  Forecast  Forecast Forecast 

 Variance  Division   Budget  Outturn  Variance Variance 

 Month 9    Month 12  Month 12  Month 12 Month 12 

 £'000    £'000  £'000  £'000 % 

 (53)  Director   461   462   1  0.2% 

  -   Improvement & Organ Devel   1,507   1,535   28  1.9% 

 (28)  Legal & Democratic Services   3,030   3,029   (1) 0.0% 

  -   Chief Executive’s Policy Team  667   667    -  0.0% 

  -   Human Resources   3,334   3,334    -  0.0% 

  -   Executive Office   455   455    -  0.0% 

 (81)  Total   9,454   9,482   28  0.3% 

 

The underspending of £0.081 million projected at month 9 has changed to a small 
overspend of £0.028 million against a budget of over £9 million. This change is 
explained as follows:  
 
Within the Director’s budget, costs associated with the new Constitutional changes 
were incurred.  
 
Within Improvement and Organisational Development a business case for the early 
retirement of a member of staff was approved and the costs associated with this 
have been financed in 2007/08. 
 

Within Legal and Democratic Services a budget carry forward has been authorised in 
respect of a new Document Management System, to help support the new 
constitutional changes and help ensure efficient and transparent governance. 

69



 

Appendix 1 

 

Environment 

 

Forecast    2007/08  Forecast  Forecast Forecast 

 Variance  Division   Budget  Outturn  Variance Variance 

 Month 9    Month 12  Month 12  Month 12 Month 12 

 £'000    £'000  £'000  £'000 % 

  -   Director   221   229   8  3.6% 

 (50)  Communications   513   389   (124) -24.2% 

 (200)  City Services   24,653   24,515   (138) -0.6% 

  -   Leisure   1,352   1,354   2  0.1% 

 492   Sustainable Transport   440   326   (114) -25.9% 

 (174)  Public Safety   3,498   3,356   (142) -4.1% 

 28   City Planning   1,854   1,925   71  3.8% 

 96   Total   32,531   32,094   (437) -1.3% 

 

Communications has underspent by £0.124 million mainly due to employee 
underspends and additional income arising from an increase in internal orders placed 
during the last quarter, which had not been forecast at month 9.  

 

City Services underspent by £0.138 million arising from efficiencies within CityClean 
as forecast at month 9. 

 

Public Safety has underspent by £0.142 million through overachievement of licensing 
fees (note: this has not caused the trading account to enter into a surplus position) 
offset by unanticipated staffing costs from initiative projects, which were incurred in 
March. 

 

City Planning has overspent by £0.071 million due to a reduction in the fee earning 
assumptions for Building control, additional temporary staffing in Development 
Control to maintain performance levels, and other additional staffing costs identified 
at year-end. 

 

Sustainable Transport has underspent by £0.114million, an improvement of £0.606 
million since the forecast at month 9. 

 

70



 

The improvement on Sustainable Transport is as a result of: 

•  On-street Parking fees and permit income from controlled parking zones 
exceeded budget by £0.832 million, an income increase of £0.592 million over 
the forecast at month 9. 

• Penalty Charge Notice income fell short of budget by £0.906 million, an 
increased shortfall of £0.062 million over the forecast at month 9. The number 
of Penalty Charge Notices issued in the year was 127,000 compared to 
160,000 in 2005/06 

• Other on-street parking budgets underspent by a total of £0.538 million 
against the budget due to a reduction in the level of bad debt provision 
required for Penalty Charge Notices, and underspends on equipment, 
maintenance and contractors costs. 

• Off-street parking budgets overspent by £0.111 million of which £0.063 million 
related to underachievement of income on The Lanes/London Road car parks. 
A deterioration of £0.100 since month 9 occurred mainly due to The Lanes. 

• Highways expenditure on repairs and associated costs along with income 
generated in excess of forecasts resulted in a £0.225 million underspend 
against budget, which had not been forecast at month 9. 

• Other sustainable transport budgets overspent by £0.064 million. 

• A contribution of £0.400 million is recommended to be made from the 
overachievement of sustainable transport income to a Car Parks Maintenance 
reserve in 2008/09, in order to improve car parks and associated business 
processes to enhance monitoring and arrest the deteriorating income position 
on off-street parking referred to above. 

 

71



 

Appendix 1 

 

Cultural Services 

 

Forecast    2007/08  Forecast  Forecast Forecast 

 Variance  Division   Budget  Outturn  Variance Variance 

 Month 9    Month 12  Month 12  Month 12 Month 12 

 £'000    £'000  £'000  £'000 % 

 84   Libraries & Museums   5,843   5,975   132  2.3% 

 3   Arts & Creative Industries   1,607   1,606   (1) -0.1% 

  -   City Marketing   1,805   1,788   (17) -0.9% 

 (101)  Economic Devlpmnt & Regen  3,154   3,039   (115) -3.6% 

  -   Major Projects & Venues   310   135   (175) -56.5% 

 (14)  Total   12,719   12,543   (176) -1.4% 

 

Cultural Services is forecasting an underspend of £0.176 million, an improvement of 
£0.162 million since month 9. 

 

The overspend in Libraries (£0.048m) is attributed to late notification of charges in 
relation to actuarial and pension costs.  The Museums overspend (£0.084m) is 
mostly due to income shortfalls at the Royal Pavilion. 

 

The underspend in City Marketing since month 9 is due partly to delays in recruiting 
for maternity cover and increased income from conference accommodation bookings. 

 

The Economic Development & Regeneration increased underspend is due largely to 
continued vacancy management savings and underspends in supplies and services 
across the service. 

 

The large variance since month 9 in respect of Major Projects and Venues is due 
mainly to large credits on energy invoices, and higher than expected commission on 
the catering contract at the Brighton Centre.  In addition there was a small 
overachievement in income from entertainments. 

 

72



 

Appendix 1 

 

Centrally Managed Budgets 

 

Forecast    2007/08  Forecast  Forecast Forecast 

 Variance  Division   Budget  Outturn  Variance Variance 

 Month 9    Month 12  Month 12  Month 12 Month 12 

 £'000    £'000  £'000  £'000 % 

 150   Bulk Insurance Premia   3,205   3,219   14  0.4% 

 (1,362)  Housing & Council Tax Benefit  73   (1,251)  (1,324) -1813.7% 

 (1,187)  Capital Financing Costs   8,450   7,077   (1,373) -16.2% 

  -   Levies & Precepts   186   186    -  0.0% 

 (90)  Other Corporate Items   4,315   4,787   472  10.9% 

 (2,489)  Total   16,229   14,018   (2,211) -13.6% 

 

The bulk insurance premia overspend fell during the last quarter of the year. Lower 
than anticipated payments on insurance claims during the last 3 months of the 
financial year has offset the higher payments made earlier in the year resulting in the 
outturn being very close to budget. 

 
The Housing & Council Tax Benefit forecast variance relates to three main issues: 
 
As an incentive for local authorities to minimise the level of overpayments caused by 
local authority error, thresholds are built into the subsidy system. If the errors exceed 
an upper limit, zero subsidy is due on those overpayments but if the authority 
maintains errors below the lower limit it can claim 100% subsidy. Receipt of this 
additional subsidy is not assumed in the budget as the council is usually very close to 
the threshold limit. In 2007/08 errors were kept below the lower threshold which 
resulted in £0.405 million additional subsidy.  
 
Additional subsidy has also been received in relation to 2006/07. The Housing 
Benefit subsidy claim for that year showed that the council had just exceeded the 
upper limit. However, the audit of the claim was completed at the end of November 
and following the audit, certain categories of local authority error were reclassified as 
eligible overpayments, which allowed the council to fall below the lower threshold and 
receive 100% subsidy. The net result of this is that the council achieved an extra 
£0.699 million in subsidy. 
 

The remainder of the variance is due to actions taken with the service to increase 
overpayment recovery. The surplus was generated because certain housing benefit 
overpayments attract an element of subsidy, usually 40%, if they are recovered. 
Taken together with the recovered overpayment, the subsidy therefore gives rise to a 
net underspend.  

73



 

 

The underspend on capital financing costs is due to an increase in investment 
income as a result of higher interest rates and higher cash balances available for 
investment (£1.313 million) and savings in interest payments (£0.060 million) due to 
rescheduling of long term debt (borrowings). 

 

The movement on Other Corporate Items reflects the proposal to contribute £0.500 
million to the Single Status reserve. This has been partly offset by funds released 
from unallocated general contingency. 

74



 

Appendix 1 

 

Section 75 Partnerships 

 

Forecast    2007/08  Forecast  Forecast Forecast 

 Variance  Division   Budget  Outturn  Variance Variance 

 Month 9    Month 12  Month 12  Month 12 Month 12 

 £'000    £'000  £'000  £'000 % 

 23   Council managed S75 Services   20,582   20,610   28  0.1% 

 (202)  NHS Trust managed S75 Services  11,025   11,224   199  1.8% 

 (179)  Total S75   31,607   31,834   227  0.7% 

 

 

On council managed S75 Services (i.e. Learning Disability Services), the learning 
disability budget is showing an overspend of £0.028 million, after the agreed 
allocation of a non-recurrent social care risk provision from contingency. The various 
management actions taken during the year have achieved savings of £1.352 million 
against the financial recovery plan across Community Care and other Mainstream 
services. 

  

South Downs Health Trust 

With regard to Health Trust managed services, there is an overspend of £0.199 
million relating to South Downs Health Trust and the cost pressures on the Integrated 
Community Equipment Store (ICES).  This is a result of increased demands for both 
health and social care equipment and services. The Primary Care Trust has provided 
an additional contribution of £0.400 million to meet increased demands for health 
equipment and services. South Downs Health NHS Trust expected to achieve break-
even for the year through delivery of a financial recovery plan to meet remaining cost 
pressures. However, due to continuing demands and higher than expected cost 
pressures on other services an overspend has resulted. Taking all factors into 
account, it is proposed to make an additional contribution of £0.199 million to meet 
the increased demand for social care equipment and services and thereby mitigate 
this overspend. In 2008/09 the council will provide reduced service pressure funding 
of £0.080 million subject to satisfactory financial performance and will work closely 
with the Commissioner and South Downs Health to improve financial controls and 
efficiency in this service. 

 

Sussex Partnership Trust 
The outturn position is an underspend of £1.162 million primarily relating to Older 
People Mental Health Services.  This is principally due to the start of the “Dementia 
at Home” service being later than planned and as a result the investment in this 
service will mainly occur in 2008/09. Adult Mental Health services was overspent by 

75



 

£0.375 million due to pressures on the community care budget. Substance Misuse is 
underspent by £0.011 million. 
 
Where underspends occur on S75 pooled budgets, the partners are required to 
agree the utilisation of underspends. It has previously been reported to the Joint 
Commissioning Board that an underspend was likely in relation to the delayed start of 
“Dementia at Home” and that a carry forward would be recommended to enable the 
service to start up in 2008/09. It is therefore proposed to carry forward £0.799 million 
in this respect. 
The Sussex Partnership Trust budgets are therefore shown as break-even, after 
inclusion of the proposed carry-forward of the £0.799 million. 

76



 

Appendix 1 

Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 

 

Forecast    2007/08  Forecast  Forecast Forecast 

 Variance  Division   Budget  Outturn  Variance Variance 

 Month 9    Month 12  Month 12  Month 12 Month 12 

 £'000    £'000  £'000  £'000 % 

 (514)  Employees   9,122   8,596   (526) -5.8% 

 (972)  Premises – Repair   12,430   10,799   (1,631) -13.1% 

 (8)  Premises – Other   2,094   2,197   103  4.9% 

 (136)  Transport & Supplies   2,016   2,051   35  1.7% 

 2   Support Services   2,270   2,249   (21) -0.9% 

 750   Revenue contribution to capital  3,176   4,440   1,264  39.8% 

 (168)  Capital Financing Costs   5,017   4,866   (151) -3.0% 

 (41)  Subsidy Payable to Gen Fund   8,155   8,129   (26) -0.3% 

 (1,087)  Net Expenditure   44,280   43,327   (953) -2.2% 

            

 (2)  Dwelling Rents (net)   (38,895)  (38,903)  (8) 0.0% 

 (41)  Other rent   (1,173)  (1,235)  (62) -5.3% 

 (113)  Service Charges   (3,202)  (3,306)  (104) -3.2% 

 (29)  Supporting People   (527)  (560)  (33) -6.3% 

 94   Other recharges & interest   (612)  (762)  (150) -24.5% 

 (91)  Net Income   (44,409)  (44,766)  (357) -0.8% 

 (1,178)  Total   (129)  (1,439)  (1,310) 1015.5% 

 

The underspend has increased by £0.132 million since month 9 to £1.310 million. 

 

The main variances are the efficiencies realised in the Repairs budget totalling 
£1.631 million, which have been partly reinvested in the capital programme through 
an increased Revenue Contribution to Capital of £1.264 million. 

 

The underspend for repairs has increased by £0.659 million since month 9 mainly 
due to increased efficiencies in the service contracts of £0.385 million and due to the 
capitalisation of the cyclical decorations programme of  £0.274 million (an accounting 
adjustment). 

 

77



 

The Premises – Other costs increased by £0.111 million, which was mainly due to an 
increase in leaseholders’ insurance costs. These additional costs will be passed onto 
leaseholders in the following financial year. 

 

The increase in Transport and Supplies since month 9 is mainly due to an increase in 
the provision for bad debts as a result of increased debt write offs during 2007/08 
following a review of write off procedures. 

 

 The capitalisation of repairs staff salaries (shown under Other recharges & interest) 
increased by £0.240 million to reflect the increased investment in the capital 
programme. 

 

The HRA minimum recommended level of balances is £2.2 million. The provisional 
outturn increases the HRA level of revenue balances to £5.650 million, of which 
£3.450 million is available for use. These available reserves will be set aside to invest 
in the new long term partnering contracts and other programmes with demonstrable 
efficiencies ensuring the council achieves maximum value for money in order to meet 
Decent Homes in the future. 

78



 

Appendix 2 

 

Proposal for Unallocated LABGI Funds 
 
 

Item £m 

Brighton & Hove markets – research study 

A coherent market strategy will ensure that all markets add economic 
benefits and mitigates the potentially negative impacts on localities and 
small business. It will support the council’s strategic goals contained in the 
Sustainability Strategy, the Economic Strategy and the 2020 Community 
Strategy. It will have due regard for the work around the Open Market. A 
LABGI contribution is sought to produce a three year strategy and an 
implementation plan including interim evaluation to ensure that the aims of 
the strategy are being achieved.   

0.010 

Open Market redevelopment project 

Redeveloping the Open Market would generate additional value to the 
local economy. The Open Market redevelopment project is the only capital 
project yet to receive continuation funding as a result of the closedown of 
the local Area Investment Framework in April 2008. The Economic 
Development & Enterprise Board therefore recommended that the project 
should be supported if any additional LABGI funding was made available. 

0.050 

Management and delivery of the City Employment and Skills Plan 

Request for additional LABGI funding to support administration and project 
costs incurred through delivery of the four key strategic priorities of the 
CESP: Supporting the creation, retention and development of local 
business & enterprise; Increase the employment rate; Develop & improve 
skills for work; Develop the infrastructure & intelligence to support the 
delivery actions of the CESP. 

0.030 

Futures model development 

In addition to the LABGI-funded co-ordinator, the ED team seeks funding 
to support direct training and further progression of the Futures model, in 
the first instance around Tourism Futures and in support of the numerous 
small businesses within that sector. 

0.030 

Business Retention and Inward Investment Study implementation 

The BRII Study will identify the economic sectors in Brighton and Hove 
that have capacity to grow and boost economic output in the city. 
Implementing the recommendations of the BRII study will require a range 
of interventions for and with the business community in order to support 
local growth in an increasingly competitive global market. 

0.060 

79



 

 

Business welcome packs and information system 

The packs are an important requirement for the ED team which will 
support the BRII study. The welcome packs will ensure businesses are 
linked to available services and support within the city. There are two 
main target groups for the welcome packs: - 

1) Companies that are considering investment in Brighton & Hove. These 
enquiries are generally received directly or through Seeda. 

2) Companies that have recently located in the city. Subscription to an 
appropriate data system is required in order to identify and engage new 
businesses using the welcome packs. 

0.018 

Promoting Sustainable Economic Development 

In support of the council’s aim to promote sustainable economic 
development, the ED team require funding to support business retention 
and growth through the Sustainable Business Partnership. Work areas 
include environmental audits and training, and result in boosting company 
profits and growth potential through efficiency savings. 

0.010 

Centre for Cities Research relating to Brighton & Hove Policy 

The Centre for Cities, a respected London-based think tank, is proposing 
to include Brighton and Hove in some action-focused research on 
maintaining growth in small cities. In return for their work with us, and the 
policy advice that comes with it, we are asked to make a small contribution 
to the costs of the study 

0.005 

Sussex Economic Summit 

Request for LABGI funding to support the Sussex Economic Summit 
planned for late spring/ early summer this year. The aim of the event is to 
share economic strategies in the light of the new LAAs and the outcome of 
the Sub-National Review, explore the potential for joint working across 
local authority boundaries and develop a Pan Sussex strategic approach 
for driving forward economic development across the area. 

0.005 

Planning Projects – Major Projects, Community Stadium 

Planning issues around the Community Stadium project must be 
addressed efficiently and in a co-ordinated manner which respects the 
project milestones.  In addition to advising on the planning matters 
related to implementation of the stadium, an additional need has arisen to 
address a number of prospective planning applications related to the 
project. Accordingly, there is a need for some additional consultative work 
and a short to medium term appointment 

0.051 

Total 0.269 

 

80



CABINET / AUDIT 
COMMITTEE 

Agenda Item 18 
Brighton & Hove City Council 

 

 

  

Subject: Targeted Budget Management (TBM) Capital Outturn 
2007/08 

Date of Meeting: 12 June 2008 / 26 June 2008  

Report of: Director of Finance & Resources 

Contact Officer: Name:  Stuart Taylor Tel: 29-1074      

 E-mail: stuart.taylor@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

Key Decision: Yes Forward Plan No.8 

Wards Affected: All  

 

FOR GENERAL RELEASE 

 

1. SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT: 

1.1 This report sets out the capital outturn for 2007/08. 

1.2 This report also highlights programme slippage, details budget changes and 
seeks approval for carry forwards to the 2008/09 programme. 

 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS: 

(1) Approve the changes to the capital budget, as set out in Appendix 1 

(2) Note the programme slipped by 3.48%, as set out in paragraph 3.3. 

(3) Approve the carrying forward of 2007/08 slippage (£1.407 million) into the 
2008/09 capital programme, to meet on-going commitments on these 
schemes. 

 

3. RELEVANT BACKGROUND INFORMATION/CHRONOLOGY OF KEY 
EVENTS: 

3.1 Capital Budget 2007/08 

 On 7 February 2008, Policy & Resources Committee considered the month 9 
capital monitoring report and agreed a revised capital budget of £44.939 
million. 

 Appendix 1 to this report shows in detail the proposed changes to that budget 
since month 9, resulting in a final proposed 2007/08 capital budget of £40.444 
million. Chart 1 shows the resources that make up that budget. 

  

81



 

 Chart 1

Capital Resources

£ '000

Borrowing

 £10,545 

Other External 

Contributions

 £991 

Grants,  £22,041 

Council Resources

 £6,867 

 

3.2 Capital Outturn 

 The table below shows the capital outturn for 2007/08 

  

Department 

Budget  
month 

9 

New 
schemes 

Existing 
schemes 
– resource 
changes 

Budget 

re-profiling 

Revised 
budget 

Actual 
Outturn 

Slippage 
into next 

year 

Saving / 
(shortfall) 

 £‘000 £‘000 £‘000 £‘000 £‘000 £‘000 £‘000 £‘000 

Cultural 
Services 

1,298 0 (6) (104) 1,188 1,088 100 0 

Finance & 
Resources 

6,190 41 10 (1,235) 5,006 4,697 309 0 

ASC & HRA 16,731 13 (124) (1,241) 15,379 14,599 596 184 

CYPT 7,557 120 (27) (320) 7,330 7,108 165 57 

Environment 9,881 75 553 (1,290) 9,219 8,982 237 0 

Sub-total 41,657 249 406 (4,190) 38,122 36,474 1,407 241 

         
Schools 
DFC 

3,282 0 (237) (723) 2,322 2,322 0 0 

         
Total 44,939 249 169 (4,913) 40,444 38,796 1,407 241 
 
3 The 2007/08 capital outturn is £38.796 million. A further £1.407 million of the 

budget is needed to complete these projects and is requested to be carried 
forward to the 2008/09 programme. 

 Net savings have been made of £0.241 million. This relates to two areas of the 
programme: 

• Housing stock programme £0.184 million 
Cash incentive £0.080 million – there was no take-up of scheme in 
2007/08. A further £0.080 million allocation has been made in 2008/09 

82



 

budget, so this saving is to be returned to HRA reserves for future re-
allocation. 
ICT fund £0.104 million - following the decision to retain the housing 
stock, a new ICT strategy has been in development. It has not therefore 
been appropriate to purchase individual solutions without fitting them 
into the overall strategy. This underspend will therefore be returned to 
HRA reserves for future re-allocation. 

• Children’s Centres £0.057 million 
Savings were identified in order to allow this ring-fenced grant to be re-
allocated towards the nursery class at Moulsecoomb Primary School in 
2008/09. The grant can be carried forward for use in 2008/09 without the 
loss of funding. 

3.3 Capital Slippage 

 The council endeavours to deliver its capital programme on time and within 
budget and as such monitors against a challenging target of spending at least 
95% of the approved capital programme each year. 

 The graph below shows how forecasts of slippage compare to previous years 

 

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

Month

%
 o
f 
b
u
d
g
e
t

2005/06

2006/07

2007/08

 

 Total outturn slippage amounts to £1.407 million or 3.48% of the budget. No 
resources have been lost as a result of this slippage. Details of schemes with 
significant slippage are provided at appendix 2. 

3.4 Requests for budget re-profiling 

 Delays to some projects came about as a result of factors outside of the 
council’s control. Where this occurred, departments have requested revision of 
these budgets. 

 Departments have requested the re-profiling of £4.913 million from this year’s 
budget, into next. Explanations are provided at appendix 3. This re-profiling will 
not result in the loss of any capital resources. 

 

3.5 Prudential indicator for capital expenditure 

 Each year, the council sets a number of prudential indicators that show its 
capital investment plans are affordable and that borrowing levels are 

83



 

sustainable and prudent. For 2007/08, these were set by the council on 22nd 
February 2007. One of these indicators is ‘capital expenditure’ and in February 
the council set this at £43.971 million for 2007/08. This indicator helps us to 
demonstrate that our capital expenditure plans are affordable. 

 The Capital Investment Programme report, also approved in February, 
demonstrated how it was fully funded and affordable. The revenue effects of 
this programme were fully considered as part of the revenue budget setting 
process. This report advises Members that the capital outturn has not resulted 
in the council exceeding its capital expenditure indicator. 

 

4. CONSULTATION 

4.1 No specific consultation has taken place. 

 

5. FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS:  

Financial Implications 

5.1 These are addressed in the main body of this report. 

 

Legal Implications: 

5.2 In reaching its decisions in relation to its budget, the council needs to have 
regard to a number of general points. It must provide the services that it is 
statutorily obliged to provide but where there is power to provide services, 
rather than a duty, it has discretion to provide such services. It must observe its 
other legal duties, such as the duty to achieve best value, to comply with the 
Human Rights Act 1998 and in relation to equalities. It must also act in 
accordance with its general fiduciary duties to its council taxpayers to act with 
financial prudence. 

More specifically in relation to its capital budgets, under the Local Government 
Act 2003 the council is required to set a number of current and forward 
indicators to demonstrate that planned levels of capital investment are 
affordable (in terms of council tax and housing rents) and prudent and 
sustainable over the medium term. In addition, section 3 of the 2003 Act 
requires the council to determine how much money it can afford to borrow. For 
decisions which affect capital budgets, the indicators and borrowing limit need 
to be taken into account in the decision making process. 

Equalities Implications: 

5.3 There are no direct equalities implications arising from this report. 

Sustainability Implications: 

5.4 There are no direct sustainability implications arising from this report. 

Crime & Disorder Implications: 

5.5 There are no implications for the prevention of crime and disorder arising from 
this report. 

Risk and Opportunity Management Implications: 

84



 

5.6 There has been no specific risk assessment for this report. 

Corporate / Citywide Implications: 

5.7 None 

 

6. EVALUATION OF ANY ALTERNATIVE OPTION(S): 

6.1 It would be possible to consider redirecting slippage and re-profiling requests 
to other priorities. This is not recommended in this report as the resources 
were allocated to schemes by previous Member decisions and are required in 
order to complete the schemes the council has committed to. Some resources 
are also ring-fenced for a specific purpose by the sponsor. 

 

7. REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 

7.1 The budget changes are requested in order to begin or complete capital 
investment projects previously agreed by Members. 

7.2 The slippage and re-profiling requests are required to be carried forward into 
2008/09 in order to complete capital investment projects already committed to. 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

Appendices: 

1. Details of all budget changes 

2. Reasons for significant slippage 

3. Explanation of reasons for requested budget re-profiling 

 

Documents In Members’ Rooms 

1. None 

 

Background Documents 

1. Information provided by directorates. Data provided from the council’s General 
Ledger system. Files held within Financial Services and Strategic Finance, 
Finance & Resources 

85



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 

B
u
d
g
e
t 
C
h
a
n
g
e
s
 

 
 

 

   

86



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 

B
u
d
g
e
t 
C
h
a
n
g
e
s
 

 

 

87



Appendix 2 

Director comments on the impact on service delivery resulting from slippage 
over £50,000 

  

Department: ASC & HRA 

Project Name: Housing Stock Programme 

Budget 2007/08: £11,311,210 Outturn expenditure: £10,767,280 

Slippage into 2008/09: £543,930   

1. Estate Development 

The Estate Development Budget (EDB) funds a large variety of works that 
enhance the immediate environment for council tenants. The expenditure 
comes from both the revenue and capital budget depending on the nature of 
the works. The programme of works is agreed each year at Housing Area 
Panel meetings (which consists of Member, officers and tenants 
representatives). 

The £0.133 million to be carried forward in to 2008-09 is made up of 
approximately fifteen projects, which could not be completed during the 2007-
08 financial year. The delays were due to a variety of reasons ranging from 
continuing consultation with the residents and tenants and waiting for 
decisions on planning permission. Orders have now been placed for three of 
the jobs, accounting for approximately £0.070 million of the underspend, and it 
is anticipated they will be complete within the next four months. The 
remainder of the programme will be completed by the end of the financial year 
2008-09. 

 

2. Disabled Adaptations 

The full HRA adaptations budget was approved in November 2007. Orders for 
works with a total value covering the whole of the budget were placed with our 
approved contractors. However, in the event, although these contractors 
worked hard to deliver the programme, limitations in their capacity meant that 
it was not possible for them to carry out all of the scheduled adaptations by 
the end of the financial year. 

The waiting period for adaptations has been extended for some tenants. This 
has resulted in a backlog of demand, and a year-end commitment of £0.311 
million. It is therefore proposed that the whole of the underspend be allocated 
to 2008/09.  

 

3. Newstead Flats refurbishment 

Due to tendering issues and discovery of additional works it has been decided 
that new tenders should be sought. Seeking new tenders has impacted on the 
ability to complete this project in 2007/08. 

This project has now started on site and will be completed by July 2008. 

 

4. Carden Road Flats External Repairs 

The contract was retendered owing to the original tender omitting to specify 
properties that are part of the block, but on an adjacent street. These works 
affect leased shops and flats, therefore further statutory leaseholder 
consultation was necessary to progress the tender. This has delayed 
execution of the work into 2008/09. 

88



Appendix 2 

Director comments on the impact on service delivery resulting from slippage 
over £50,000 

 

 

Department: Children & Young People’s Trust 

Project Name: NDS Modernisation 

Budget 2007/08: £1,689,450 Outturn expenditure: £1,587,700 

Slippage into 2008/09: £101,750   

 

As reported at TBM 9 the NDS Modernisation funding was resourcing a 
number of projects that were at various stages of development and delivery.  
Some work had to be programme during the recent Easter holiday.  While the 
majority of work was completed and paid for in 2007/2008 some work will 
complete in the early part of the new financial year. As a result, we wish to 
carry forward £0.102 million of slippage to meet these commitments.

89



Appendix 3 

 

 

Request to re-profile capital project budgets 

 

Below is a table of budget re-profiling requests. These are projects where a 
need to adjust the budget profile has arisen, usually due to outside factors. 
Where the a change of £0.100 million or greater is requested, a more detailed 
explanation has been provided. 

 

Capital budget re-profiling requests 

Project name Budget 

Re-profile 

Explanation 

Replacement Library 
Management System 

£104,250 See below – Ref I 

External Improvement 
Works to Allen Centre 

£29,190 Specification changes once on site and adverse 
weather 

Re-roofing Works to Knoll 
House 

£45,000 Scope & nature changed following severe weather at 
the end of 2007, highlighting unknown defects 

Geographical Information 
System 

£57,030 In year 1, scoping the phases of work identified need 
to adjust budget profile, as well as payment withheld 
due to some sub-standard work 

Citizens Relationship 
Management 

£86,560 Proposed extension to use GIS functionality & 
customer self service to be developed next year (see 
above) 

Mobile and Flexible 
Working 

£51,520 No business case found for Wireless Broadband 
Infrastructure in City. Now to be used in mobile & 
flexible working programme linked to wider 
accommodation strategy 

Improving Information 
Management 

£36,050 CareFirst v6 implementation costs less than expected. 
Ring-fenced grant required to meet scheme costs in 
08/09 

Extension of the City 
Mortuary 

£237,810 See below – Ref II 

Disability Discrimination 
Act – Access 
Improvements 

£214,510 See below – Ref III 

Ovingdean Grange Farm £50,690 Agents fees expected in-year now due in 08/09. In-
going tenants later than expected notification of 
repairs 

Kensington Street £19,280 On-going Party Wall Act and rights of light issues 
where we will incur legal fees 

New England House Lift 
Refurbishment 

£42,400 Lift design requires specialist expert input. Council had 
difficulty recruiting to Senior Mechanical and Electrical 
Engineers post 

Woodvale Spire Structural 
Repairs & Refurbishment 

£80,530 Timing of works needed to avoid adverse weather and 
the cemeteries busiest periods to avoid running a 
reduced service 

Corporate Fire 
Precautions & Fire Alarm 
Systems 

£168,140 See below – Ref IV 

90



Appendix 3 

 

 

Replacement Financial 
Information System 

£115,170 See below – Ref V 

Private Sector Housing 
Renewal 

£444,890 See below – Ref VI 

Disabled Facilities Grant £173,310 See below – Ref VII 

Housing Stock - 
Mechanical & Engineering 

£30,000 Planning delays and concerns over value for money of 
quotes received for St James House works 

Housing Stock - Door 
Entry Systems 

£49,000 Insufficient tenders received for Walton Bank, resulting 
in the need to retender 

Housing Stock - General 
Refurbishment 

£544,070 See below – Ref VIII 

Honey Croft Children’s 
Centre 

£57,190 Heavy rainfall and subsequent water penetration 
delayed completion 

Royal Spa Early Years 
Childcare 

£48,130 Contractor went into liquidation 

Mobile Play Project £58,000 Vehicle delivery delayed and graphics work re-done 
due to being below standard expected 

Moulsecoomb Children’s 
Centre – Nursery Class 

£61,420 Buffer Bear nursery closure has changed scope of 
early years provision in Moulsecoomb area. Works in 
08/09 will link in with Moulsecoomb Primary School 

Schools Access Initiative £95,540 Notification from schools came through later in the 
year 

Devolved capital to 
schools 

£722,870 See below – Ref IX 

Downland Initiative £204,350 See below – Ref X 

Extension of Communal 
Bins Scheme 

£615,000 See below – Ref XI 

Playground Improvements £138,100 See below – Ref XII 

Bandstand Restoration 
Project 

£123,710 See below – Ref XIII 

Ocean Hotel Saltdean 
Crossing Works 

£24,810 Awaiting the developer providing a number of on 
street parking spaces within existing verges around 
the site 

Peace Statue Toilets £86,310 Surveyor work on hold awaiting results of the asbestos 
and electrical surveys 

Volks Railway Siding 
Sheds 

£98,430 Cost of repair found to be uneconomical. Further 
consideration needed to ensure VFM and meeting 
Railway Inspectorate safety requirements 

TOTAL £4,913,260  

 

 

 

 

 

 

91



Appendix 3 

 

 

Ref: I Project Name: Replacement Library Management System 

 

The company supplying the software have failed to deliver to specification, 
necessitating further development time on their part. They also failed to put in 
place adequate facilities management, resulting in the Service Level 
Agreement performance measures not being met. This caused serious 
disruption to services. As a result, payment is being withheld until we are 
satisfied that their software and facilities management are complete and 
performing to expected standards. 

Service delivery was seriously disrupted between December 2007 and 
February 2008. An alternative broadband connection via our corporate 
Internet feed had to be put in place for a couple of months to replace the 
inadequate one that our supplier had provided. Extra staffing was needed to 
deal with the long customer queues caused by the slow system and the lack 
of proper self-service facilities. 

 

Ref: II Project Name: Extension of the City Mortuary 

 

Structural survey work identified additional requirements which set back the 
project timetable, including ‘party wall’ issues that have required getting the 
consent of multiple neighbouring tenants. The knock on effect was then that 
the structural elements of the project would have to be undertaken after the 
winter months, in order to avoid disruption to the operational requirements 
during the mortuary’s busiest period of the year. 

 

Ref: III Project Name: Disability Discrimination Act – Access Improvements 

 

This is a rolling programme of works linked into meeting the BVPI 156 (% of 
publicly accessible buildings) target. The purpose of this budget is to provide 
funding to remove prioritised physical and sensory barriers to Council 
services. Works are not always the smart, cost-effective answer to overcome 
barriers; management procedures or providing the service in a different way 
may overcome a barrier at a reduced cost. 

The appointment of a Technical Access Manager has brought skills to the 
Council that have enabled new innovative solutions to be applied to the 
removal or avoidance of service barriers. 

Due to alternative and cost effective solutions, not all of the allocated funds 
were spent by the end of the financial year. However the BVPI target for 
2007/08 of 65% has been achieved. 

 

The rolling nature of the DDA 
programme means that projects and 
funding will be carried over into 2008/09 
to ensure that the required access 

Year Target Actual Score 

2005/06 53.6% 53.94% 

2006/07 60% 60.00% 

2007/08 65% 65.45%  

2008/09 70%  

92



Appendix 3 

 

 

adjustments are made to services and infrastructure and that the BVPI target 
for 2008/09 is met. 

 

Ref: IV Project Name: Corporate Fire Precautions & Fire Alarm Systems 

 

Despite repeated efforts the Council had difficulty in filling the vacant Senior 
Mechanical and Electrical Engineers post. This post was filled on 15th 
February 2008. As a result external consultants were employed to deliver this 
project within the financial year. The consultant slipped from the original 
programme timetable due to their own work pressures and the resultant 
problems allocating sufficient resources. 

It is anticipated that works will commence in May 2008. 

 

Ref: V Project Name: Replacement Financial Information System 

 

Following implementation of the replacement system, Authority Financials, in 
December 2006 there have been a number of system performance issues to 
address. Some of these were addressed in a major upgrade (v8.1) installed in 
December 2007, however, there are still a number of outstanding issues 
which have been notified to the supplier. Until these are resolved, forward 
development of the system, particularly interfaces, the debtors module and 
some aspects of reporting, is being held up and therefore re-profiling of the 
budget is required. 

 

Ref: VI Project Name: Private Sector Housing Renewal 

 

Expenditure under this cost centre is dependent upon the completion of works 
by individual applicants following approval of applications for Housing 
Renewal Assistance. The rate at which applications are received and the 
timescale for completion of works are therefore outside the control of the 
council. 

 

Ref: VII Project Name: Disabled Facilities Grant 

 

Expenditure on this budget is dependent upon private sector grant applicants 
arranging for works to be undertaken following a process of preliminary 
assessment and prioritisation by the OT Assessment Team, detailed needs 
assessment and specification of a bespoke adaptation within the Housing 
Adaptations Team and the processing of a detailed means tested grant 
application. The council has no effective control over the time in which the 
adaptation works are carried out following grant approval. 

 

 

93



Appendix 3 

 

 

Ref: VIII Project Name: Housing Stock - General Refurbishment 

 

Citywide Door Replacement 

The original London Housing Consortia (LHC) framework expired in January 
2008. It was decided to use the new framework commencing January 2008 to 
enable further value for money. Additionally, the new framework included an 
improvement to the locking mechanisms of external doors. 

All works within the scheme are still expected to meet the original target for 
completion in 2009/10.  

 

Denton Drive Walkway 

A change in specification achieved a reduction in costs for this scheme. This 
change has resulted in a delay to the progress of the tendering process. The 
contractors are now on site and are due to complete within the first quarter of 
2008/09. 

 

Ref: IX Project Name: Devolved capital to schools 

 

Devolved Formula Capital is a financial resource that is devolved to schools 
by the Local Authority. Part of the terms of this Department of Children, 
Schools & Families grant provides schools the option to accrue the money for 
a maximum of 3 years. However, accrued funds are normally retained by the 
Local Authority. The outstanding balance represents the funds that schools 
have chosen not to take this year. These outstanding budgets are being re-
profiled to 2008/09. 

Ref: X Project Name: Downland Initiative 

 

Progress has been made with the East Brighton easy access trail, but has 
been slower than expected due to needing to reach agreement with English 
Heritage on Whitehawk Hill. There is a wider reaching plan for that area that 
we are working on with the Brighton & Hove Archaeology group, with the top 
of Whitehawk hill being a scheduled ancient monument. 

The Falmer to Woodingdean cycle route works will include financial support 
from the Local Transport Plan, but the recent priority for LTP spending on 
cycle routes has been the Hove area, in order to ensure matched funding for 
the Cycling Demonstration Town grant. Delays have also been experienced 
due to the complexities of working with our partners in East Sussex County 
Council, as well as having to take full account of the new Community Stadium 
factors in the works. 

The table below shows the expected revised spending profile. 

2007/08 

£ 

2008/09 

£ 

2009/10 

£ 

2010/11 

£ 

96,000 75,000 75,000 54,500 

94



Appendix 3 

 

 

The Stanmer easy access route has been completed under budget. Work will 
continue throughout the autumn, winter and spring of year 2 on the East 
Brighton easy access trail and work will be carried out on Falmer to 
Woodingdean cycle route to make it accessible by walkers, horse riders and 
off-road cyclists. 

 

Ref: XI Project Name: Extension of Communal Bins Scheme 

 

This project was originally approved at Environment Committee on 13th 
September 2007. At that meeting Members agreed 

 

1) That the Chairman of the Environment Committee works with the 
Opposition Spokesperson for Environment and the spokesperson/ 
representative from the Green and Liberal Democrat Groups to 
oversee a process of consultation with residents in the areas where it is 
proposed to implement an extension of the Communal Bin Scheme. 
These discussions to involve the ward councillors representing the 10 
wards affected as necessary. 

2) That the results of the consultation are reported back to the 
Environment Committee for a decision on further extensions to the 
scheme. 

3) That the unions continue to be fully informed and consulted as part of 
this process. 

 

This extended period of consultation has impacted upon the project 
implementation timetable, resulting in the budget not now being spent until 
2008/09. 

The consultation period has just ended. Officers are now collating the 
information and anticipate reporting back to Members in May/June. 

It is likely that any proposed project will start being implemented in February 
2009. 

 

Ref: XII Project Name: Playground Improvements 

 

A tender was let to install play equipment purchased for Hove and Hollingbury 
playgrounds with an anticipated contract start of February 2008. However, on 
receipt the tenders needed some amendment and reconfiguration, as the 
budget was exceeded. The playgrounds tenders have been reconfigured to 
accommodate these changes and re-tendered. 

The project will now start on the ground after the Easter school holidays with a 
completion date in mid June for Hove Park and beginning of August for 
Hollingbury Park. The extended delay to the second play area is beyond our 
control as the same contractor won the tender for both sites and is unable to 
install both sites at the same time. 

95



Appendix 3 

 

 

The existing play equipment has been left in situ and is useable and safe 
although not to the standard expected. 

 

Ref: XIII Project Name: Bandstand Restoration Project 

 

The budget for 2007/08 was based on a cost plan compiled for the HLF 
application which estimated professional fees at 20% of the total budget. 
Once tenders started to come in, it was apparent that fees could well be lower 
than this. 

It was envisaged that the majority of professional fees would be met by the 
end of March 2008. Although the main body of work has been completed by 
the architects and landscape designers, other consultancy work is now 
expected to fall in 2008/09. 

It should be noted that although savings are expected to be realised in 
professional fees, additional costs are likely to be incurred as a result of a 
significant increase world wide in the price of raw materials since the original 
budget estimate. 

Due to the nature of historic building restoration projects, the precise costs are 
not yet clear. The combined effect of timing issues and some savings on fees 
requires a re-profiling of some of the budget into 2008/09, where a budget 
review will be undertaken once the tenders are returned. 

96


	Agenda
	10 Audit Committee: Terms of Reference and Ways of Working
	15 Audit & Assurance Annual Report and Opinion 2007/08
	Item 15 AnnualReport&Opinion-Appendix 1

	16 Annual Governance Statement
	Item 16 AGS - Appendix 1
	Item 16 AGS - Appendix 2

	17 Targeted Budget Management (TBM) Revenue Outturn 2007/08
	18 Targeted Budget Management (TBM) Capital Outturn 2007/08

